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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD -LOOKING INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “Johizamtrols,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” irhis Annual Report on Form 1K-
refer to Johnson Controls, Inc. and its consolidatgbsidiaries.

Certain statements in this report, other than puritorical information, including estimates, dions, statements relating to our
business plans, objectives and expected operasuts, and the assumptions upon which those staismare based, are “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Prv&ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Sent®/7A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchangeoft834. These forward-looking statements geneeak identified by the words
“believe,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estnate,” “forecast,” “outlook,” “intend,” “strategy,"plan,” “may,” “should,” “will,”
“would,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely r esult,” or the negative thereof or variations tls@rer similar terminology generally
intended to identify forward-looking statementsr#ard-looking statements are based on current ¢xpess and assumptions that are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factsose of which are beyond our control, which mayseaactual results to differ materially
from those expressed or implied by such forwarddlog statements. A detailed discussion of riskgettainties and other factors that
could cause actual results and events to diffeeriadly from such forward-looking statements islirted in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” (refer to Part I, Item 1A, of this Anniéport on Form 10-K). We undertake no obligatiord we disclaim any obligation, to
update or revise publicly any forward-looking staénts, whether as a result of new information,rievents or otherwise.

PART |
ITEM 1 BUSINESS
General

Johnson Controls is a global diversified technolagy industrial leader serving customers in moaa tt60 countries. The Company
creates quality products, services and solutiomgptionize energy and operational efficiencies afdings; lead-acid automotive
batteries and advanced batteries for hybrid anttredevehicles; and interior systems for automahile

Johnson Controls was originally incorporated ingtede of Wisconsin in 1885 as Johnson ElectrigiSeiCompany to manufacture,
install and service automatic temperature regulaigstems for buildings. The Company was renamddhason Controls, Inc. in 1974,
In 1978, we acquired Globe-Union, Inc., a Wiscorsased manufacturer of automotive batteries fohn tio¢ replacement and original
equipment markets. The Company entered the auteenséiating industry in 1985 with the acquisitiorMd€higan-based Hoover
Universal, Inc. In 2005, the Company acquired Yioternational, a global supplier of heating, veattilg, air-conditioning and
refrigeration equipment and services.

The Building Efficiency business is a global mardestder in designing, producing, marketing andaifiag integrated heating,
ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems,lding management systems, controls, security aeadmanical equipment. In
addition, the Building Efficiency business provideshnical services, energy management consultidgoaerations of entire real estate
portfolios for the non-residential buildings markehe Company also provides residential air coaditig and heating systems and
industrial refrigeration products.

The Automotive Experience business is one of thedlargest automotive suppliers, providing inative interior systems through
our design and engineering expertise. The Compdagtmnologies extend into virtually every areahsf interior including seating and
overhead systems, door systems, floor consolesyment panels, cockpits and integrated electrofiastomers include most of the
world’s major automakers.

The Power Solutions business is a leading glohapleer of lead-acid automotive batteries for vitty@&very type of passenger car, light
truck and utility vehicle. The Company serves batomotive original equipment manufacturers (OER] the general vehicle batte
aftermarket. The Company also supplies advancddrigaechnologies to power Start-Stop vehicles ridyand electric vehicles.

Financial Information About Business Segments

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280, “SegtriReporting,” establishes the standards for r@ppihformation about segments
in financial statements. In applying the criteréd ®rth in ASC 280, the Company has determinetlittreas nine reportable segments
financial reporting purposes. The Company'’s nirgriable
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segments are presented in the context of its {miegary businesses - Building Efficiency, Autometigxperience and Power Solutions.

Refer to Note 18, “Segment Information,” of thee®to consolidated financial statements for finalnciformation about business
segments.

For the purpose of the following discussion of @@mpany’s businesses, the five Building Efficiemeportable segments and the three
Automotive Experience reportable segments are ptedd¢ogether due to their similar customers amdstmilar nature of their produc
production processes and distribution channels.

Products/Systems and Services
Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency is a global leader in delivegiintegrated control systems, mechanical equipnsentjces and solutions designed to
improve the comfort, safety and energy efficientEpan-residential buildings and residential projgartvith operations in 59 countries.
Revenues come from facilities management, techs@maices and the replacement and upgrade of HV@#@rals and mechanical
equipment in the existing buildings market, whére €ompanys large base of current customers leads to repsatdss, as well as w
installing controls and equipment during the cardfon of new buildings. Customer relationshipenfspan entire building lifecycles.

Building Efficiency sells its control systems, maaital equipment and services primarily throughGloepany’s extensive global
network of sales and service offices. Some buildiogtrols and mechanical systems are sold to lligtts of air-conditioning,
refrigeration and commercial heating systems thnougjthe world. Approximately 43% of Building Effemcy’s sales are derived from
HVAC products and installed control systems forstauction and retrofit markets, including 13% dfadcsales related to new
commercial construction. Approximately 57% of itdes originate from its service offerings. In fisg@12, Building Efficiency
accounted for 35% of the Company’s consolidatedsals.

The Company'’s systems include Y&rk chillers, indaktefrigeration products, air handlers and otH®#AC mechanical equipment
that provide heating and cooling in non-residerigldings. The Metasy® control system monitors iategrates HVAC equipment
with other critical building systems to maximizentfort while reducing energy and operating coststhslargest global supplier of
HVAC technical services, Building Efficiency staffsptimizes and repairs building systems made byQbmpany and its competitors.
The Company offers a wide range of solutions swcpesiformance contracting under which guaranteedygrsavings are used by the
customer to fund project costs over a number ofsyda addition, the Global Workplace Solutionsreegt provides full-time on-site
operations staff and real estate and energy camguérvices to help customers, especially multiemal companies, reduce costs and
improve the performance of their facility portfadioThe Company’s on-site staff typically perforrasks related to the comfort and
reliability of the facility, and manages subcontaas for functions such as foodservice, cleaningintenance and landscaping. The
Company also produces air conditioning and heamgpment for the residential market.

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesiémtproducts and systems for passenger cars ghtlttucks, including vans, pick-
up trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Dasiness produces automotive interior systemerigimal equipment manufacturers
(OEMSs) and operates approximately 240 wholly- arjonity-owned manufacturing or assembly plantshwiperations in 33 countries
worldwide. Additionally, the business has partiadhyned affiliates in Asia, Europe, North Americalé®outh America.

Automotive Experience products and systems inctaieplete seating systems and components; coclgigrsg, including instrument
panels and clusters, information displays and bmmhrollers; overhead systems, including headliaaelectronic convenience
features; floor consoles; and door systems. Imfi2012, Automotive Experience accounted for 51%hefCompany’s consolidated net
sales.

The business operates assembly plants that suppynative OEMs with complete seats on a “just-indiin-sequence” basis. Seats are
assembled to specific order and delivered on agbeeshined schedule directly to an automotive asselime. Certain of the business’s
other automotive interior systems are also suppied “just-in-time/in-sequence” basis. Foam, matal plastic seating components,
seat covers, seat mechanisms and other compomergkipped to these plants from the business’syataxh facilities or outside
suppliers.
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Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive OEMs hadbdtttery aftermarket by providing energy stortegénology, coupled with
systems engineering, marketing and service expeifise Company is the largest producer of lead-aeidmotive batteries in the
world, producing and distributing approximately 188lion lead-acid batteries annually in approxiglgt60 wholly- and majority-
owned manufacturing or assembly plants and safeesfin 15 countries worldwide. Investments in rawduct and process technol
have expanded product offerings to absorbent gles{AGM) technology that powers Start-Stop veliachs well as lithiunien battery
technology for certain hybrid and electric vehiclapproximately 77% of unit sales worldwide in #8012 were to the automotive
replacement market, with the remaining sales taXB& market.

Power Solutions accounted for 14% of the Compafigtal 2012 consolidated net sales. Batterieskagdcomponents are manufactu
at wholly- and majority-owned plants in North Ane&j South America, Asia and Europe.

Competition
Building Efficiency

The Building Efficiency business conducts certdiitooperations through thousands of individualtcacts that are either negotiated or
awarded on a competitive basis. Key factors irativard of contracts include system and service padaoce, quality, price, design,
reputation, technology, application engineeringatslity and construction or project management etigge2 Competitors for contracts
the residential and non-residential marketplackide many regional, national and international pexs; larger competitors include
Honeywell International, Inc.; Siemens Building heologies, an operating group of Siemens AG; Sclandtlectric SA; Carrier
Corporation, a subsidiary of United Technologiesg@oation; Trane Incorporated, a subsidiary of lsg-Rand Company Limited;
Daikin Industries, Ltd.; Lennox International, InGoodman Global, Inc; CBRE, Inc.; and Jones Laa§adlle, Inc. The services market,
including Global Workplace Solutions, is highlydraented. Sales of services are largely dependem mpmerous individual contracts
with commercial businesses worldwide. The lossmyfiadividual contract would not have a materiakade effect on the Company.

Automotive Experience

The Automotive Experience business faces compaetitimm other automotive suppliers and, with respeatertain products, from the
automobile OEMs who produce or have the capahifgroduce certain products the business supfltes automotive supply industry
competes on the basis of technology, quality, béits of supply and price. Design, engineering gndduct planning are increasingly
important factors. Independent suppliers that mgwethe principal automotive experience competitoclude Lear Corporation,
Faurecia SA and Magna International Inc.

Power Solutions

Power Solutions is the principal supplier of bagteto many of the largest merchants in the batfigrmarket, including Advance Auto
Parts, AutoZone, Robert Bosch GmbH, Costco, NAPRaDly/CSK, Interstate Battery System of Ameri€ep Boys, Sears,

Roebuck & Co. and Wal-Mart stores. Automotive bidteare sold throughout the world under privabels and under the Company’s
brand names (Optinfa , Vata , LTH and Hefiar )utoanotive replacement battery retailers and distdls and to automobile
manufacturers as original equipment. The Powert®olsi business competes with a number of major démand international
manufacturers and distributors of lead-acid batteras well as a large number of smaller, regioopetitors. The Power Solutions
business primarily competes in the battery mark#t xide Technologies, GS Yuasa Corporation, Pasin Manufacturing Company
and Fiamm Group. The North American, European asidilead-acid battery markets are highly competitihe manufacturers in
these markets compete on price, quality, techimicalvation, service and warranty.

Backlog

The Company’s backlog relating to the Building Eifincy business is applicable to its sales of systend services. At September 30,
2012, the backlog was $5.2 billion, the majorityndfich relates to fiscal 2013. The backlog as gft&aber 30, 2011 was $5.1 billion.
The increase in backlog was primarily due to masketre gains and conditions in Asia, partially efffsy a decline in the North Ameri
Service segment. The backlog does not include ate@asociated with contracts in the Global Workl8olutions business because
such contracts are
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typically multi-year service awards, nor does dlirde unitary products within the Other segment Bhcklog amount outstanding at
any given time is not necessarily indicative of #meount of revenue to be earned in the upcominglfigear.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the businesses in connegttbrtheir operations, including lead, steel, ailyminum, urethane chemicals,
copper, sulfuric acid and polypropylene, were rigaalvailable during the year, and the Company etgosiech availability to continue.
fiscal 2013, commodity prices could fluctuate ttgbaut the year and could significantly affect thsults of operations.

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory protectostrategic or financially important intellectyabperty developed in connection
with its business. Certain intellectual propertjene appropriate, is protected by contracts, liegnsonfidentiality or other agreements.

The Company owns numerous U.S. and non-U.S. pai@mdstheir respective counterparts), the more nmapb of which cover those
technologies and inventions embodied in currentipets or which are used in the manufacture of tiposducts. While the Company
believes patents are important to its businessatipes and in the aggregate constitute a valuasetano single patent, or group of
patents, is critical to the success of the busiriBss Company, from time to time, grants licensedan its patents and technology and
receives licenses under patents and technologthefs

The Company'’s trademarks, certain of which are riadt® its business, are registered or othervasgally protected in the U.S. and
many non-U.S. countries where products and sergtd®e Company are sold. The Company, from timtéinte, becomes involved in
trademark licensing transactions.

Most works of authorship produced for the Compagh as computer programs, catalogs and salestliter carry appropriate notices
indicating the Company’s claim to copyright protestunder U.S. law and appropriate internationedties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the environmenvifonmental laws) and workers’ safety and he@ltbrker safety laws) govern the
Company’s ongoing global operations. They genegaibvide for civil and criminal penalties, as wadl injunctive and remedial relief,
for noncompliance or require remediation of sitéere Company-related materials have been releagethe environment.

The Company has expended substantial resourceallgldoth financial and managerial, to comply wéthivironmental laws and worl
safety laws and maintains procedures designedsterfand ensure compliance. Certain of the Comgamysinesses are, or have been,
engaged in the handling or use of substances thatimpact workplace health and safety or the emarent. The Company is
committed to protecting its workers and the envinent against the risks associated with these suiesta

The Company’s operations and facilities have basad,in the future may become, the subject of formn@hformal enforcement actions
or proceedings for noncompliance with environmelatais and worker safety laws or for the remediatb@ompanyrelated substanc
released into the environment. Such matters tylpieaé resolved by negotiation with regulatory awities that result in commitments
compliance, abatement or remediation programsiarshme cases, payment of penalties. Historicalijther such commitments nor
such penalties have been material. (See Iltem 3jdilleroceedings,” of this report for a discussibthe Company’s potential
environmental liabilities.)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Company’s ongoing environmental compliance gwgoften results in capital expenditures. Envirental considerations are a

part of all significant capital expenditure decigphowever, expenditures in fiscal 2012 relatdelgdo environmental compliance we
not material. It is management’s opinion that theant of any future capital expenditures relatddlgdao environmental compliance

will not have a material adverse effect on the Canys financial results or competitive positionainy one year.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2012, the Company employedoappately 170,000 employees, of whom approximat&€ly,000 were hourly and
63,000 were salaried.

Seasonal Factors

Certain of Building Efficiency’s sales are seasamthe demand for residential air conditioningigepent generally increases in the
summer months. This seasonality is mitigated byother products and services provided by the Bugjdifficiency business that have
no material seasonal effect.

Sales of automotive seating and interior systendsofibatteries to automobile OEMs for use as oabaguipment are dependent upon
the demand for new automobiles. Management beligaasiemand for new automobiles generally refleetssitivity to overall
economic conditions with no material seasonal &ffec

The automotive replacement battery market is affibbly weather patterns because batteries are ikehetb fail when extremely low
temperatures place substantial additional powarireaents upon a vehicle’s electrical system. Atsitery life is shortened by
extremely high temperatures, which accelerate s@mmnorates. Therefore, either mild winter or moteesummer temperatures may
adversely affect automotive replacement batteryssal

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 18, “Segment Information,” of thee®to consolidated financial statements for finalnciformation about geographic
areas.

Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant AccountiRglicies,” of the notes to consolidated finansiatements for research and
development expenditures.

Available Information

The Company'’s filings with the U.S. Securities &athange Commission (SEC), including annual repmitEorm 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statememsSehedule 14A, current reports on Form 8-K, andaanendments to those reports
filed pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the SamsgiExchange Act of 1934, are made availabledfemarge through the Investor
Relations section of the Company’s Internet welssifettp://www.johnsoncontrols.coas soon as reasonably practicable after the
Company electronically files such material with famishes it to, the SEC. Copies of any matetiaésCompany files with the SEC can
also be obtained free of charge through the SE@issite at http://www.sec.gqwat the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Stree
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, or by calling the 3EQffice of Investor Education and Advocacy atd087/32-0330. The Company
also makes available, free of charge, its Ethid&y,dCorporate Governance Guidelines, Board okBiors committee charters and
other information related to the Company on the Gany’s Internet website or in printed form uponuest. The Company is not
including the information contained on the Companykbsite as a part of, or incorporating it by mefiee into, this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS
General Risks

General economic, credit and capital market conditins could adversely affect our financial performane, may affect our ability
to grow or sustain our businesses and could negagily affect our ability to access the capital markest.

We compete around the world in various geograpggions and product markets. Global economic carditaffect each of our three
primary businesses. As we discuss in greater dattik specific risk factors for each of our besises that appear below, any future
financial distress in the automotive industry @gidential and commercial construction markets codatively affect our revenues and
financial performance in future periods, resulfuture restructuring charges, and adversely impactbility to grow or sustain our
businesses.

The capital and credit markets provide us withitiify to operate and grow our businesses beyondighility that operating cash flov
provide. A worldwide economic downturn and disroptof the credit markets could reduce

7
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our access to capital necessary for our operatindsexecuting our strategic plan. If our accesaital were to become significantly
constrained or costs of capital increased signitigadue to lowered credit ratings, prevailing isthy conditions, the volatility of the
capital markets or other factors, then our finalnoiadition, results of operations and cash flowsld be adversely affected. The
Company'’s $2.5 billion four-year revolving crediicflity expires in February 2015. The Company plansenew the facility prior to its
expiration.

We are subject to pricing pressure from our automate customers.

We face significant competitive pressures in albof business segments. Because of their purchagiegour automotive customers
influence market participants to compete on prieens. If we are not able to offset pricing redutsioesulting from these pressures by
improved operating efficiencies and reduced exganes, those pricing reductions may have an adversact on our business.

We are subject to risks associated with our non-U.®perations that could adversely affect our resudt of operations.

We have significant operations in a number of coestoutside the U.S., some of which are locatezhilerging markets. Long-term
economic uncertainty in some of the regions ofwilbeld in which we operate, such as Asia, South Acaethe Middle East, Central
Europe and other emerging markets, could restitardisruption of markets and negatively affechdé®ws from our operations to
cover our capital needs and debt service. The smredebt crisis in countries in which we operat&urope could negatively impact
our access to, and cost of, capital, and therefouéd have an adverse effect on our business tsesfubperations, financial condition
and competitive position.

In addition, as a result of our global presencggaificant portion of our revenues and expensegimminated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar. We are therefore subject to fareigrrency risks and foreign exchange exposure. p@orary exposures are to the euro,
British pound, Japanese yen, Czech koruna, Mexiean, Romanian lei, Hungarian forint, Polish zl@gnadian dollar and Chinese
renminbi. While we employ financial instrumentdiedge transactional foreign exchange exposureg thasvities do not insulate us
completely from those exposures. Exchange ratebeamwlatile and could adversely impact our finahoesults and comparability of
results from period to period. Specifically, theseoncern regarding the overall stability of thweaeand the future of the euro as a single
currency given the diverse economic and politid@immstances in individual Eurozone countries. Rid¢negative developments and
market perceptions related to the euro could adixeedfect the value of our euro-denominated assstsvell as those of our customers
and suppliers.

There are other risks that are inherent in our dd®-operations, including the potential for chanifesocio-economic conditions, laws
and regulations, including import, export, labod amvironmental laws, and monetary and fiscal pesicprotectionist measures that
may prohibit acquisitions or joint ventures, or maptrade volumes; unsettled political conditiog@yernment-imposed plant or other
operational shutdowns; corruption; natural and mmele disasters, hazards and losses; violenceaaidilabor unrest, and possible
terrorist attacks.

These and other factors may have a material adeéfeset on our non-U.S. operations and thereforewrbusiness and results of
operations.

We are subject to regulation of our international gerations that could adversely affect our businesand results of operations.

Due to our global operations, we are subject toynbaws governing international relations, includihgse that prohibit improper
payments to government officials and commerciatamsrs, and restrict where we can do business, wftamation or products we ¢
supply to certain countries and what informationoaa provide to a non-U.S. government, includingriat limited to the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, U.K. Bribery Act and the UEXport Administration Act. Violations of thesens, which are complex, may res
in criminal penalties or sanctions that could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, finaooiadition and results of operations.

Global climate change could negatively affect ourusiness.

Increased public awareness and concern regardihglgtlimate change may result in more regional@rféderal requirements to
reduce or mitigate the effects of greenhouse gasse@ns. There continues to be a lack of consistiémite legislation, which creates
economic and regulatory uncertainty. Such regwatocertainty extends to future incentives for ggeafficient buildings and vehicles
and costs of compliance, which may impact the dehfanour products, obsolescence of our produatiscam results of operations.
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There is a growing consensus that greenhouse gasiens are linked to global climate changes. Cléenthanges, such as extreme
weather conditions, create financial risk to ousibass. For example, the demand for our productservices, such as residential air
conditioning equipment and automotive replacemettebes, may be affected by unseasonable weatielitons. Climate changes
could also disrupt our operations by impactingatailability and cost of materials needed for maotifring and could increase
insurance and other operating costs. These factaysimpact our decisions to construct new facgitie maintain existing facilities in
areas most prone to physical climate risks. The o could also face indirect financial risks pastheough the supply chain, and
process disruptions due to physical climate chaogakl result in price modifications for our protkiand the resources needed to
produce them.

New regulations related to conflict minerals couldadversely impact our business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act contains provisions to improve transpayeand accountability
concerning the supply of certain minerals, knowe@¥lict minerals, originating from the Democraepublic of Congo (DRC) and
adjoining countries. As a result, in August 201@ 8EC adopted annual disclosure and reporting negents for those companies who
use conflict minerals mined from the DRC and adi@rcountries in their products. These new requiets will require due diligence
efforts in fiscal 2013, with initial disclosure ngigements beginning in May 2014. There will be sastsociated with complying with
these disclosure requirements, including for diligeeto determine the sources of conflict mineraksduin our products and other
potential changes to products, processes or soofeegply as a consequence of such verificatitivides. The implementation of
these rules could adversely affect the sourcingplsuand pricing of materials used in our produgis there may be only a limited
number of suppliers offering “conflict fre€bnflict minerals, we cannot be sure that we walldble to obtain necessary conflict mine
from such suppliers in sufficient quantities ocamnpetitive prices. Also, we may face reputatiariallenges if we determine that
certain of our products contain minerals not debeeth to be conflict free or if we are unable tofigigntly verify the origins for all
conflict minerals used in our products throughpih@cedures we may implement.

We are subject to requirements relating to environrental regulation and environmental remediation maters, which could
adversely affect our business and results of opeianhs.

Because of uncertainties associated with enviromaheggulation and environmental remediation atiegiat sites where we may be
liable, future expenses that we may incur to reateddentified sites could be considerably highantthe current accrued liability on
our consolidated statement of financial positiohjoll could have a material adverse effect on osimmss and results of operations.

Risks related to our defined benefit retirement plas may adversely impact our results of operationsral cash flow.

Significant changes in actual investment returmefined benefit plan assets, discount rates, ametr dactors could adversely affect our
results of operations and the amounts of contidmstive must make to our defined benefit plans turéuperiods. U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles require that weutale income or expense for the plans using actinaiuations. These valuations
reflect assumptions about financial markets aner@st rates, which may change based on economititicors. Funding requirements
for our defined benefit plans are dependent upororg other things, interest rates, underlying agtatns and the impact of legislative
or regulatory changes related to defined benefitliiug obligations. For a discussion regarding tgeiicant assumptions used to
determine net periodic benefit cost, refer to “iCat Accounting Estimates and Policies” includedtam 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations.”

Negative or unexpected tax consequences could adsely affect our results of operations.

Adverse changes in the underlying profitability dim&ncial outlook of our operations in severaigdictions could lead to changes in
our valuation allowances against deferred tax ass®d other tax reserves on our statement of fiabpasition that could materially a
adversely affect our results of operations. Additity, changes in tax laws in the U.S. or in otb@untries where we have significant
operations could materially affect deferred taxetsand liabilities on our consolidated stateméffinancial position and tax expense.

We are also subject to tax audits by governmentifagities in the U.S. and in non-U.S. jurisdicBoiegative unexpected results from
one or more such tax audits could adversely affactresults of operations.
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Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a parmay adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become stlbgelegal proceedings and commercial or contaalisputes. These are typically
claims that arise in the normal course of busimesdsding, without limitation, commercial or conttaal disputes with our suppliers,
intellectual property matters, third party liahjiliincluding product liability claims and employntetaims. There exists the possibility
that such claims may have an adverse impact oresuits of operations that is greater than we gatie.

An investigation by the European Commission (EGQtesl to European lead recyclers’ procurement fmegis currently underway,
with the Company one of several named companiggeauio review. The Company cannot predict themate financial impact, as the
investigation is at a very preliminary stage. Wé# wantinue to cooperate with the EC in their inNggtion and monitor related
commercial and financial implications, if any. TBempany’s policy is to comply with antitrust anchgoetition laws and, if a violation
of any such laws is found, to take appropriate diai@ction and to cooperate fully with any relatgavernmental inquiry. Competition
and antitrust law investigations may continue fresal years and can result in substantial fingg@ing on the gravity and duration
the violations.

A downgrade in the ratings of our debt could restret our ability to access the debt capital marketsrad increase our interest cost:

Changes in the ratings that rating agencies assigar debt may ultimately impact our access todtblet capital markets and the costs
we incur to borrow funds. If ratings for our debll below investment grade, our access to the cglital markets would become
restricted. Tightening in the credit markets areldduced level of liquidity in many financial mat& due to turmoil in the financial a
banking industries could affect our access to #t# dapital markets or the price we pay to issux. ddistorically, we have relied on o
ability to issue commercial paper rather than soadon our credit facility to support our daily opgons, which means that a downgrade
in our ratings or continued volatility in the fingial markets causing limitations to the debt cdpitarkets could have an adverse effect
on our business or our ability to meet our liquidieeds.

Additionally, several of our credit agreements gatg include an increase in interest rates ifridwngs for our debt are downgraded.
Further, an increase in the level of our indebtedmeay increase our vulnerability to adverse gémemomic and industry conditions
and may affect our ability to obtain additionalditing.

We are subject to potential insolvency or financiatistress of third parties.

We are exposed to the risk that third parties tioua arrangements who owe us money or goods awniteg, or who purchase goods
and services from us, will not be able to perfoneirt obligations or continue to place orders dumsolvency or financial distress. If
third parties fail to perform their obligations w@rdarrangements with us, we may be forced to replae underlying commitment at
current or above market prices or on other terrasdte less favorable to us. In such events, weintay losses, or our results of
operations, financial position or liquidity coultherwise be adversely affected.

We may be unable to complete or integrate acquisins effectively, which may adversely affect our grath, profitability and
results of operations.

We expect acquisitions of businesses and assptayta role in our future growth. We cannot be a@erthat we will be able to identify
attractive acquisition targets, obtain financingdoquisitions on satisfactory terms, successftiguire identified targets or manage
timing of acquisitions with capital obligations ass our businesses. Additionally, we may not beessful in integrating acquired
businesses into our existing operations and aaigewiojected synergies. Competition for acquisitiportunities in the various
industries in which we operate may rise, thereleydasing our costs of making acquisitions or capamto refrain from making further
acquisitions. We are also subject to applicablérast laws and must avoid anticompetitive behavidrese and other acquisitioalatec
factors may negatively and adversely impact ountfipprofitability and results of operations.

We are subject to business continuity risks assod¢ed with centralization of certain administrative functions.

We have been and are in the process of regionafiyralizing certain administrative functions, priihain North America, Europe and
Asia, to improve efficiency and reduce costs. T@dktent that these central locations are disruptelilsabled, key business processes,
such as invoicing, payments and general managemspenations, could be interrupted.
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A failure of our information technology (IT) infras tructure could adversely impact our business and ggrations.

We rely upon the capacity, reliability and secudfyour information technology infrastructure and ability to expand and continually
update this infrastructure in response to the cimgngeeds of our business. For example, we arecimghting new enterprise resource
planning and other IT systems in certain of ouritesses over a period of several years. As we imghé the new systems, they may
not perform as expected. We also face the challehgapporting our older systems and implementiecessary upgrades. If we
experience a problem with the functioning of anamant IT system or a security breach of our ITtayss, the resulting disruptions
could have an adverse effect on our business.

We and certain of our third-party vendors receine store personal information in connection with lbuman resources operations and
other aspects of our business. Despite our implétien of security measures, our IT systems araerable to damages from computer
viruses, natural disasters, unauthorized accebsy @ttack and other similar disruptions. Any sysfeilure, accident or security breach
could result in disruptions to our operations. At@nal network breach in the security of our ITteyss could include the theft of our
intellectual property or trade secrets. To the mixtieat any disruptions or security breach redaltsloss or damage to our data, or an
inappropriate disclosure of confidential informatiét could cause significant damage to our repanagffect our relationships with our
customers, lead to claims against the Company Himdately harm our business. In addition, we maydspiired to incur significant
costs to protect against damage caused by thasgptiiss or security breaches in the future.

Our business success depends on attracting and retang qualified personnel.

Our ability to sustain and grow our business rezpiirs to hire, retain and develop a highly skiflad diverse management team and
workforce. Failure to ensure that we have the lesdde capacity with the necessary skill set andeeiemce could impede our ability to
deliver our growth objectives and execute our sgiatplan. Any unplanned turnover or inability ttract and retain key employees
could have a negative effect on our results of aipens.

Building Efficiency Risks

Failure to comply with regulations due to our contiacts with U.S. government entities could adversebffect our business and
results of operations.

Our Building Efficiency business contracts with gavment entities and is subject to specific rulegulations and approvals applicable
to government contractors. We are subject to reuindits by the Defense Contract Audit Agency sussour compliance with these
requirements. Our failure to comply with these threo laws and regulations could result in conttaghinations, suspension or
debarment from contracting with the U.S. federalegoment, civil fines and damages and criminal @cagon. In addition, changes in
procurement policies, budget considerations, unetegel.S. developments, such as terrorist attackamilar political developments
events abroad that may change the U.S. federalgoent’s national security defense posture maycaffales to government entities.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Increases in commodity costs negatively impacptioditability of orders in backlog as prices ons$bmrders are fixed; therefore, in the
short-term we cannot adjust for changes in commqatites. If we are not able to recover commoddgténcreases through price
increases to our customers on new orders, thenisaadases will have an adverse effect on our testfiloperations. Additionally,
unfavorability in our hedging programs during aipef declining commodity prices could result awler margins as we reduce prices
to match the market on a fixed commodity cost level

Conditions in the residential and commercial new aostruction markets may adversely affect our resultof operations.

HVAC equipment sales in the residential and commenew construction markets correlate to the nunab@ew homes and buildings
that are built. The strength of the residential eachmercial markets depends in part on the aviéitlabf consumer and commercial
financing for our customers, along with inventondaricing of existing homes and buildings. If ecoric and credit market conditions
worsen, it may result in a decline in the residanti
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housing construction market and construction of temmercial buildings. Such conditions could hawedverse effect on our results
of operations and result in potential liabilitiesaalditional costs, including impairment charges.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Building Efficiencybusiness.

Any of the following could materially and adverséhypact the results of operations of our Buildinfjdiency business: loss of, chang
in, or failure to perform under facility managemenpply contracts or other guaranteed performaan&acts with our major custome
cancellation of, or significant delays in, projeictour backlog; delays or difficulties in new prad development; the potential
introduction of similar or superior technologiesiancial instability or market declines of our magemponent suppliers; the
unavailability of raw materials (primarily steebmper and electronic components) necessary fougtmoh of HYAC equipment; price
increases of limited-source components, produalssarvices that we are unable to pass on to thkeamseasonable weather
conditions in various parts of the world; changesnergy costs or governmental regulations thaidvdecrease the incentive for
customers to update or improve their building colrgystems; revisions to energy efficiency legisiata decline in the outsourcing of
facility management services; availability of lalborsupport growth of our service businesses; atdral or man-made disasters or
losses that impact our ability to deliver facilihanagement and other products and services taustoroers.

Automotive Experience Risks

Conditions in the automotive industry may adversehaffect our results of operations.

Our financial performance depends, in part, on @@t in the automotive industry. In fiscal 2012y largest customers globally were
automobile manufacturers Ford Motor Company (Fdb@imler AG and General Motors Corporation (GM)alftomakers experience a
decline in the number of new vehicle sales, we m@erience reductions in orders from these custenmerur write-offs of accounts
receivable, incur impairment charges or requiratamthl restructuring actions beyond our curremstmgcturing plans, particularly if any
of the automakers cannot adequately fund theiragjmers or experience financial distress.

Uncertainty related to the economic conditions in Brope may adversely affect our results of operation

Automakers across Europe are experiencing diffesifrom a weakened economy and tightening credikats. As a result, we have
experienced and may continue to experience recwgctioorders from these OEM customers. A prolord@anturn in the European
automotive industry or a significant change in pretdmix due to consumer demand could require shtd down additional plants or
result in additional impairment charges, restruntyactions or changes in our valuation allowaraggsnst deferred tax assets, which
could be material to our consolidated financialesteents. Continued uncertainty relating to the eosin conditions in Europe may
continue to have an adverse impact on our business.

Financial distress of the automotive supply chainauld harm our results of operations.

Automotive industry conditions could adversely affthe original equipment supplier base. Lower paiithn levels for key customers,
increases in certain raw material, commodity aretgncosts and global credit market conditions d@@asult in financial distress amc
many companies within the automotive supply bas®ri€ial distress within the supplier base may teacbmmercial disputes and
possible supply chain interruptions, which in taould disrupt our production. In addition, an adeeindustry environment may require
us to provide financial support to distressed siepplor take other measures to ensure uninterryptatliction, which could involve
additional costs or risks. If any of these riskdemnalize, we are likely to incur losses, or owsukts of operations, financial position or
liquidity could otherwise be adversely affected.

Change in consumer demand may adversely affect ovesults of operations.

Increases in energy costs or other factors (dimate change concerns) may shift consumer demaagt #om motor vehicles that
typically have higher interior content that we slypguch as light trucks, cross-over vehicles, wans and SUVs, to smaller vehicles
having less interior content. The loss of busiveiis respect to, or a lack of commercial succes®é or more particular vehicle
models for which we are a significant supplier codduce our sales and harm our profitability, ébgradversely affecting our results
operations.
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We may not be able to successfully negotiate prianerms with our customers in the Automotive Expetence business, which me
adversely affect our results of operations.

We negotiate sales prices annually with our autoraatustomers. Cost-cutting initiatives that oustauners have adopted generally
result in increased downward pressure on pricingoime cases our customer supply agreements regdiretions in component prici
over the period of production. If we are unablgémerate sufficient production cost savings infttiere to offset price reductions, our
results of operations may be adversely affectegahticular, large commercial settlements with customers may adversely affect our
results of operations or cause our financial redolivary on a quarterly basis.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Commodity prices can be volatile from year to yéfacommodity prices rise, and if we are not aldedcover these cost increases from
our customers, these increases will have an adeéfieset on our results of operations.

The cyclicality of original equipment automobile production rates may adversely affect the results afperations in our
Automotive Experience business.

Our Automotive Experience business is directlyteslado automotive production by our customers. Mgtive production and sales are
highly cyclical and depend on general economic @ and other factors, including consumer speg@ind preferences. An
economic decline that results in a reduction iengtive production by our Automotive Experiencetousers could have a material
adverse impact on our results of operations.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Automotive Experieoe business.

Any of the following could materially and adversahypact the results of operations of our Automotts@erience business: the loss of,
or changes in, automobile supply contracts or sogrstrategies with our major customers or supgjistartup expenses associated v
new vehicle programs or delays or cancellatiorsugh programs; underutilization of our manufactyffiacilities, which are generally
located near, and devoted to, a particular custsrfeility; inability to recover engineering andling costs; market and financial
consequences of any recalls that may be requirgutamfucts that we have supplied; delays or diffiealin new product development;
guantity and complexity of new program launchesiciiare subject to our customers’ timing, perforoggrdesign and quality
standards; interruption of supply of certain sirg@irce components; the potential introductioniwiflar or superior technologies;
changing nature of our joint ventures and relatiguswith our strategic business partners; andajlobercapacity and vehicle platform
proliferation.

Power Solutions Risks

We face competition and pricing pressure from othecompanies in the Power Solutions business.

Our Power Solutions business competes with a nuofia@ajor domestic and international manufactueers distributors of lead-acid
batteries, as well as a large number of smallgioral competitors. The North American, Europeath Asian lead-acid battery markets
are highly competitive. The manufacturers in thesekets compete on price, quality, technical iniova service and warranty. If we
are unable to remain competitive and maintain ntaskare in the regions and markets we serve, suitseof operations may be
adversely affected.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Lead is a major component of our lead-acid battedad the price of lead may be highly volatile. &tempt to manage the impact of
changing lead prices through the recycling of Usateries returned to us by our aftermarket custspg®mmercial terms and
commodity hedging programs. Our ability to mitigtte impact of lead price changes can be impaoteddny factors, including
customer negotiations, inventory level fluctuatiamsl sales volume/mix changes, any of which coaldelan adverse effect on our
results of operations.

Additionally, the prices of other commodities, party fuel, acid, resin and tin, may be volatileother commodity prices rise, and if
we are not able to recover these cost increasesghrprice increases to our customers, such ineseadl have an adverse effect on our
results of operations. Moreover, the implementatibany price increases to our customers could thedla impact demand for our
products.
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Decreased demand from our customers in the automet industry may adversely affect our results of opations.

Our financial performance in the Power Solutionsibess depends, in part, on conditions in the aotiemindustry. Sales to OEMs
accounted for approximately 23% of the total safethe Power Solutions business in fiscal 2012.libes in the North American and
European automotive production levels could reduaesales and adversely affect our results of djpera In addition, if any OEMs
reach a point where they cannot fund their opematisre may incur write-offs of accounts receivabieur impairment charges or
require additional restructuring actions beyond @murent restructuring plans.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Power Solutions birsess.

Any of the following could materially and adverséhypact the results of operations of our Power amhs business: loss of, or changes
in, automobile battery supply contracts with oug&original equipment and aftermarket customéuesjricreasing quality and useful |
of batteries or use of alternative battery techgiels, both of which may contribute to a growth glown in the leadicid battery marke
delays or cancellations of new vehicle programsketaand financial consequences of any recallsrttaat be required on our products;
delays or difficulties in new product development|uding lithium-ion technology; impact of poteaitincreases in lithium-ion battery
volumes on established lead-acid battery volumdithéism-ion battery technology grows and costsdyee more competitive; financial
instability or market declines of our customerswppliers; interruption of supply of certain singleurce components; changing nature
of our joint ventures and relationships with owattgic business partners; unseasonable weathéitioos in various parts of the worl
increasing global environmental and safety regotetirelated to the manufacturing and recyclingeatitacid batteries, and
transportation of battery materials; our abilityscure sufficient tolling capacity to recycle bats; price and availability of battery
cores used in recycling; and the lack of the dgulent of a market for hybrid and electric vehicles.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
The Company has no unresolved written commentsdeggits periodic or current reports from the stdfthe SEC.
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At September 30, 2012, the Company conducted #satijpns in 67 countries throughout the world, vitishworld headquarters located
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- amdjority-owned facilities, which are listed in tteble on the following pages by
business and location, totaled approximately 88anilsquare feet of floor space and are owned byGbmpany except as noted. The

facilities primarily consisted of manufacturingsambly and/or warehouse space. The Company cossidéacilities to be suitable and
adequate for their current uses. The majority efftitilities are operating at normal levels basedapacity.

Building Efficiency

Arizona Phoenix (1),(4 Austria Vienna (4)
California Fremont (1),(4 Belgium Diegem (1),(4
Roseville (1),(4, Brazil Pinhais (1),(4
Simi Valley (1),(4) Canade Ajax (1),(3)
Whittier (4) Oakville (1),(4)
Delaware Newark (1),(4) Victoria (1),(4)
Florida Largo (1),(3) China Beijing (1),(4)
Medley (1),(4) Dalian (1),(4)
Georgia Atlanta (1),(4) Guangzhou (1),(4
lllinois Arlington Heights (4 Qingyuan (2),(3
Elmhurst (1),(4. Wuxi (2),(3)
Wheeling (1),(4 Denmark Hornslet (2),(4
Kansas Lenexa (1),(4 Viby (2),(3)
Wichita (2),(3) France Carquefou Cedex (:
Kentucky Erlanger (1 Colombes (1),(3
Louisville (1),(4) Nantes (1,
Maryland Baltimore (1),(4) Germany Essen (1),(3
Capitol Heights (1),(4 Flensburg (1
Rossville (1) Hamburg (1),(3
Sparks (1),(4 Kempen (1
Massachuseti Lynnfield (4) Mannheim (1),(3
Michigan Sterling Heights (1),(4 Hong Kong Hong Kong (2),(3
Minnesots Plymouth (1),(4 India Chakan (1),(3
Mississippi Hattiesburg (1 Pune (1),(3
Missouri Albany Italy Milan (1),(3)
St. Louis (1),(4 Japar Tokyo (1),(4)
New Jerse! Hainesport (1),(4 Mexico Apodaca (1
North Caroline Charlotte (1),(4 Duranga
Oregon Portland (1),(4 Juarez (3
Oklahoma Norman (3) Monterrey (1),(3
Pennsylvani: Audubon (1),(4 Reynosa (3
York (1) Netherlands Dordrecht (3]
Waynesboro (3 Gorinchem (1),(3
Texas Houston (1),(4 Poland Warsaw (1),(3
Irving (4) Russia Moscow (1),(3)
San Antonic South Africa Johannesburg (1),(:
Washingtor Fife (1),(4) Spain Sabadell (1),(3
Wisconsin Milwaukee (2),(4) Turkey Manisa (1)

Waukesha (1),(4
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Automotive Experience

Alabama

Georgia
lllinois

Indiana
Kentucky

Louisiana
Michigan

Missouri

Ohio

Tennesse

Texas

Calera (1,
Clanton
Cottondale
Eastabog;
McCalla (1)
LaGrange (1
West Point (1
Chicago (1,
Sycamore
Kendallville
Cadiz
Georgetown (2
Louisville (1)
Owensboro (1
Shelbyville (1)
Winchester (1
Shrevepor
Auburn Hills (1)
Battle Creek
Cascade (1
Croswell (1)
Detroit
Highland Park (1
Holland (2),(3)
Kentwood (1)
Lansing (2)
Monroe (1)
Port Huron (1
Plymouth (2),(4
Romulus (1)
Taylor (1)

Troy (1)
Warren (1)
Eldon (2)
Kansas City (1
Riverside (1,
Bryan
Greenfield
Northwood
Wauseor
Columbia (1)
Franklin
Murfreesboro (2
Pulaski (1)

El Paso (1
San Antonio (1
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Argentina

Australia
Austria

Belgium

Brazil

Bulgaria
Canade

China

Czech Republi

France

Buenos Aires (1
Cordoba (1.

Rosaria

Adelaide (1)

Graz (1)

Mandling

Assenede (1

Geel (1),(4)
Gravatai

Pouso Alegre
Quatro Barras (2
San Bernardo do Cam|
Santo Andre (1

Sao Jose dos Camp
Sao Jose dos Pinhais |
Sofia (1),(4)

Milton

Mississauga (1
Tillsonburg

Whitby (2)

Beijing (3)

Kunshan (1),(3
Shanghai (1),(3
Shenyang (1),(3
Benatky (1)

Ceska Lipa (4
Mlada Boleslav (1
Roudnice

Rychnov (1)
Strakonice

Straz pod Ralskel
Cergy (1),(4)
Conflan-sur-Lanterne
Creutzwald
Fesche-le-Chatel (1)
La Ferte Bernar
Rosny

Strasbour
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Automotive Experience (continued)

Germany

Italy

Japar

Korea

Macedonie
Malaysia

Mexico

Boblingen (1) Poland
Bochum (2)

Bremen (1

Burscheid (2),(4

Dautphe (2

Espelkamg Portugal
Grefrath Republic of Slovenii
Hannover (1

Hilchenbach (2 Romanis
Holzgerlingen (1

Kaiserslauteri

Karlsruhe (1),(4

Luneburg

Mannweiler (1)

Markgroningen (1

Neustad Russia
Rastatt (1,

Remscheid (1 Slovak Republic
Rockenhause

Saarlouis (1

Solingen

Uberherrr

Waghausel (3

Zwickau

Grugliasco (1 South Africa
Melfi

Ogliastro Cilentc

Rocca ['Evandra

Ayase (1)

Hamamatsi

Higashiomi

Shibahara (3 Spain
Yokohama (1),(4

Yokosuka (2

Ansan (1),(4.

Asan

Skopje

Melaka (1)

Pekan (1 Sweder
Perak Darul Redzuan ( Thailand
Selangor Darul Ehse

Coahuila (1 Tunesia
Ecapetec Edo (1 Turkey
Juarez (2

Lerma (1) United Kingdom
Matamaros (1

Monclova

Puebla (2]

Ramos Arizpe

Reynosa (1

Saltillo (2)

Tlaxcala

Toluca (1)
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Bierun
Siemianowice
Skarbimierz (1,
Swiebodzir
Zory

Palmela

Novo Mesto (1.
Slovenj Gradec (3
Bradu

Craiova (1)
Jimbolia (1)
Mioveni (1)
Pitesti (1)
Ploesti
Timisoara (1)
St. Petersburg (!
Togliatti (1)
Bratislava (1),(4
Kostany nad Turcom (z
Lozorno (1)
Lucenec (2
Namestovo (1
Trencin (1)
Zilina (2)
Chloorkop (1)
East London (1
Korsten
Pretoria
Swartkops (1
Uitenhage (1
Wynberg (1)
Abrera

Alagon
Almussafes (2
Calatorao (1
Pedrols
Redondela (1
Valladolid
Goteburg (1,
Chonburi (1)
Rayong

Bi'r al Bay (1)
Bursa (2)
Kocaeli
Birmingham
Burtor-Upor-Trent
Ellesmere (1
Garston (1
Sunderlanc
Telford (1)
Wednesbun
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Power Solutions

Arizona Yuma (3) Austria Graz (1)
Delaware Middletown (3) Vienna (1)
Florida Tampa (3] Brazil Sorocaba (3
lllinois Geneva (3 China Changxing (3
Indiana Ft. Wayne (3 Chongging (3
lowa Red Oak (3 Shanghai (2),(3
Kentucky Florence (1),(3 Czech Republi Ceska Lipa (2),(3
Michigan Holland (3) France Nersac (1),(4
Missouri St. Joseph (2),(< Rouen
North Caroline Kernersville (3) Sarreguemines (
Ohio Toledo (3) Germany Hannover (3
Oregon Portland (2),(3 Krautscheid (3
South Carolini Florence (3 Zwickau (2),(3)
Oconee (3 Korea Gumi (2),(3)

Texas San Antonio (3 Mexico Celaya
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4) Cienega de Flores (.

Escobedc

Flores

Garcia

San Pedro (1),(«
Tlalnepantla (1),(4
Torreon

Spain Burgos
Guadamar del Segu
Guadalajara (1
Ibi (3)

Sweder Hultsfred

Corporate

Wisconsin Milwaukee (4)

(1) Leased facility

(2) Includes both leased and owned facilii

(3) Includes both administrative and manufacturinglitées
(4) Administrative facility only

In addition to the above listing, which identifiesge properties (greater than 25,000 square fiet)e are approximately 570 Building
Efficiency branch offices and other administratbfices located in major cities throughout the wloiThese offices are primarily leased
facilities and vary in size in proportion to thelwme of business in the particular locality.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As noted in Item 1, liabilities potentially ariseobally under various environmental laws and workafety laws for activities that are |
in compliance with such laws and for the cleanupitels where Company-related substances have blsased into the environment.

Currently, the Company is responding to allegatidias it is responsible for performing environmémgmediation, or for the repayme
of costs spent by governmental entities or otherfopming remediation, at approximately 38 sitethim United States. Many of these
sites are landfills used by the Company in the fraghe disposal of waste materials; others acersgary lead smelters and lead
recycling sites where the Company returned leadadoimg materials for recycling; a few involve tbleanup of Company
manufacturing facilities; and the remaining faliimiscellaneous categories. The Company may fautas claims of liability at
additional sites in the future. Where potentiabilities are alleged, the Company pursues a caafraetion intended to mitigate them.
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The Company accrues for potential environmentallliges in a manner consistent with accountingipiples generally accepted in the
United States; that is, when it is probable a ligbhas been incurred and the amount of the lighis reasonably estimable. Reserves
environmental liabilities totaled $25 million an@8®million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respelgti The Company reviews the
status of its environmental sites on a quarterbidband adjusts its reserves accordingly. Sucmpatdiabilities accrued by the
Company do not take into consideration possibleveges of future insurance proceeds. They do, kewédake into account the likely
share other parties will bear at remediation sitas.difficult to estimate the Company’s ultimdéyel of liability at many remediation
sites due to the large number of other partiesrtat be involved, the complexity of determining th&ative liability among those
parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and sobfiee investigations and remediation to be coretlidhe uncertainty in the application
of law and risk assessment, the various choicesasid associated with diverse technologies thgtheaised in corrective actions at
the sites, and the often quite lengthy periods extéch eventual remediation may occur. NevertheldgesCompany does not currently
believe that any claims, penalties or costs in eotion with known environmental matters will haveaterial adverse effect on the
Companys financial position, results of operations or cistvs. In addition, the Company has identifiededsstirement obligations f
environmental matters that are expected to be adédeat the retirement, disposal, removal or alrandat of existing owned facilities,
primarily in the Power Solutions business. At Segier 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded d¢onditasset retirement
obligations of $76 million and $91 million, respieety.

The Company is involved in a number of productilighband various other casualty lawsuits incidemthe operation of its businesses.
The Company maintains insurance coverages andd®estimated costs for claims and suits of thigneait is management’s opinion
that none of these will have a material adversecefin the Company’s financial position, result®pérations or cash flows. Costs
related to such matters were not material to thimge presented.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 1GH¢€, following list of executive officers of the Cpany as of November 14, 2012 is
included as an unnumbered Item in Part | of thi®rein lieu of being included in the Compasyroxy Statement relating to the Anr
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on January @832

Beda Bolzenius, 56, was elected a Corporate Vice President ineRther 2005 and has served as President - Automotive
Seating since October 2012. He previously servatesident of the Automotive Experience business fNlovember 2005 to
October 2012 and as Executive Vice President amee@EManager Europe, Africa and South AmericaMotomotive Experienc
from November 2004 to November 2005. Dr. Bolzefmirsed the Company in November 2004 from RobertdBdSmbH, a
global manufacturer of automotive and industriahteology, consumer goods and building technolodere he most recently
served as the president of Bosch’s Body Electrodgiigision.

Colin Boyd , 53, was elected Vice President, Information Tebdbgy and Chief Information Officer in October 2008
Mr. Boyd previously served as Chief Information ioéf and Corporate Vice President of Sony Ericgsmm 2002 to 2008.

Susan F. Davis, 59, was elected Executive Vice President of HuResources in September 2006. She previously sawed
Vice President of Human Resources from May 19%dptember 2006 and as Vice President of Organimti@evelopment for
the Automotive Experience business from August 18938pril 1994. Ms. Davis joined the Company in 398

Charles A. Harvey , 60, was elected Corporate Vice President of Bitieand Public Affairs in November 2005. He
previously served as Vice President of Human Ressufior the Automotive Experience business andharchuman resources
leadership positions. Mr. Harvey joined the Compiany991.

William C. Jackson, 52, was elected Executive Vice President - Oparatand Innovation, in July 2011 and has served as
President - Automotive Electronics & Interiors @noctober 2012. Prior to joining Johnson Contrgls, Jackson was Vice
President and President of Automotive at SearsikigédCorporation from 2009 to 2010. Prior to thet,served as Senior Vice
President and board member of Booz, Allen & Hamikmd
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Booz & Company, a strategy and consulting firm, vehige led the firm’s Global Automotive, Transpaddatand Industrials
Practice.

R. Bruce McDonald , 52, was elected Executive Vice President in Sep&r 2006 and Chief Financial Officer in May 2005.
He previously served as Corporate Vice Presidem flanuary 2002 to September 2006, Assistant Emeahcial Officer from
October 2004 to May 2005 and Corporate ControtiemfNovember 2001 to October 2004. Mr. McDonaldégai the Company in
2001.

Alex A. Molinaroli , 53, was elected a Corporate Vice President in R4 and has served as President of the Power
Solutions business since January 2007. PreviolblyMolinaroli served as Vice President and Genbktahager for North
America Systems & the Middle East for the BuildiBfficiency business and has held increasing levktesponsibility for
controls systems and services sales and operakiin&lolinaroli joined the Company in 1983.

C. David Myers, 49, was elected a Corporate Vice President aesid@mt of the Building Efficiency business in Detxer
2005, when he joined the Company in connection thithacquisition of York International Corporati@fork). At York,
Mr. Myers served as Chief Executive Officer fronbReary 2004 to December 2005, President from JO08 g December 2005,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offitem January 2003 to June 2003 and Vice PreseatChief Financial
Officer from February 2000 to January 2003.

Jerome D. Okarma , 60, was elected Vice President, Secretary ané@e@ounsel in November 2004 and was named a
Corporate Vice President in September 2003. Heiguely served as Assistant Secretary from 1990deekhber 2004 and as
Deputy General Counsel from June 2000 to Novem@@42Mr. Okarma joined the Company in 1989.

Sephen A. Rodll , 62, was elected Chief Executive Officer effeciiv®ctober 2007, Chairman effective in January& @
President effective in May 2009. He was first edeldip the Board of Directors in October 2004 andestas Executive Vice
President from October 2004 through September 200.7Roell previously served as Chief Financial iC#f between 1991 and
May 2005, Senior Vice President from September 1898ctober 2004 and Vice President from 1991 m&uber 1998.

Mr. Roell joined the Company in 1982.

Brian J. Stief , 56, was elected Vice President and CorporaterGitartin July 2010 and serves as the Companyiscipal
Accounting Officer. Prior to joining the Companyy Mtief was a partner with PricewaterhouseCoopePs which he joined in
1979 and in which he became partner in 1989. Heedeseveral of the firm’s largest clients and dlstd various office managing
partner roles.

Jacqueline F. Strayer , 58, was elected Vice President, Corporate Comeation in September 2008. She previously served
as Vice President, Corporate Communications, feowrElectronics, Inc. from 2004 to 2008. Priorhbat;, she held
communication leadership positions at United Tetbgies Corporation and GE Capital Corporation.

Frank A. Voltolina, 52, was elected a Corporate Vice President amgdCate Treasurer in July 2003 when he joined the
Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Volt@iwas Vice President and Treasurer at ArvinMeritoz,

There are no family relationships, as defined leyitistructions to this item, among the Companykscexive officers.

All officers are elected for terms that expire be tlate of the meeting of the Board of Directotiofaing the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders or until their successors are dulgteteand qualified.
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PART Il

ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The shares of the Company’s common stock are tradede New York Stock Exchange under the symbgl.”J

Number of Record Holde

Title of Class as of September 30, 20
Common Stock, $0.01 7/18 par value 40,01¢
Common Stock Price Rani Dividends
2012 2011 2012 2011
First Quarter $24.29- 33.9C $29.95-40.1¢ $0.1¢ $0.1¢
Second Quarte 30.81- 35.95 36.95- 42.42 0.1¢ 0.1€
Third Quartel 26.15- 33.26  35.37-42.53 0.1¢ 0.1€
Fourth Quarte 23.37-29.59  25.91-42.92 0.1¢ 0.1€
Year $23.37-35.9t $25.91-42.92 $0.7z  $0.64

In September 2006, the Company’s Board of Direciothorized a stock repurchase program to acqgpite 200 million of the
Company'’s outstanding common stock. Stock repueshaader this program may be made through openatgmivately negotiated
transactions or otherwise at times and in such amscas Company management deems appropriate. @tlerspurchase program was
substantially completed in the fourth quarter e€éil 2012.

In November 2012, the Company’s Board of Directmthorized a stock repurchase program to acquite 600 million of the
Company’s outstanding common stock, which supessadg prior programs. Stock repurchases undeptbigram may be made
through open market, privately negotiated traneastor otherwise at times and in such amounts agp@oy management deems
appropriate. The stock repurchase program doelsavet an expiration date and may be amended orrtated by the Board of Directc
at any time without prior notice.

The Company entered into an Equity Swap Agreenaated March 13, 2009, with Citibank, N.A. (CitibankKhe Company selectively
uses equity swaps to reduce market risk assoandthdts stock-based compensation plans, suctsatefierred compensation plans.
These equity compensation liabilities increaséhasompany’s stock price increases and decreabe &ompany’s stock price
decreases. In contrast, the value of the EquitypShgreement moves in the opposite direction ofdHeilities, allowing the Compar
to fix a portion of the liabilities at a stated aumno.

In connection with the Equity Swap Agreement, Gitik may purchase unlimited shares of the Compastgtk in the market or in
privately negotiated transactions. The Companylaiss that Citibank is an “affiliated purchaser’tbé Company as such term is
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securitieshange Act or that Citibank is purchasing any sbdor the Company. The Equity
Swap Agreement has no stated expiration date. €heffect of the change in fair value of the Eq@tyap Agreement and the chang
equity compensation liabilities was not materialite Company’s earnings for the three months esggdember 30, 2012.
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1)

The following table presents information regardihg repurchase of the Company’s common stock b tmpany as part of the
publicly announced program and purchases of thepgaogts common stock by Citibank in connection with tlipily Swap Agreemel
during the three months ended September 30, 2012.

Total
Number of Approximate
Shares Dollar Value
Purchased & of Shares that
Total Average Part of the May Yet be
Number of Price Publicly Purchased
Shares Paid pe Announced under the
Perioc Purchasel Share Program Programs
7/1/12- 7/31/12
Purchases by Company | 250,00( $24.0¢ 250,00( $54,242,75
8/1/12- 8/31/12
Purchases by Company | 1,656,62! $25.8¢ 1,656,62! $11,398,75
9/1/12- 9/30/12
Purchases by Company | 418,68t  $27.1% 418,68t $  21,36¢
7/1/12- 7/31/12
Purchases by Citibar 250,000  $24.0¢ — NA
8/1/12- 8/31/12
Purchases by Citibar — — — NA
9/1/12- 9/30/12
Purchases by Citibar — — — NA

Repurchases of the Company’s common stock @ ttmpany pursuant to its publicly announced prograay be intended to partially
offset dilution related to the Compé's stock option and restricted stock equity compémsglans.
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The following information in Item 5 is not deemextte “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with #1SEC or subject to Regulation 14A
or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢l{Enge Act) or to the liabilities of Section 18tlké Exchange Act, and will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgfilnder the Securities Act of 1933 or the Excleafgt, except to the extent the

Company specifically incorporates it by referentte isuch a filing.

The line graph below compares the cumulative &halreholder return on our Common Stock with theuwdative total return of
companies on the Standard & Poor’s (S&P’s) 500I5tndex and companies in our Diversified IndusgriBeer Group.* This graph
assumes the investment of $100 on September 3@,&@0the reinvestment of all dividends since tlze.

[conpanypipEx Sepl? Sepll Sepli Sepll) Sepll Sepll
Johnson Contrals, Ine. 100 817 68.11 5281 T2 87 1137
Dhversified Industnals Peer Group 100 74,51 5.4 9326 2592 11406
S&P 500 Comp-Lid. 108 78,02 T163 B0.02 8003 105,38
Total Return to Shareholders
Dollars
120 &
. _.:--lt
w L\\ — e
— s —
80 — — = —_—h
60
40
20
o . - : :
SeplT Sepls Sepl? Sepl0 Sepll Sepll
—+—Johnsen Controls, Ine —— Diversified Industnals Peer Group —b— S&F 500 Comp-Lid

* The JCI Diversified Industrials Peer Group mehdes: Danaher Corporation, Dover Corporation, Eaton Corporation, Emerson Electnc
Corporation, Honevwell International Inc , Ingersoll-Rand Ple., lincds Tool Works Inc., ITT Corporation, 3M Company, Textron Inc.,

2nd United Technologies Corporation

The Company’s transfer agent’s contact informatsoas follows:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services Department
P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

(877) 602-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data reflects tbsults of operations, financial position data eashmon share information for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2008 through @éetre30, 2012 (in millions, except per share dathraumber of employees and
shareholders). Certain amounts have been revisedl¢at the retrospective application of the Comps accounting policy change for
recognizing pension and postretirement benefit expeRefer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Acetiug Policies,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for further detsiirrounding this accounting policy change.

Year ended September 3(

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $ 41,95¢ $ 40,83 $ 34,30¢ $ 28,49° $ 38,06
Segment income (; 2,561 2,34 1,94¢ 244 2,09¢
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contiols, (6) 1,22¢ 1,41¢ 1,307 (687) 801
Earnings (loss) per share |
Basic $ 1.8C $ 2.0¢ $ 194 $ (119 $ 1.3t
Diluted 1.7¢ 2.0¢ 1.92 (1.19 1.3¢
Return on average shareholders’ equity attributabmhnson
Controls, Inc. (2) (6 11% 13% 14% -7% 9%
Capital expenditure $ 1,831 $ 1,32t $ 77 $ 647 $ 807
Depreciation and amortizatic 824 731 691 74E 783
Number of employee 170,00( 162,00( 137,00( 130,00( 140,00(
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital (3] $ 2,30( $ 1,58¢ $ 91¢ $ 1,145 $ 1,22¢
Total asset 30,88¢ 29,67¢ 25,74: 24,08¢ 24,98
Long-term debt 5,321 4,53 2,652 3,16¢ 3,201
Total debt 6,06¢ 5,14¢ 3,38¢ 3,96¢ 3,944
Shareholder equity attributable to Johnson Controls, | 11,55¢ 11,04: 10,071 9,10( 9,40¢
Total debt to total capitalization ( 34% 32% 25% 30% 30%
Net book value per share ( $ 16.9¢ $ 16.2¢ $ 14.9¢ $ 13.5¢ $ 15.8¢
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Dividends per shar $ 0.72 $ 0.64 $ 0.5z $ 052 $ 0.5z
Market prices
High $ 35.9¢ $ 429 $ 35.7i $ 30.01 $ 44.4¢
Low 23.3i 25.91 23.6: 8.3t 26.0(
Weighted average shares (in milliol
Basic 681.F 677.7 672.( 595.: 593.1
Diluted 688.¢ 689.¢ 682.t 595.% 601.4
Number of shareholde 40,01¢ 43,34( 44,625 46,46( 47,54

(1) Segmentincome is calculated as income frontimoimg operations before income taxes and nonodimy interests excluding net
financing charges, debt conversion costs, sigmificastructuring costs and net mark-to-market adjaats on pension and
postretirement plan:

(2) Return on average shareholders’ equity attaibletto Johnson Controls, Inc. (ROE) representingetne attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. divided by average sharehol’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, |

24



Table of Contents

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Working capital is defined as current assets urrent liabilities, excluding cash, short-tetett and the current portion of long-term
debt.

Total debt to total capitalization represenptsitdebt divided by the sum of total debt and shalders’ equity attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc

Net book value per share represents shareh’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.idéd by the number of common shares
outstanding at the end of the peri

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Includes $297 million, $230 million and $495 milliofsignificant restructuring cos

in fiscal year 2012, 2009 and 2008, respectivelgido includes $447 million, $384 million, $269llion, $532 million and $301 millio
of net mark-to-market charges on pension and pastngent plans in fiscal year 2012, 2011, 2010,280d 2008, respectively. The
preceding amounts are stated on &«tax basis

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS
General

The Company operates in three primary businesagkliBy Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Pov@mlutions. Building
Efficiency provides facility systems, services avatkplace solutions including comfort, energy ardwsity management for the
residential and non-residential buildings markatgomotive Experience designs and manufacturesiamteystems and products for
passenger cars and light trucks, including vartk-pp trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicleewer Solutions designs and
manufactures automotive batteries for the replacéraed original equipment markets.

This discussion summarizes the significant factfiscting the consolidated operating results, faiaincondition and liquidity of the
Company for the three-year period ended Septenthe2® 2. This discussion should be read in conjonatith Iltem 8, the
consolidated financial statements and the notesiisolidated financial statements.

Certain amounts have been revised to reflect thesgective application of the Company’s accounginticy change for recognizing
pension and postretirement benefit expense. Refdote 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Padisj” of the notes to consolidated
financial statements for further details surrougdinis accounting policy change.

Outlook

On October 30, 2012, the Company gave a preliminathpok of its market and financial expectatioasffscal 2013, saying it believes
softening end markets will limit its ability to grkorevenues and earnings in the upcoming year. ditiad, the Company anticipates a
higher effective tax rate of 20% in fiscal 2013 do@n increased percentage of total earningseitihited States. The Company exp
fiscal 2013 first-half earnings to be significanliyver than the same period of fiscal 2012 withhleigyear over year earnings in the
second half of the year. The Company also expedtsctir additional restructuring-related costshie first half of fiscal 2013
(approximately $0.08 - $0.10 impact on earningssbaire) and believes the financial benefits ofréséructuring announced in the fiscal
2012 fourth quarter will begin to accrue in theaet half of fiscal 2013. The Company plans to bigelnt in controlling costs, but will
remain committed to making investments that supip@tong-term growth and profitability strategidhe Company expects full year
fiscal 2013 earnings to be flat to slightly highiean fiscal 2012.

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganiteedutomotive Experience reportable segmentsigmakith its new management

reporting structure and business activities. Assalt of this change, Automotive Experience willdoenprised of three new reportable
segments for financial reporting purposes: Seatibggtronics and Interiors. This change will bdeetied in the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecerdbgP012, with comparable periods revised to canftrr the new presentation.
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FISCAL YEAR 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2011

Net Sales
Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changt
Net sales $41,95¢ $40,83: 3%

The increase in consolidated net sales was duighehsales in the Automotive Experience busing2(billion), Power Solutions
business ($224 million) and Building Efficiency imess ($95 million), partially offset by the unfaable impact of foreign currency
translation ($1.2 billion). Excluding the unfavol@impact of foreign currency translation, consal&t net sales increased 6% as
compared to the prior year. The favorable impattaaeased automotive industry production in Noktherica, strong automotive and
buildings demand in China, and incremental sale® facquisitions were partially offset by the negaimpacts of lower automotive
industry production in Europe, weak Building Eféacy markets and mild weather conditions on autoraditattery aftermarket
demand. Refer to the segment analysis below witim 7 for a discussion of net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Cost of sale: $35,73’ $34,77¢ 3%
Gross profit 6,21¢ 6,05¢ 3%
% of sales 14.8% 14.8%

The increase in total cost of sales year over geaesponds to the sales growth noted above, withsgprofit percentage remaining
consistent. Gross profit in the Automotive Expecetusiness was favorably impacted by lower puinbassts offset by higher
operating costs associated with performance atlsetzilities and net unfavorable commercial setgats and pricing. The Power
Solutions business experienced favorable pricintjmnduct mix offset by higher operating, batteoyecand transportation costs. Gross
profit in the Building Efficiency business benefitgear over year from improved labor utilizatiordaricing initiatives, offset by

overall unfavorable gross margin rates. Foreigmenay translation had a favorable impact on cosiatds of approximately $1.1 billic
Net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and giiriment plans had a net favorable year over ipggact on cost of sales of $87
million ($33 million charge in fiscal 2012 compared$120 million charge in fiscal 2011) primarilyelto assumption changes for
certain non-U.S. plans partially offset by a deelin year over year discount rates. Refer to tgengat analysis below within Item 7 for
a discussion of segment income by segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Selling, general and administrative exper $4,43¢ $4,39: 1%
% of sales 10.6% 10.8%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGi&é&leased slightly year over year, but decreabghtly as a percentage of sales.
Automotive Experience business SG&A increased pilgndue to the incremental SG&A of acquired busises, partially offset by
non-recurring prior year costs related to busimesgiisitions. Power Solutions business SG&A inadgzimarily due to higher
employee-related costs and incremental SG&A of medbusinesses. Building Efficiency business SG#ekreased primarily due to
cost reduction initiatives, prior year restructgricosts and gains on business divestitures. Thavardble impact of net mark-to-market
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adjustments on pension and postretirement plaB&®A increased year over year by $150 million ($4diftion charge in fiscal 2012
compared to $264 million charge in fiscal 2011 )vatiily due to a significant decline in year oveayédiscount rates. Foreign currency
translation had a favorable impact on SG&A of $ifillion. Refer to the segment analysis below withem 7 for a discussion of
segment income by segment.

Significant Restructuring Costs

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Restructuring cost $297 $— *

* Measure not meaningf

To better align its resources with its growth stigiés and reduce the cost structure of its glopafations to address the softness in
certain underlying markets, the Company committed significant restructuring plan (2012 Plan)ha third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2012 and recorded a $297 million restrucigicharge, $52 million in the third quarter and $24illion in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2012. The restructuring charge related &t ceduction initiatives in the Company’s AutometiZxperience, Building Efficiency
and Power Solutions businesses and included warkfieaductions and plant closures. The restructaatigns are expected to be
substantially complete by the end of fiscal 2014.

Refer to Note 15, “Significant Restructuring Cdstd,the notes to consolidated financial statemémtsurther disclosure related to the
Company’s restructuring plans.

Net Financing Charges

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changt
Net financing charge $23¢ $174 34%

The increase in net financing charges was primdiuily to higher debt levels in fiscal 2012 as comgao the prior year.

Equity Income

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changt
Equity income $34C $29¢ 14%

The increase in equity income was primarily dua ggain on redemption of a warrant for an existiagiplly-owned affiliate and a gain
on a current year acquisition of a partially-owréfiliate in the Power Solutions business, partialifset by a gain on a prior year
acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate net afcuisition costs and related purchase accountipgtuents and a partially-owned
equity affiliate’s restatement of prior period imee in the Power Solutions business. The remaimaggase in equity income was
primarily due to higher earnings at certain Buifgliafficiency partially-owned affiliates. Refer thet segment analysis below within
Item 7 for a discussion of segment income by segmen
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Provision for Income Taxes

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changi
Provision for income taxe $237 $257 -8%

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory mimarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives and income in certain non-
U.S. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower thae td.S. statutory tax rate. Refer to Note 17, “Inecohaxes,” of the notes to consolidated
financial statements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax asset valuation allowances on a quartedishbar whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that a review is requihedietermining the requirement for a valuatidiowabnce, the historical and projected
financial results of the legal entity or consolethgroup recording the net deferred tax assetarsidered, along with any other posit
or negative evidence. Since future financial resuiay differ from previous estimates, periodic atiients to the Company’s valuation
allowances may be necessary.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overalldase to its valuation allowances of $47 milliomyarily due to a discrete period
income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. Inftheth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company perfednan analysis related to the
evidence, the Company determined that it was nikeéy/lthan not that deferred tax assets within Rd@autions in China would not be
utilized. Therefore, the Company recorded a $3%anilvaluation allowance in the three month perodied September 30, 2012.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decreaie t@luation allowances primarily due to a $30liwril discrete period income tax
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourthesaof fiscal 2011, the Company performed an agialselated to the realizability of its
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, aret afinsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets primarily within Darknltaly, Automotive Experien
in Korea and Automotive Experience in the Unitedigdom would be utilized. Therefore, the Compangaséd a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period drisieptember 30, 2011.

Given the current economic uncertainty, it is remddy possible that over the next twelve monthijatéion allowances against deferred
tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result metincrease to tax expense of up to $400 million.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the &Bh8.numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isiiregl in determining its
worldwide provision for income taxes and recordihg related assets and liabilities. In the ordiramyrse of the Company’s business,
there are many transactions and calculations wtheraltimate tax determination is uncertain. Thenpany is regularly under audit by
tax authorities.

As a result of certain recent events related torfex planning initiatives, during the third quearof fiscal 2012, the Company reduced
the reserve for uncertain tax positions by $22iarillincluding $13 million of interest and penadtie

The Company'’s federal income tax returns and aertanU.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearsain under various stages
audit by the Internal Revenue Service and respecin-U.S. tax authorities. Although the outcoméagfaudits is always uncertain,
management believes that it has appropriate sufgorditie positions taken on its tax returns and itiseannual tax provisions included
amounts sufficient to pay assessments, if any, wmay be proposed by the taxing authorities. At&waper 30, 2012, the Company
had recorded a liability for its best estimatelaf probable loss on certain of its tax positiohs,rmajority of which is included in other
noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated statetaesi financial position. Nonetheless, the amouwttimmately paid,
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if any, upon resolution of the issues raised bytéxéng authorities may differ materially from thmounts accrued for each year.

The Company expects that certain tax examinatmpsellate proceedings and/or tax litigation wilhclude within the next twelve
months, the impact of which could be up to a $200an benefit to tax expense.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

The look-through rule, under subpart F of the Un&rnal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyepiesnber 30, 2012. The look-
through rule had provided an exception to the tagation of certain income generated by foreigrssiiaries. It is generally thought
that this rule will be extended with the possililif retroactive application.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20¥2etgislation was adopted in Japan which redueestitutory income tax rate by 5%.
Also, tax legislation was adopted in various juidsidns to limit the annual utilization of tax Iessthat are carried forward. None of
these changes had a material impact on the Conpangsolidated financial condition, results of @piens or cash flows.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Endec

September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Income attributable to noncontrolling intere $127 $117 9%

The increase in income attributable to noncontrglinterests was primarily due to higher earnirtgsedain Power Solutions and
Building Efficiency partially-owned affiliates, pally offset by the effects of an increase in @@mpany’s ownership percentage in an
Automotive Experience partially-owned affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changt
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, $1,22¢ $1,41* -13%

The decrease in net income attributable to Joh@sntrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher selliggneral and administrative
expenses, restructuring costs, net financing clsamgd income attributable to noncontrolling inté&seand the unfavorable impact of
foreign currency translation, partially offset higther sales and equity income, and a decrease iprtivision for income taxes. Fiscal
2012 diluted earnings per share was $1.78 compganedor year’s diluted earnings per share of $2.06

Segment Analysis

Management evaluates the performance of its busingss based primarily on segment income, whiakefined as income from
continuing operations before income taxes and nanalting interests excluding net financing chargggnificant restructuring costs
and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension asttgtirement plans.
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Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang 2012 2011 Changt
North America System $ 2,38¢ $ 2,34: 2% $ 28€ $ 247 16%
North America Servic 2,14¢ 2,30¢ -7% 164 121 36%
Global Workplace Solution 4,29¢ 4,15: 3% 52 22 *
Asia 1,98i 1,84( 8% 267 251 6%
Other 3,90( 4,252 -8% 141 10t 34%
$14,71F  $14,89: 1% $ 91C $ 74¢€ 22%

* Measure not meaningf

Net Sales:

The increase in North America Systems was primaltly to higher volumes of equipment and controdsesys in the commercial
construction and replacement markets ($50 millipajtially offset by the unfavorable impact of figre currency translation ($4
million).

The decrease in North America Service was primailuly to a reduction in truck-based volumes ($130am) and energy
solutions volumes ($50 million), and the unfavoeaihpact of foreign currency translation ($4 mitljppartially offset by the
incremental sales from a prior year business aitauig$24 million).

The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was grily due to a net increase in services to neweaisting customers ($264
million), partially offset by the unfavorable imgaaf foreign currency translation ($123 milliol

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highevise volumes including the prior year negative &mojpof the Japan earthquake
and related events ($84 million), higher volumes@fiipment and controls systems ($39 million), #nedfavorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($24 millior

The decrease in Other was primarily due to theworible impact of foreign currency translation (616illion), lower volumes in
Latin America ($93 million), the Middle East ($41lion) and Europe ($32 million), and lower volumese to current year
divestitures ($55 million), partially offset by Hhigr volumes in other business areas ($33 million) unitary products ($2 million

Segment Income:

The increase in North America Systems was primalily to lower selling, general and administratixeemses ($24 million) and
higher volumes ($15 million

The increase in North America Service was primatilg to lower selling, general and administrativgemses ($40 million) and
favorable margin rates ($38 million), partially ét by lower volumes ($31 million), loss on a basmdivestiture ($3 million) and
lower equity income ($1 million

The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was grily due to higher volumes ($15 million), lowellsgy, general and
administrative expenses ($14 million) and favorablgin rates ($4 million), partially offset by awbrable impact of foreign
currency translation ($3 million

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highdumes ($30 million) and the favorable impact ofefign currency translation (!
million), partially offset by higher selling, germrand administrative expenses ($18 million) anthvorable margin rates ($2
million).

The increase in Other was primarily due to gainbusiness divestitures net of transaction cost (#lion), prior year
restructuring costs ($35 million), prior year nacurring charges related to South America indit@ots ($24 million), lower
selling, general and administrative expenses ($illbn), prior year business distribution costs {$illion) and higher equity
income ($6 million), partially offset by unfavorabinargin rates ($51 million), lower volumes ($20liom), net prior year
warranty accrual adjustment due to favorable eepeg ($14 million), lower income due to currentrydi@estitures ($10 million)
and the unfavorable impact of foreign currencydfation ($1 million).
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Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Los
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(

(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang 2012 2011 Changt
North America $ 8,721 $ 7,431 17% $ 487 $ 41¢ 16%
Europe 9,97 10,26 -3% (52) 11€ *
Asia 2,64( 2,367 12% 36¢& 24E 50%

$21,33¢ $20,06! 6% $ 803 $ 78C 3%

* Measure not meaningf

Net Sales:

The increase in North America was primarily dudigher volumes to major OEM customers ($967 milljaghe prior year
negative impact of the Japan earthquake and redsteats ($263 million), and incremental sales dugrior year business
acquisitions ($129 million), partially offset by tnenfavorable pricing and commercial settlemen€®(fillion).

The decrease in Europe was primarily due to thavoriible impact of foreign currency translationq®million), net unfavorable
pricing and commercial settlements ($84 milliomd dower volumes despite the prior year negativeaat of the Japan earthqu:
and related events ($32 million), partially offbgtincremental sales due to business acquisit®H85 million).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highdusees and new customer awards including the pear yegative impact of the
Japan earthquake and related events ($182 millimcremental sales due to prior year acquisiti®i=l4 million) and the
favorable impact of foreign currency translatio8 (8illion), partially offset by net unfavorable ping and commercial settleme
($37 million) and the negative impact of the flanglin Thailand and related events ($25 millic

Segment Income:

The increase in North America was primarily dudigher volumes ($199 million), the prior year négaimpact of the
earthquake in Japan and related events ($61 n)illiower purchasing costs ($49 million), higher igiincome ($4 million),
lower engineering expenses ($3 million) and incretaleoperating income of prior year acquisition3 (#illion), partially offset b
higher operating costs ($126 million), net unfaldeacommercial settlements and pricing ($91 milljand higher selling, genel
and administrative expenses ($34 millic

The decrease in Europe was primarily due to higperating costs ($131 million), net unfavorable omencial settlements and
pricing ($88 million), lower volumes despite thegoryear negative impact of the earthquake in Jagvahrelated events ($65
million), and higher selling, general and admirgtitre expenses ($40 million), partially offset byop year costs related to
business acquisitions ($64 million), incrementatrging income of prior year acquisitions ($42 ioil), lower purchasing costs
($26 million), lower engineering expenses ($23ioril) and the favorable impact of foreign curremanslation ($1 million)

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highduwees including the prior year negative impacthaf €arthquake in Japan and
related events ($64 million), lower purchasing sd$#1 million), lower selling, general and admirdative expenses ($28 millior
incremental operating income of prior year acqiaisg ($19 million), lower operating costs ($14 ioitl) and the favorable impact
of foreign currency translation ($2 million), pailty offset by net unfavorable commercial settleteeand pricing ($34 million),
the negative impact of the flooding in Thailand aelhted events ($5 million), higher engineeringenses ($3 million) and lower
equity income ($3 million)
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Power Solutions

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2012 2011 Changi
Net sales $5,90¢ $5,87¢ 1%
Segment incom 854 821 4%

* Net sales increased primarily due to favorableipgi@and product mix ($156 million), higher volumasluding the prior yea
negative impact of the earthquake in Japan antecelkvents ($144 million), and incremental sales tdubusiness acquisitions
($38 million), partially offset by the unfavorakitapact of foreign currency translation ($193 mifljaand impact of pass through
pricing ($114 million).

e Segment income increased primarily due to favorpht@ng and product mix including lead net of hégltosts for battery cores
($117 million); a gain on redemption of a warramt &n existing partially-owned affiliate ($25 midlhi); higher volumes including
the prior year negative impact of the earthquak#aipan and related events ($24 million); changesget retirement obligations
($14 million); an insurance settlement ($12 mil)ioa gain on a current year acquisition of a plytiawned affiliate ($9 million)
and higher equity income ($4 million); partiallyfsdt by higher operating and transportation cd$ nillion); higher selling,
general and administrative expenses ($43 milliargain on a prior year acquisition of a partiallyred affiliate net of acquisition
costs and related purchase accounting adjustmedta partially-owned affiliate's restatement ofgpmperiod income ($37
million); the unfavorable impact of foreign currgricanslation ($21 million); an impairment of anuég investment ($14 million)
and the unfavorable impact of business acquisit{éhd million).

FISCAL YEAR 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2010

Net Sales
Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Net sales $40,83: $34,30¢ 19%

The increase in consolidated net sales was prignduié to higher sales in the Automotive Experigmgginess ($3.1 billion) as a result
of increased industry production levels in all segts and incremental sales due to business adégussihigher sales in the Building
Efficiency business ($1.7 billion) as a result aftter sales in all segments; higher sales in thveelP&olutions business ($0.9 billion)
reflecting higher sales volumes, the impact of bigkad costs on pricing and sales associatedangtiior year business acquisition; and
the favorable impact of foreign currency translat{$0.8 billion). Excluding the favorable impactfofeign currency translation,
consolidated net sales increased 17% as compatkd fwior year. Refer to the segment analysisvb&lihin Item 7 for a discussion of
net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Cost of sale: $34,77¢ $29,08:¢ 20%
Gross profit 6,05¢ 5,221 16%
% of sales 14.8% 15.2%

The increase in total cost of sales year over geaesponds to the sales growth noted above, witbsgprofit percentage decreasing
slightly. Gross profit in the Automotive Experiengesiness was unfavorably impacted by the earttgjiraBapan and related events,
higher operating costs in Europe and unfavorabiengercial
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settlements and pricing in Europe, partially offsgthe income of acquisitions. Gross profit in Biglding Efficiency business reflect
overall unfavorable gross margin rates partialfgetfby prior year inventory adjustments. The Po8@utions business experienced
favorable pricing and product mix, and income aisged with a prior year business acquisition, pilytioffset by higher operating and
transportation costs. Foreign currency translatiat an unfavorable impact on cost of sales of aqyprately $0.7 billion. The
unfavorable impact of net mark-to-market adjustraemt pension and postretirement plans in costle$ sacreased year over year by
$52 million ($120 million charge in fiscal 2011 cpared to $68 million charge in fiscal 2010) prinhadue to a decline in year over
year discount rates. Refer to the segment andbgsisv within Item 7 for a discussion of segmenbime by segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Selling, general and administrative exper $4,39: $3,79¢ 16%
% of sales 10.8% 11.1%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGi&é)eased year over year, but decreased as anpegeeof sales. Automotive
Experience business SG&A increased primarily dueosis related to business acquisitions, increrh&@&A of acquired businesses
and higher engineering expenses. Building Efficjelmgsiness SG&A increased primarily due to higheplyee-related costs,
restructuring costs and information technology enpéntation costs. Power Solutions business SG&feased primarily due to higher
employee-related costs and incremental SG&A of medibusinesses. The unfavorable impact of net #wmrkarket adjustments on
pension and postretirement plans in SG&A increasea over year by $63 million ($264 million chatigdiscal 2011 compared to $2
million charge in fiscal 2010) primarily due to adline in year over year discount rates. Foreignecicy translation had an unfavorable
impact on SG&A of $63 million. Refer to the segmantlysis below within Item 7 for a discussion efsent income by segment.

Net Financing Charges

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Changt
Net financing charge $174 $17C 2%

The increase in net financing charges was primairily to higher debt levels partially offset by loweerest rates in fiscal 2011.

Equity Income

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Equity income $29¢ $254 17%

The increase in equity income was primarily dua ggain on acquisition of partiallgwned affiliate net of acquisition costs and pusg
accounting adjustments and a partially-owned edffiliate’s restatement of prior period incometli® Power Solutions business,
partially offset by a prior year gain on consolidatof a Korean partiallpwned affiliate in the Power Solutions businesse Témaining
increase in equity income was primarily due to bigbarnings at certain Automotive Experience anittiBig Efficiency partially-
owned affiliates.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Provision for income taxe $257 $127 &

* Measure not meaningf

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory m@tmarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives and income in certain non-
U.S. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower thae ti.S. statutory tax rate. Refer to Note 17, “Ineohaxes,” of the notes to consolidated
financial statements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its deéefrtax asset valuation allowances on a quartedispar whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that a review is requihedietermining the requirement for a valuatidiowahnce, the historical and projected
financial results of the legal entity or consoletAgroup recording the net deferred tax assetarsidered, along with any other posit
or negative evidence. Since future financial resuiay differ from previous estimates, periodic atiients to the Company’s valuation
allowances may be necessary.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decreais t@luation allowances primarily due to a $30limil discrete period income tax
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourthreraof fiscal 2011, the Company performed an asialselated to the realizability of its
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, aret afinsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets primarily within Darknltaly, Automotive Experien
in Korea and Automotive Experience in the Uniteddgdom would be utilized. Therefore, the Compangaséd a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period drisieptember 30, 2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overaltekese to its valuation allowances of $87 milliomyarily due to a $111 million
discrete period income tax adjustment. In the fogrtarter of fiscal 2010, the Company performedraalysis related to the realizability
of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result after considering tax planning initiatives atider positive and negative evidence,
the Company determined that it was more likely thahthat the deferred tax assets primarily witiliexico would be utilized.
Therefore, the Company released $39 million of &t allowances in the three month period endgde®aber 30, 2010. Further, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets would not be utilinestlected entities in Europe.
Therefore, the Company recorded $14 million of a#ibn allowances in the three month period endgdeBaber 30, 2010. To the ext
the Company improves its underlying operating itssnlthese entities, these valuation allowancea,ortion thereof, could be
reversed in future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets wit
the Slovakia Automotive Experience entity wouldubdized. Therefore, the Company released $13 omilbf valuation allowances in
the three month period ended June 30, 2010.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyjedeined that it was more likely than not that atjpo of the deferred tax assets within
the Brazil Automotive Experience entity would bdizéd. Therefore, the Company released $69 milbbmaluation allowances. This
was comprised of a $93 million decrease in incameskpense offset by a $24 million reduction in alative translation adjustments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgréased the valuation allowances by $20 milliomichy was substantially offset by a
decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax positiora similar amount. These adjustments were baisedreview of tax return filing
positions taken in these jurisdictions and theldistaed reserves.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bh8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentdsired in determining its
worldwide provision for income taxes and recordihg related assets and liabilities. In the ordiramyrse of the Company’s business,
there are many transactions and calculations wtheraltimate tax determination is uncertain. ThenPany is regularly under audit by
tax authorities.
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Based on published case law in a non-U.S. jurisgic@nd the settlement of a tax audit during theltuarter of fiscal 2010, the
Company released net $38 million of reserves faetain tax positions, including interest and ptesl

As a result of certain events related to prior yaamplanning initiatives during the first quartdifiscal 2010, the Company increased
reserve for uncertain tax positions by $31 milliojuding $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compaegréased its reserves for uncertain tax positigr&B million, which was
substantially offset by an increase in its valuatidlowances in a similar amount. These adjustmeate based on a review of tax filing
positions taken in jurisdictions with valuationallances as indicated above.

The Company'’s federal income tax returns and aertanU.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearsain under various stages
audit by the Internal Revenue Service and respecibn-U.S. tax authorities. Although the outcom&agfaudits is always uncertain,
management believes that it has appropriate sufgrditie positions taken on its tax returns and itiseannual tax provisions included
amounts sufficient to pay assessments, if any, wmay be proposed by the taxing authorities. At&waper 30, 2011, the Company
had recorded a liability for its best estimatelaf probable loss on certain of its tax positiohs,rmajority of which is included in other
noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated statetaadi financial position. Nonetheless, the amouitiisnately paid, if any, upon
resolution of the issues raised by the taxing aitihs, may differ materially from the amounts aced for each year.

I mpacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20Xlletzslation was adopted in various jurisdictioNene of these changes had a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated fom@rcondition, results of operations or cash flows

On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed amodomprehensive health care reform legislatioreutite Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (HR3590). Included among thganarovisions of the law was a change in the taatment of a portion of
Medicare Part D medical payments. The Company detba noncash tax charge of approximately $18anmilln the second quarter of
fiscal year 2010 to reflect the impact of this ofpanin the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the antaletreased by $2 million resulting in
an overall impact of $16 million.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Income attributable to noncontrolling intere $117 $75 56%

The increase in income attributable to noncontrglinterests was primarily due to higher earnirigsedain Automotive Experience
partially-owned affiliates in North America and Asiand a Power Solutions partially-owned affiliate.
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Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Changi
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, $1,41°¢ $1,307 8%

The increase in net income attributable to Johi@&mmtrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher saled aguity income, and the favorable
impact of foreign currency translation, partialffset by an increase in selling, general and adstriative expenses, provision for incc
taxes and income attributable to noncontrollingriests. Fiscal 2011 diluted earnings per sharep@#% compared to prior year's
diluted earnings per share of $1.92.

Segment Analysis

Management evaluates the performance of its busingss based primarily on segment income, whiaefined as income from
continuing operations before income taxes and nanelting interests excluding net financing chargsgnificant restructuring costs
and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension astigtirement plans.

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang 2011 2010 Chang
North America System $ 2,34¢ $ 2,14: 9% $ 247 $ 20¢€ 20%
North America Servic 2,30¢ 2,12 8% 121 117 3%
Global Workplace Solution 4,15: 3,28¢ 26% 22 40 -45%
Asia 1,84( 1,42: 28% 251 18C 39%
Other 4,25 3,82 11% 10t 13€ -23%

$14,897 $12,80: 16% $ 74€ $ 67¢ 10%

Net Sales:

e The increase in North America Systems was primaltlg to higher volumes of equipment and contrad$esyis in the commercial
construction and replacement markets ($191 millianyl the favorable impact of foreign currency station ($10 million)

e The increase in North America Service was primatilg to higher volumes, mainly driven by energysohs and truck-based
business ($120 million), incremental sales duepd@ year business acquisition ($46 million) dhe favorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($12 million

» The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was grily due to a net increase in services to newextigting customers ($709
million), and the favorable impact of foreign cureg translation ($156 million

e The increase in Asia was primarily due to highdurees of equipment and controls systems ($255aniljithe favorable impact
of foreign currency translation ($98 million), ahidher service volumes including the negative imjéthe Japan earthquake and
related events ($65 million

* The increase in Other was primarily due to higl@umes in the Middle East ($198 million), Latin Area ($107 million) and
Europe ($39 million), and the favorable impactarfign currency translation ($85 millior

Segment Income:

e Theincrease in North America Systems was primalilg to higher volumes ($38 million), favorable giarates ($25 million),
prior year reserves for existing customers ($13anil and the favorabl
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impact of foreign currency translation ($1 milliopjartially offset by higher selling, general arthiranistrative expenses ($36
million).

The increase in North America Service was primatilg to prior year inventory adjustments and infation technology
implementation costs ($55 million), higher volun{®25 million), lower selling, general and admiradgive expenses ($2 million)
and the favorable impact of foreign currency tratish ($1 million), partially offset by unfavorabheix and margin rates ($79
million).

The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions wasamiljndue to unfavorable margin rates ($40 milliamd higher selling,
general and administrative expenses ($32 millipaijtially offset by higher volumes ($49 million)cthe favorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($5 millior

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highdurrees ($82 million) and the favorable impact ofefign currency translation
($15 million), partially offset by higher sellingeneral and administrative expenses ($26 milli

The decrease in Other was primarily due to higb#ing, general and administrative expenses ($4llom), restructuring costs
($35 million), non-recurring charges related to thoimerica indirect taxes ($24 million), unfavoralvhargin rates ($15 million)
and distribution business costs ($11 million), iadlst offset by higher volumes ($75 million), highequity income ($18 million)
and the favorable impact of foreign currency tratish ($2 million).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Incom

for the Year Ende for the Year Ende

September 3( September 3(

(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang 2011 2010 Chang
North America $ 7,431 $ 6,76¢ 10% $ 41¢ $ 38C 10%
Europe 10,26° 8,01¢ 28% 11€ 10¢€ 7%
Asia 2,36 1,82¢ 30% 24k 10¢ 125%
$20,06! $16,61( 21% $ 78C $ 597 31%
Net Sales:

The increase in North America was primarily duéigher volumes to the Company’s major OEM custonf®r39 million),
incremental sales due to business acquisitions)(#iiltion) and net favorable commercial settlemeantd pricing ($21 million),
partially offset by the negative impact of the Japarthquake and related events ($263 milli

The increase in Europe was primarily due to higltdumes and new customer awards including the hegahpact of the Japan
earthquake and related events ($1.1 billion), imenatal sales due to business acquisitions ($83®mniland the favorable impact
of foreign currency translation ($295 million), pally offset by net unfavorable commercial setttgts and pricing ($37 million

The increase in Asia was primarily due to highduwees and new customer awards including the negyatipact of the Japan
earthquake and related events ($455 million), #iverfable impact of foreign currency translationd$&illion) and incremental
sales due to business acquisitions ($13 millioaitially offset by unfavorable commercial settlensesnd pricing ($15 million]

Segment Income:

The increase in North America was primarily dudigher volumes ($160 million), higher equity inco(®é million), and net
favorable commercial settlements and pricing ($lian), partially offset by the negative impacttbe earthquake in Japan and
related events ($61 million), higher selling, gett@mnd administrative expenses net of a legakse#ht award ($36 million),
higher engineering expenses ($27 million) and higlechasing costs ($8 millior

The increase in Europe was primarily due to higlsdumes including the negative impact of the earttk@ in Japan and related
events ($95 million), operating income of curreaayacquisitions ($75 million), lower selling, gesleand administrative expen:
($16 million) and the favorable impact
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foreign currency translation ($9 million), partiabffset by costs related to business acquisit{®6¢ million), higher operating
costs ($58 million), unfavorable commercial setéerts and pricing ($34 million), higher engineerexgenses ($22 million) and
higher purchasing costs ($9 milliol

* The increase in Asia was primarily due to highduwees including the negative impact of the earthkegua Japan and related
events ($84 million), higher equity income maintyGhina ($55 million), prior year asset impairmeharges in Japan ($22
million), lower purchasing costs ($19 million), lewoperating costs ($13 million) and the favorabipact of foreign currency
translation ($4 million), partially offset by highselling, general and administrative expenses (888n), unfavorable pricing
($16 million) and higher engineering expenses (&ildon).

Power Solutions

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Changi
Net sales $5,87¢ $4,89:¢ 20%
Segment incom 821 672 22%

* Net sales increased primarily due to the impadtigiier lead costs on pricing ($287 million), higlsates volumes including tl
negative impact of the earthquake in Japan anterkkvents ($283 million), sales associated wiphi@ year business acquisition
($261 million), favorable price/product mix ($81lhain) and the favorable impact of foreign currerinslation ($70 million)

» Segment income increased primarily due to favorphleng and product mix net of lead and other cardity costs ($145
million); higher sales volumes ($56 million); a ga&in acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate rétacquisition costs and related
purchase accounting adjustments and a partiallyedvequity affiliate’s restatement of prior periodome ($37 million); income
associated with a prior year business acquisit3® (illion); and the favorable impact of foreigiri@ncy translation ($8
million); partially offset by higher operating atrdnsportation costs ($44 million); higher selliggneral and administrative
expenses ($38 million); prior year net gain on asitjan of a Korean partially-owned affiliate ($3illion); and lower equity
income ($8 million).

GOODWILL, LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Goodwill at September 30, 2012 was $7.0 billior4 $dllion lower than the prior year. The decreases wrimarily due to the impact of
foreign currency translation and current year bessndivestitures, partially offset by business &itions.

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ager or more frequently if events or changes iowrnstances indicate the asset might
be impaired. The Company performs impairment regiéw its reporting units, which have been detepdito be the Company’s
reportable segments or one level below the replersdgments in certain instances, using a fairevelethod based on management's
judgments and assumptions or third party valuatidhs fair value of a reporting unit refers to grece that would be received to sell
unit as a whole in an orderly transaction betweearket participants at the measurement date. Imastig the fair value, the Company
uses multiples of earnings based on the averaggstofrical, published multiples of earnings of cargble entities with similar
operations and economic characteristics. In cemaitances, the Company uses discounted cash fialyses to further support the fair
value estimates. The inputs utilized in the anayse classified as Level 3 inputs within the f@ilue hierarchy as defined in ASC 820,
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.” Thavestd fair value is then compared with the carrgngpunt of the reporting unit,
including recorded goodwill. The Company is subjedinancial statement risk to the extent thatdheying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value. The impairment testing penfed by the Company in the fourth quarter of figedr 2012, 2011 and 2010
indicated that the estimated fair value of eaclorépy unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorded
goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at&aper 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. No reporting uai determined to be at risk of
failing step one of the goodwill impairment testhié at September 30, 2012 the estimated fair vafugach reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount inclydétorded goodwill, a prolonged significant deelin the European automotive
industry could put the Company at risk of not aeimg future growth assumptions and could
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result in impairment of goodwill or other loniged assets, or result in additional restructuetions, within the Automotive Experier
Europe segment, which could be material to the @ateted financial statements.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldgjexct to at least annual impairment testing. Othingible assets with definite lives
continue to be amortized over their estimated udiefes and are subject to impairment testing i®s or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. A carsible amount of management judgment and assursgerequired in performing
the impairment tests. While the Company believegukdgments and assumptions used in the impairtestst are reasonable and no
impairment existed at September 30, 2012, 20112844, different assumptions could change the egtinfair values and, therefore,
impairment charges could be required, which coeldnaterial to the consolidated financial statements

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax assets on a quarterly basis, or whenevatswe changes in circumstances
indicate that a review is required. In determiniihg requirement for a valuation allowance, thednisal and projected financial results
of the legal entity or consolidated group recordimg net deferred tax asset are considered, alithgawy other positive or negative
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmentfié®oGompany’s valuation allowances
may be necessary. Given the current economic oyt it is reasonably possible that over the reefve months, valuation
allowances against deferred tax assets in cedastjctions may result in a net increase to tgxemse of up to $400 million.

The Company has certain subsidiaries, mainly lacatdé-rance and Spain, which have generated opgratid/or capital losses and, in
certain circumstances, have limited loss carryfedageriods. In accordance with ASC 740, “Incomedakthe Company is required to
record a valuation allowance when it is more likiflgn not the Company will not utilize deductiblaaunts or net operating losses for
each legal entity or consolidated group based erah rules in the applicable jurisdiction, evailngtboth positive and negative
historical evidences as well as expected futuratsvand tax planning strategies.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairtmémenever events or changes in circumstancesatedtbat the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The Company condétadtng-lived asset impairment analyses in acancé with ASC 360-10-15,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” AS60-10-15 requires the Company to group assetsatilities at the lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows are largely in@gplent of the cash flows of other assets and iligisiland evaluate the asset group
against the sum of the undiscounted future castsfltf the undiscounted cash flows do not indi¢htecarrying amount of the asset
group is recoverable, an impairment charge is nredsas the amount by which the carrying amounhefasset group exceeds its fair
value based on discounted cash flow analysis ata#gais.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 tompany concluded it had a triggering event ragyassessment of impairment for
certain of its long-lived assets in conjunctionhwiils 2012 restructuring plan. In addition, in tbarth quarter of fiscal 2012, the
Company concluded it had a triggering event reggiassessment of impairment for certain of its {wed assets due to volume
declines in the European automotive markets. Assalt, the Company reviewed the loinged assets for impairment and recorded a
million impairment charge within restructuring cesin the consolidated statement of income, of wigmillion was recorded in the
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quarbéifiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $iillion related to the Power
Solutions segment, $11 million related to the Aubtiire Experience Europe segment, $4 million relatethe Building Efficiency Othe
segment and $10 million related to corporate asBetfer to Note 15, “Significant Restructuring Gg’sbf the notes to consolidated
financial statements for further information regagdthe 2012 Plan. The impairment was measuredsriépg on the asset, either under
an income approach utilizing forecasted discountsh flows or a market approach utilizing an agalaio determine fair values of the
impairment assets. These methods are consistdnthveitmethods the Company employed in prior periodslue other long-lived
assets. The inputs utilized in the analyses assified as Level 3 inputs within the fair valueraiehy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compaaprded an impairment charge related to an equigsitment. Refer to Note 1(dir
Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidateghtial statements for additional information.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company coedlitdlid not have any other triggering events idéog assessment of impairment
of its long-lived assets.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companpaiuded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of a pladpan in the Automotive Experience Asia segment Aesult, the Company reviewed
its long-lived assets for impairment and recorde&h1 million
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impairment charge within cost of sales in the fourtiarter of fiscal 2010 related to the Automottsgerience Asia segment. The
impairment was measured under a market approdctingian appraisal. The inputs utilized in the lggais are classified as Level 3
inputs within the fair value hierarchy as definedNSC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyaaded it had a triggering event requiring assesgraf impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of its heatiraauilding in Japan in the Automotive Experiersia segment. As a result, the
Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impaintrend recorded an $11 million impairment chargthiwiselling, general and
administrative expenses in the third quarter afdi010 related to the Automotive Experience Asigment. The impairment was
measured under a market approach utilizing an &ggbrdhe inputs utilized in the analysis are dféexs as Level 3 inputs within the fe
value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Valleasurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgluded it had a triggering event requiring assess of impairment of its long-
lived assets due to planned plant closures foAtitemotive Experience North America segment. Thassures are a result of the
Company'’s revised restructuring actions to the 2@8&ucturing plan. As a result, the Company neei¢its long-lived assets for
impairment and recorded a $19 million impairmerdrge in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 relatetie Automotive Experience
North America segment. This impairment charge wsebby a decrease in the Company’s restructuresgrve related to the 2008
restructuring plan due to lower employee severamcktermination benefit cash payments than preljicipected. The impairment
was measured under an income approach utilizirecémted discounted cash flows to determine thevdduie of the impaired assets.
This method is consistent with the method the Comieas employed in prior periods to value othegiived assets. The inputs
utilized in the discounted cash flow analysis dessified as Level 3 inputs within the fair valuerarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

Investments in partially-owned affiliates (“affites”) at September 30, 2012 were $948 million, $t@#on higher than the prior year.
The increase was primarily due to positive earnimgaffiliates in all businesses, primarily in thatomotive Experience Asia and
Power Solutions segments, and an acquisition atiaddl interests in a Power Solutions affiliatasipeally offset by dividends paid by
affiliates and the acquisition of the controllingédrest in a formerly unconsolidated Power Soldiafiiliate.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working Capital

September 3 September 3
(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Current assel $ 12,67: $ 12,01¢
Current liabilities (10,859 (10,789
1,81¢ 1,23: 47%
Less: Casl 26E 257
Add: Shor-term deb! 323 59¢€
Add: Current portion of lor-term deb 424 17
Working capital $  2,30( $ 1,58¢ 45%
Accounts receivabl 7,30¢ 7,151 2%
Inventories 2,227 2,31¢ -4%
Accounts payabl 6,11« 6,15¢ -1%

. The Company defines working capital as currenttadess current liabilities, excluding cash, shertn debt, and the current
portion of long-term debt. Management believes thistmeasure of working capital, which excludesificing-related items,
provides a more useful measurement of the Con’s operating performanc

. The increase in working capital at September 30228 compared to September 30, 2011 was printhréyto higher accounts
receivable from higher sales volumes, lower accopayable primarily due to timing of supplier paynse lower accrued
compensation and benefits primarily due to loweeitive compensation, and higher other currentsgsartially offset by lower
inventory levels based on increased turnc

40



Table of Contents

. The Company’s days sales in accounts receivabieased to 55 at September 30, 2012 from 52 foprilee year. The increase in
accounts receivable compared to September 30, \®8&primarily due to increased sales in the cuiyeat and timing of
customer receipts. There has been no significardrad change in the level of overdue receivablehanges in revenue
recognition method:

. The Company’s inventory turns during fiscal 201Zeveigher compared to the prior year primarily ttuécreased sales volumes
and improvements in inventory managem

. Days in accounts payable at September 30, 2018ared to 72 days from 71 days at September 30, @0harily due to the
timing of supplier payment

Cash Flows
Year Ended September &
(in millions) 2012 2011
Cash provided by operating activiti $ 1,55¢ $ 1,07¢
Cash used by investing activiti (1,799 (2,637
Cash provided by financing activiti 207 1,23¢
Capital expenditure (1,83)) (1,325

. The increase in cash provided by operating aatiwitvas primarily due to changes in accounts rebksyamventory and

restructuring reserves; partially offset by chanigeaccounts payable and accrued liabilities, o#tssets and accrued income ta
and lower net income

. The decrease in cash used by investing activitasprimarily due to lower cash paid for acquisisiaf businesses and cash
received for business divestitures, partially dffsghigher capital expenditure

. The decrease in cash provided by financing aatisitvas primarily due to a prior year $1.6 billianhd issuance, and current year
cash paid to repurchase stock and acquire nondiomgrinterests, partially offset by a current yé&dr.1 billion bond issuance and
lower repayments of debt. Refer to Note 8, “Delat Bmancing Arrangements,” of the notes to consiéid financial statements
for further discussion on debt issuances and @eietd.

. The increase in capital expenditures in the curyeat primarily related to capacity increases agrtical integration efforts in the
Power Solutions business, program spending forawestomer launches in the Automotive Experiencertassi, and increased
investments to support customer growth and enhémec€ompan’s strategic footprint primarily in Southeast As

Capitalization

September 3 September 3

(in millions) 2012 2011 Chang
Shor-term debt $ 328 $ 59¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 424 17
Long-term debt 5,321 4,53:
Total debt $ 6,06¢ $ 5,14¢ 18%
Shareholder equity attributable to Johnson Contrals, | 11,55t 11,04: 5%

Total capitalizatior $ 17,62 $ 16,18¢ 9%
Total debt as a % of total capitalizati 34% 32%

. The Company believes the percentage of total detattal capitalization is useful to understanding Company’s financial
condition as it provides a review of the extenivtich the Company relies on external debt finandorgts funding and is a
measure of risk to its shareholde

. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company hadnitbed bilateral euro denominated revolving créadilities totaling
237 million euro and 223 million euro, respectivelyglditionally, at September 30, 2012 and 2011,Gbenpany had committed
bilateral U.S. dollar denominated revolving crdditilities totaling $18¢
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million and $50 million, respectively. There were draws on any of the revolving facilities for ttespective periods. As of
September 30, 2012, facilities for $185 million &8¥ million euro are scheduled to expire in fi2@13, and a facility for
100 million euro is scheduled to expire in fiscalL2.

. In November 2010, the Company repaid debt of $8Ramiwhich was acquired as part of an acquisifiothe first quarter of
fiscal 2011. The Company used cash to repay the

. In January 2011, the Company retired $654 millioprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, of i255%6 fixed rate notes that
matured on January 15, 2011. The Company usededshd the paymen

. In February 2011, the Company issued $350 milliggragate principal amount of floating rate seniasecured notes due in fisi
2014, $450 million aggregate principal amount @5% senior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fa@a#, $500 million
aggregate principal amount of 4.25% senior unsekfixed rate notes due in fiscal 2021 and $300iomlaggregate principal
amount of 5.7% senior unsecured fixed rate notesmltiscal 2041. Aggregate net proceeds of $lll®bifrom the issues were
used for general corporate purposes includingati;ement of sho-term debt

. In February 2011, the Company entered into a sat;yE00 million euro, floating rate loan schedulednature in February 2017.
Proceeds from the facility were used for genergborate purpose:

. In February 2011, the Company replaced its $2.0®ticommitted five-year credit facility, scheddléo mature in December
2011, with a $2.5 billion committed four-year criefdicility scheduled to mature in February 2015e Tacility is used to support
the Compan’s outstanding commercial paper. At September 302 2bere were no draws on the facil

. In April 2011, a total of 157,820 equity units, whihad a purchase contract settlement date of M&rcB012, were early
exercised. As a result, the Company issued 7666@8:s of Johnson Controls, Inc. common stock ppcbaimately $8 million
of 11.5% notes due 204

. In November 2011, the Company issued $400 milliggregate principal amount of 2.6% senior unsecfixed rate notes due in
fiscal 2017, $450 million aggregate principal amioni3.75% senior unsecured fixed rate notes ddiséal 2022 and $250
million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senminsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2042. Agagte net proceeds of $1.1
billion from the issues were used for general coafpurposes, including the retirement of shemtr debt and contributions to
Compan’s pension and postretirement ple

. In December 2011, the Company entered into a feessy75 million euro, floating rate credit facilsgheduled to mature in
February 2017. The Company drew on the creditifaacuring the second quarter of fiscal 2012. Pealsefrom the facility were
used for general corporate purpos

. In March 2012, the Company remarketed $46 milliggragate principal amount of 11.5% subordinatedsidtie in fiscal 2042,
on behalf of holders of Corporate Units and holadrseparate notes, by issuing $46 million aggmegancipal amount of 2.355%
senior notes due on March 31, 20

. The Company also selectively makes use of sieont-credit lines. The Company estimates thatf &eptember 30, 2012, it coL
borrow up to $1.9 billion at its current debt rasnon committed credit line

. The Company believes its capital resources anddiiguposition at September 30, 2012 are adequatedet projected needs. The
Company believes requirements for working capdapital expenditures, dividends, minimum pensiomtigoutions, debt
maturities, announced acquisitions and any potestiguisitions in fiscal 2013 will continue to bénfled from operations,
supplemented by short- and long-term borrowingsediired. The Company currently manages its dleomt-debt position in the
U.S. and euro commercial paper markets and bamkriwakets. In the event the Company is unablestieeisommercial paper, it
would have the ability to draw on its $2.5 billieevolving credit facility, which matures in Febry&015. There were no draws
the revolving credit facility as of September 3012. As such, the Company believes it has suffidieancial resources to fund
operations and meet its obligations for the forabkefuture

. The Company earns a significant amount of its dpegancome outside the U.S., which is deemed tpdrenanently reinvested in
foreign jurisdictions. The Company currently does intend nor foresee a need to repatriate thesisfurhe Company’s intent is
for such earnings to be reinvested by the subgidiar to be repatriated only when it would beeéfrctive through the utilization
of foreign tax credits. The Company expects exjstiomestic cash and liquidity to continue to bdisight to fund the Companyg’
domestic operating activities and cash commitmfamtBivesting and financing activities for at letts¢ next twelve months and
thereafter for the foreseeable future. In additthe, Company expects existing foreign cash, casltvalgnts, short-term
investments and cash flows from operations to ooetio be sufficient to fund the Company’s foredgrerating activities and cash
commitments for investing activities, such as mateapital
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expenditures, for at least the next twelve montitstaereafter for the foreseeable future. Shoudddbmpany require more capital
in the U.S. than is generated by operations dooadhti the Company could elect to raise capitahimU.S. through debt or equity
issuances. This alternative could result in inazdadnterest expense or other dilution of the Corgfmaarnings. The Company t
borrowed funds domestically and continues to hiaeeability to borrow funds domestically at reasdaabterest rates

. The Company’s debt financial covenants require @mim consolidated shareholders’ equity attribigablJohnson Controls,
Inc. of at least $3.5 billion at all times and alla maximum aggregated amount of 10% of consoliisitareholders’ equity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. for liend aledges. For purposes of calculating the Comgacgvenants, consolidated
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac. is calculated without giving effect to {fije application of ASC 715-60,
“Defined Benefit Plans - Other Postretirement,{igrthe cumulative foreign currency translatiorjuesiment. As of September 30,
2012, consolidated shareholders’ equity attrib@tablJohnson Controls, Inc. as defined per the @Gmiyip debt financial
covenants was $11.2 billion and there were no antshg amounts for liens and pledges. The Compapgats to remain in
compliance with all covenants and other requiremeat forth in its credit agreements and indentimethe foreseeable future.
None of the Compar's debt agreements limit access to stated borroVewgjs or require accelerated repayment in thateviea
decrease in the Compé's credit rating

A summary of the Company’s significant contractoialigations as of September 30, 2012 is as follpasillions):

2018
Total 2013 2014201 20162017  and Beyon

Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt

(including capital lease obligations $ 5748 % 424 $1,07: $ 164 $ 2,60«
Interest on long-term debt

(including capital lease obligations 2,56¢ 233 413 30t 1,61¢
Operating lease 97¢ 31t 40z 174 87
Purchase obligatior 2,17¢ 1,73 39€ 40 7
Pension and postretirement contributi 382 94 47 54 187
Total contractual cash obligatio $11,84¢  $2,79¢ $2,33C $ 2,21¢ $ 4,50(

* See"Capitalizatior” for additional information related to the Comp’s lon¢-term debt

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated financiéstants in conformity with accounting principlesigeally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP). This requires managet to make estimates and assumptions that aéfpotted amounts and related
disclosures. Actual results could differ from thestimates. The following policies are considergdrianagement to be the most criti
in understanding the judgments that are involvetthénpreparation of the Company’s consolidatednfiiel statements and the
uncertainties that could impact the Company’s tesafl operations, financial position and cash flows

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsizevenue from certain long-term contracts overctintractual period under the
percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accounfiiigs method of accounting recognizes sales ansisgorofit as work is
performed based on the relationship between actsi$ incurred and total estimated costs at corpleRecognized revenues that will
not be billed under the terms of the contract umtdter date are recorded in unbilled accounivable. Likewise, contracts where
billings to date have exceeded recognized revearggecorded in other current liabilities. Chantgethe original estimates may be
required during the life of the contract and sustineates are reviewed monthly. Sales and gros# jaref adjusted using the cumulative
catch-up method for revisions in estimated totaltiact costs and contract values. Estimated laagesecorded when identified. Claims
against customers are recognized as revenue ugitamsnt. The amount of
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accounts receivable due after one year is notfignt. The use of the POC method of accountinglves considerable use of estime

in determining revenues, costs and profits and#igaing the amounts to accounting periods. Thiegierreviews have not resulted in
adjustments that were significant to the Compsamgsults of operations. The Company continualBluates all of the assumptions, ri

and uncertainties inherent with the applicatiothef POC method of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into exteshevarranties and long-term service and maintenagmements with certain
customers. For these arrangements, revenue isnigedgon a straight-line basis over the respectrdract term.

The Company'’s Building Efficiency business alsdsseértain heating, ventilating and air conditianifiHVAC) and refrigeration
products and services in bundled arrangements,enhalttiple products and/or services are involvacadcordance with ASU No. 2009-
13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliable Revenue Arrangements - A Consensus of AIBBREmMerging Issues Task
Force,” the Company divides bundled arrangememass@parate deliverables and revenue is allocateddh deliverable based on the
relative selling price method. Significant delivieles within these arrangements include equipmemntneissioning, service labor and
extended warranties. In order to estimate relateling price, market data and transfer price stsidire utilized. Approximately four to
twelve months separate the timing of the firstwikble until the last piece of equipment is detde and there may be extended
warranty arrangements with duration of one to figars commencing upon the end of the standard agrperiod.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascgsrare performed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ager or more frequently if events or changes iowrnstances indicate the asset might
be impaired. The Company performs impairment regiéw its reporting units, which have been detepdito be the Company’s
reportable segments or one level below the replersdgments in certain instances, using a fairevelethod based on management's
judgments and assumptions or third party valuatidhs fair value of a reporting unit refers to grece that would be received to sell
unit as a whole in an orderly transaction betweearket participants at the measurement date. Imastig the fair value, the Company
uses multiples of earnings based on the averaggstofrical, published multiples of earnings of cargble entities with similar
operations and economic characteristics. In cemaitances, the Company uses discounted cash fialyses to further support the fair
value estimates. The inputs utilized in the anayse classified as Level 3 inputs within the f@ilue hierarchy as defined in ASC 820,
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.” Thavestd fair value is then compared with the carrgngpunt of the reporting unit,
including recorded goodwill. The Company is subjedinancial statement risk to the extent that¢heying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value. The impairment testing penfed by the Company in the fourth quarter of figedr 2012, 2011 and 2010
indicated that the estimated fair value of eaclorépy unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorded
goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at&aper 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. No reporting uai determined to be at risk of
failing step one of the goodwill impairment testhié at September 30, 2012 the estimated fair vafueach reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount inclydétorded goodwill, a prolonged significant deelin the European automotive
industry could put the Company at risk of not aeimg future growth assumptions and could resuitripairment of goodwill or other
long-lived assets, or result in additional restuicty actions, within the Automotive Experience & segment, which could be
material to the consolidated financial statements.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldgjexct to at least annual impairment testing. Othigngible assets with definite lives
continue to be amortized over their estimated udiefes and are subject to impairment testing it or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. A carsidle amount of management judgment and assursierrequired in performing
the impairment tests. While the Company believegukdgments and assumptions used in the impairtestst are reasonable and no
impairment existed at September 30, 2012, 20112840, different assumptions could change the egtithiair values and, therefore,
impairment charges could be required, which coeldnaterial to the consolidated financial statements
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Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a range of benefits to itsleyaes and retired employees, including pensiodspastretirement benefits. Plan
assets and obligations are measured annually, gr freguently if there is a remeasurement eversiedan the Company’s
measurement date utilizing various actuarial assiomg such as discount rates, assumed rates ohyemmpensation increases,
turnover rates and health care cost trend rate$that date. The Company reviews its actuarialiaggions on an annual basis and
makes modifications to the assumptions based aemurates and trends when appropriate.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compahgrmyed its accounting policy for recognizing pensad postretirement benefit
expenses. The Company’s historical accountingrtreat smoothed asset returns and amortized defectedrial gains and losses over
future years. By adopting the new mark-to-markebaating method, the Company recognizes these gaith$osses in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year or at the date of aegsarement event. The Company believes this neypslpreferable and provides
greater transparency to on-going operational restitie change has no impact on future pension asttgtirement funding or benefits
paid to participants. These changes have beentegpitirough retrospective application of the nevicgdo all periods presented.

U.S. GAAP requires that companies recognize irstatement of financial position a liability for defd benefit pension and
postretirement plans that are underfunded or urgdndr an asset for defined benefit pension anttgioement plans that are
overfunded. U.S. GAAP also requires that compamieasure the benefit obligations and fair valuelaf gssets that determine a bel
plan’s funded status as of the date of the emple¥iscal year-end.

The Company considers the expected benefit paynoardsplan-by-plan basis when setting assumed uiigcates. As a result, the
Company uses different discount rates for each ggeending on the plan jurisdiction, the demogrepbf participants and the expec
timing of benefit payments. For the U.S. pensiod postretirement plans, the Company uses a disecatenprovided by an independent
third party calculated based on an appropriateohhigh quality bonds. For the non-U.S. pension postretirement plans, the
Company consistently uses the relevant countryifipbéenchmark indices for determining the varialiscount rates. The Company’s
discount rate on U.S. plans was 4.15% and 5.258&jptember 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The @oyp weighted average
discount rate on non-U.S. plans was 3.40% and 4 &08&ptember 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In estimating the expected return on plan asdstsCbmpany considers the historical returns on ptsets, adjusted for forwalabking
considerations, inflation assumptions and the ihphthe active management of the plans’ investsgts. Reflecting the relatively
long-term nature of the plans’ obligations, appnoxiely 50% of the plans’ assets are invested iitieguwith the remainder primarily
invested in fixed income and alternative investraeRbr the years ending September 30, 2012 and #d Company’s expected long-
term return on U.S. pension plan assets used #ordigte net periodic benefit cost was 8.50%. Thaadcate of return on U.S. pension
plans was above 8.50% in fiscal 2012 and below?.50fiscal 2011. For the years ending Septembef302 and 2011, the
Company’s weighted average expected long-termmetomon-U.S. pension plan assets was 5.15% afé8d espectively. Plan assets
for the Company’s postretirement plans were couated at the end of fiscal 2011 and were not contateqh in fiscal 2011 net periodic
benefit costs. For the year ending September 3[R,26e Company’s weighted average expected lomg-teturn on postretirement
plan assets was 6.30%. The actual rate of retupostretirement plan assets was above 6.30% ial fX12.

Beginning in fiscal 2013, the Company believesltimg-term rate of return will approximate 8.00%(%P46 and 5.80% for U.S. pension,
non-U.S. pension and postretirement plans, respdgtiAny differences between actual investmentltesand the expected long-term
asset returns will be reflected in net periodicdftrtosts in the fourth quarter of each fiscalryéiathe Companys actual returns on pl
assets are less than the Company’s expectatiodisioac! contributions may be required.

In fiscal 2012, total employer and employee conititdns to the defined benefit pension plans we@$8illion, of which $266 million
were voluntary contributions made by the Compare Tompany expects to contribute approximately $aidon in cash to its
defined benefit pension plans in fiscal year 20@3iscal 2012, total employer and employee coutiins to the postretirement plans
were $63 million, of which $60 million were volumyacontributions made by the Company. The Compargsdot expect to make any
significant contributions to its postretirementr@an fiscal year 2013.
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Based on information provided by its independetuaes and other relevant sources, the Compairsneslthat the assumptions used
are reasonable; however, changes in these assmsiptald impact the Company'’s financial positia@suits of operations or cash
flows.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its customers igipg upon the specific product and terms of th&a@uer purchase agreement. A
typical warranty program requires that the Compapyace defective products within a specified timeeiod from the date of sale. The
Company records an estimate of future warrantytedlaosts based on actual historical return ratdsother known factors. Based on

analysis of return rates and other factors, theaaey of the Compang'warranty provisions are adjusted as necessargeptember 3

2012, the Company had recorded $278 million of arty reserves. The Company monitors its warrartiyigcand adjusts its reserve

estimates when it is probable that future warraoists will be different than those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordantbeASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assetd liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable tiedihces between financial statement carrying atsoafrexisting assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating lus®ther loss carryforwards. Deferred tax asseddiahilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablenirda the years in which those temporary differsrene expected to be recovered or
settled. The Company records a valuation allowainaeprimarily represents non-U.S. operating amoloss carryforwards for which
utilization is uncertain. Management judgment guieed in determining the Company’s provision facome taxes, deferred tax assets
and liabilities and the valuation allowance recdrdgainst the Compars/het deferred tax assets. In calculating the piawifor incom:
taxes on an interim basis, the Company uses anastiof the annual effective tax rate based upeffiatis and circumstances known at
each interim period. On a quarterly basis, theadctffective tax rate is adjusted as appropriageaipon the actual results as compared
to those forecasted at the beginning of the figeal. In determining the need for a valuation atloee, the historical and projected
financial results of the legal entity or consolethgroup recording the net deferred tax assetarsidered, along with any other posit

or negative evidence. Since future financial resoiay differ from previous estimates, periodic atiients to the Company’s valuation
allowance may be necessary. At September 30, 208Z,ompany had a valuation allowance of $766 omiJlof which $619 million
relates to net operating loss carryforwards pritpami France and Spain, for which sustainable téairome has not been
demonstrated; and $147 million for other deferaeddssets. Given the current economic uncertainig/reasonably possible that over
the next twelve months, valuation allowances agaieferred tax assets in certain jurisdictions mesylt in a net increase to tax expe

of up to $400 million.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the &Bh8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentdsired in determining its
worldwide provision for income taxes and recordihg related assets and liabilities. In the ordiramyrse of the Company’s business,
there are many transactions and calculations wtheraltimate tax determination is uncertain. Thenpany is regularly under audit by
tax authorities. At September 30, 2012, the Compeatyunrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 million.

The Company does not provide additional U.S. inctames on undistributed earnings of non-U.S. cadatdd subsidiaries included in
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac. Such earnings could become taxable upesdle or liquidation of these non-
U.S. subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriatione TGompany’s intent is for such earnings to be stad by the subsidiaries or to be
repatriated only when it would be tax effectiveotigh the utilization of foreign tax credits. Refer‘Capitalization” within the

“Liquidity and Capital Resources” section for dission of domestic and foreign cash projections.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standalpdate (ASU) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles - GoodwilidaOther (Topic 350):
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Inipaent.” ASU No. 2012-02 provides companies anapfirst to assess qualitative
factors to determine whether the existence of evand circumstances indicates that it is moreyikehn not that the indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If, as a result efdoalitative assessment, it is determined thatribt more likely than not that the
indefinite-lived intangible assets is impaired,rittbe Company is not required to take further actfSU No. 2012-02 will be effective
for the Company for impairment tests of indefiriteed intangible assets performed in the fiscalryaling September 30, 2013, with
early adoption permitted. The adoption of this gmick will have no impact on the Company’s constdiddinancial condition and
results of operations.
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In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about @fsg Assets and
Liabilities.” ASU No. 201111 requires additional quantitative and qualitatiisclosures of gross and net information regardimancia
instruments and derivative instruments that arsedfbr eligible for offset in the consolidated staént of financial position. ASU

No. 2011-11 will be effective for the Company fhetquarter ending December 31, 2013. The adopfitiisoguidance will have no
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial dbonl and results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011‘©8mpensation - Retirement Benefits - Multiemploitans (Subtopic 715-80):
Disclosures about an Employer’s Participation Mwtiemployer Plan.” ASU No. 2011-09 requires adatial quantitative and
qualitative disclosures about an employer’s paéition in multiemployer pension plans, includingadosure of the name and
identifying number of the significant multiemployglians in which the employer participates, the ll@f¢he employer’s participation in
the plans, the financial health of the plans ardntéiture of the employer commitments to the plagt) No. 2011-09 was effective for
the Company for the fiscal year ending SeptembeP@02. The adoption of this guidance had no impadhe Compang consolidate
financial condition and results of operations. RééeNote 14, “Retirement Plans,” of the notesdasolidated financial statements for
disclosures surrounding the Company’s participaitiomultiemployer pension plans.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 201116&ngibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Tiag Goodwill for
Impairment.” ASU No. 2011-08 provides companie®ption to perform a qualitative assessment to detexr whether further goodwill
impairment testing is necessary. If, as a resulhefgualitative assessment, it is determinedittigimore likely than not that a reporting
unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amouhg two-step quantitative impairment test is reepli Otherwise, no further testing is
required. ASU No. 2011-08 will be effective for tBempany for goodwill impairment tests performedha fiscal year ending
September 30, 2013, with early adoption permitfde adoption of this guidance will have no impattioee Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Getmgnsive Income.” ASU
No. 2011-05 eliminates the option to present coreptsof other comprehensive income as part oftdteraent of shareholdersguity.
All non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity iadtmust be presented either in a single continstaisment of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesn&8U No. 2011-05 will be effective for the Compdar the quarter ending
December 31, 2012. The adoption of this guidandiehaie no impact on the Company’s consolidatedrfoial condition and results of
operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Rétue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Aghi@ommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. BAAd IFRSs.” ASU No. 20104 clarifies and changes the application of vai
fair value measurement principles and disclosuyeirements, and was effective for the Company begqin the second quarter of
fiscal 2012 (January 1, 2012). The adoption of ghislance had no impact on the Compargonsolidated financial condition and res
of operations. Refer to Note 10, “Fair Value Measuents, of the notes to consolidated financial statememtslisclosures surroundir
the Company’s fair value measurements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumenteduce market risk associated with changesrgign currency, commodities,
interest rates and stotdased compensation. All hedging transactions dtedned and executed pursuant to clearly defir@itips an
procedures, which strictly prohibit the use of fiogl instruments for speculative purposes. Atititeption of the hedge, the Company
assesses the effectiveness of the hedge instriamdrmtesignates the hedge instrument as eitherh@dige of a recognized asset or
liability or of a recognized firm commitment (afaialue hedge), (2) a hedge of a forecasted tréinsaar of the variability of cash flov
to be received or paid related to an unrecognissdtaor liability (a cash flow hedge) or (3) a hedda net investment in a non-U.S.
operation (a net investment hedge). The Comparfpimes hedge effectiveness testing on an ongoing ll@pending on the type of
hedging instrument used. All other derivatives aegignated as hedging instruments under ASC 81&jvatives and Hedging,” are
revalued in the consolidated statements of income.

For all foreign currency derivative instrumentsigeated as cash flow hedges, retrospective efieotss is tested on a monthly basis
using a cumulative dollar offset test. The fairueabf the hedged exposures and the fair valueeoi¢hige instruments are revalued and
the ratio of the cumulative sum of the periodicraes in the value of the hedge instruments to tinewtative sum of the periodic
changes in the value of the hedge is calculated.nEdge
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is deemed as highly effective if the ratio is beaw80% and 125%. For commodity derivative contrdetignated as cash flow hedges,
effectiveness is tested using a regression calonldneffectiveness is minimal as the Companyradignost of the critical terms of its
derivatives with the supply contracts.

For net investment hedges, the Company assesses itevestment positions in the non-U.S. operatiamd compares it with the
outstanding net investment hedges on a quartesigbéhe hedge is deemed effective if the aggremattstanding principal of the hedge
instruments designated as the net investment Hadgaon-U.S. operation does not exceed the Conipaey investment positions in
the respective non-U.S. operation.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapesdiace market risk associated with changes imasteates for its fixed-rate bonds.
For the five fixed to floating interest rate swaptaling $450 million to hedge the coupon of it8326 notes maturing March 2014, the
Company elected the short cut method as the aiterapply the short cut method as defined in ASEWBas met and the critical terms
for both the hedge and underlying hedged itemdwrtical at inception of the hedge and the preslergorting periods. In applying the
short cut method, the Company is allowed to asszene ineffectiveness without performing detailef@etiveness assessments and
not record any ineffectiveness related to the hedlgdionship. For remaining interest rate swalps Jong-haul method is used. The
Company therefore assesses retrospective and ptvgpeffectiveness on a quarterly basis and recany measured ineffectiveness in
the consolidated statements of income.

Equity swaps and any other derivative instrumentsesignated as hedging instruments under ASG&jifire no assessment of
effectiveness on a quarterly basis.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting polic@sderivative financial instruments is included\nte 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consolidafiedincial statements, and further disclosure ne¢ato derivatives and hedging
activities is included in Note 9, “Derivative Instnents and Hedging Activities,” and Note 10, “Pédalue Measurements,” of the notes
to consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distoibdisicilities around the world and thus makes itmesits and enters into
transactions denominated in various foreign culie=ndn order to maintain strict control and acki¢ve benefits of the Company’s
global diversification, foreign exchange exposudoesach currency are netted internally so thay @slnet foreign exchange exposures
are, as appropriate, hedged with financial instmtse

The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal amafugdich of its known foreign exchange transactiemposures. The Company
primarily enters into foreign currency exchangetcaxts to reduce the earnings and cash flow imgiatte variation of non-functional
currency denominated receivables and payabless@aith losses resulting from hedging instrumentsebdthe foreign exchange gain:
losses on the underlying assets and liabilitieadbedged. The maturities of the forward exchamgeracts generally coincide with the
settlement dates of the related transactions. Bshnd unrealized gains and losses on these ctnéii@ recognized in the same period
as gains and losses on the hedged items. The Cgrafsanselectively hedges anticipated transactioaisare subject to foreign
exchange exposure, primarily with foreign curreegghange contracts, which are designated as aasthéidges in accordance with
ASC 815. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Coynestimates that an unfavorable 10% change inxbleamge rates would have
decreased net unrealized gains by approximatelyn#iZi®@n and $54 million, respectively.

The Company has entered into cross-currency irtteaessswaps to selectively hedge portions ofétisimvestment in Japan. The
currency effects of the cross-currency interes sataps are reflected in the accumulated other relmepsive income (AOCI) account
within shareholders’ equity attributable to John&umtrols, Inc. where they offset gains and loseesrded on the Company’s net
investment in Japan.

Interest Rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps to offsekfiesure to interest rate movements. In accordaitbeASC 815, these outstanding
swaps qualify and are designated as fair valuedwdys of September 30, 2012, the Company had miggrest rate swaps totaling
$850 million outstanding. A 10% increase in therage cost of the Company’s variable rate debt weesdilt in an unfavorable change
in pre-tax interest expense of approximately $3ioniland $5 million at September 30, 2012 and 20d4pectively.
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Commodities

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firrmigrivatives market in cases where commodityeptigk cannot be naturally
offset or hedged through supply base fixed pricgrects. Commaodity risks are systematically manggeduant to policy guidelines.
As a cash flow hedge, gains and losses resultorg the hedging instruments offset the gains orel®ss purchases of the underlying
commodities that will be used in the business. Mia¢urities of the commodity contracts coincide wite expected purchase of the
commodities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company’s global operations are governed byr@mwmental laws and worker safety laws. Under uagioircumstances, these laws
impose civil and criminal penalties and fines, &dlws injunctive and remedial relief, for noncorapte and require remediation at s
where Company-related substances have been reliedésede environment.

The Company has expended substantial resourcealiglatoth financial and managerial, to comply wéibplicable environmental laws
and worker safety laws and to protect the envirartraed workers. The Company believes it is in sl compliance with such laws
and maintains procedures designed to foster angdegempliance. However, the Company has beeniratheé future may become, the
subject of formal or informal enforcement actiongpoceedings regarding noncompliance with sucts lanthe remediation of
Company-related substances released into the emwéot. Such matters typically are resolved by riagoh with regulatory authorities
resulting in commitments to compliance, abatemenémediation programs and in some cases paymeauraities. Historically,
neither such commitments nor penalties imposedterCompany have been material.

Environmental considerations are a part of allificent capital expenditure decisions; however,enditures in fiscal 2012 related
solely to environmental compliance were not matefinSeptember 30, 2012 and 2011, the Companydecoenvironmental liabilities
of $25 million and $30 million, respectively. A aige to income is recorded when it is probable #i&bility has been incurred and the
amount of the liability is reasonably estimableeTompany’s environmental liabilities do not takticonsideration any possible
recoveries of future insurance proceeds. Becaudeaincertainties associated with environmentakdiation activities at sites where
the Company may be potentially liable, future exg@snto remediate identified sites could be conaldghigher than the accrued
liability. However, while neither the timing nordlamount of ultimate costs associated with knowirenmental remediation matters
can be determined at this time, the Company doesxpect that these matters will have a materiaéegk effect on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.ddition, the Company has identified asset retirgnebligations for environmental
matters that are expected to be addressed attitesrent, disposal, removal or abandonment of xjstwned facilities, primarily in tt
Power Solutions business. At September 30, 20126amid, the Company recorded conditional asseeragnt obligations of $76
million and $91 million, respectively.

Additionally, the Company is involved in a numbémpooduct liability and various other casualty laits incident to the operation of its
businesses. The Company maintains insurance caseagl records estimated costs for claims and @uitss nature. It is
management’s opinion that none of these will haweagerially adverse effect on the Company'’s finahposition, results of operations
or cash flows (see Note 20, “Commitments and Cgeticies,” of the notes to consolidated financialeshents). Costs related to such
matters were not material to the periods presented.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Previously reported quarterly amounts have bee@ategddo reflect the retrospective application e @ompany’s accounting policy
change for recognizing pension and postretiremenefit expense. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Sigaift Accounting Policies,” of
the notes to consolidated financial statementéuither details surrounding this accounting polityange.

(in millions, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth Full
(unaudited Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2012
Net sales $10,41° $10,56¢ $10,58. $10,39: $41,95!
Gross profit 1,53¢ 1,552 1,541 1,58¢ 6,21¢
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contilois, (1) 424 37¢ 431 (8) 1,22¢
Earnings (loss) per share |
Basic 0.62 0.5¢ 0.6: (0.0)) 1.8
Diluted 0.62 0.5t 0.6¢ (0.09) 1.7¢
2011
Net sales $ 9,637 $10,14« $10,36¢ $10,78¢ $40,83:
Gross profit 1,41¢€ 1,47¢ 1,552 1,61¢ 6,05¢
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 18 40C 414 367 234 1,41¢
Earnings per share (
Basic 0.5¢ 0.61 0.54 0.34 2.0¢
Diluted 0.5¢ 0.6(¢ 0.5 0.3¢ 2.0¢

(1)

(2)

(3)

The fiscal 2012 first quarter net income in@ad $25 million gain on redemption of a warrantsfio existing Power Solutions partially-
owned affiliate. The fiscal 2012 second quarterinedme includes a $35 million gain on businesgslitures net of transaction costs in
the Building Efficiency business and a $14 milliarpairment of an equity investment in the Powenu8ohs segment. The fiscal 2012
third quarter net income includes $52 million afrsficant restructuring costs. The fiscal 2012 fhuquarter net income includes $447
million of net mark-to-market charges on pensiod pastretirement plans and $245 million of sigmifit restructuring costs. The
preceding amounts are stated on &«tax basis

The fiscal 2011 first quarter net income inead $27 million net actuarial gain due to a pempian curtailment. The fiscal 2011
second quarter net income includes a $68 millidrantiarial gain due to a pension plan curtailnzert $36 million of costs related to
business acquisitions recorded in the Automotivedtience Europe segment. The fiscal 2011 thirdtguaet income includes $28
million of costs related to business acquisiticeorded in the Automotive Experience Europe segnidm fiscal 2011 fourth quarter
net income includes $479 million of net marka@rket charges on pension and postretirement pda®37 million gain on acquisition

a Power Solutions partially-owned affiliate netagfjuisition costs and related purchase accountpgnents and a Power Solutions
partially-owned affiliate’s restatement of priorjpel income; and $43 million of restructuring costsorded in the Building Efficiency
and Automotive Experience businesses. The precediraunts are stated on a-tax basis

Due to the use of the weighted-average sharessamding for each quarter for computing earnpeysshare, the sum of the quarterly per
share amounts may not equal the per share amauthiefgear

ITEM7A  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK ET RISK
See “Risk Management” included in Item 7 - Managet'seDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditeomd Results of Operations.
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R eport of Independent Reqistered Public Accounting ifm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johi@ontrols, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fainyall material respects, the financial
position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsiégat September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the sesutheir operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodegh8eptember 30, 2012 in conformity with accounfirigciples generally accepted in
the United States of America. In addition, in opimion, the financial statement schedule listethsnaccompanying index presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein when read in conjunction with th&ated consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maiet, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2012, based on criteria establishketiernal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO¥ Thmpany’s management is responsible for thesadial statements and
financial statement schedule, for maintaining @ffecinternal control over financial reporting afwd its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, indied in Management's Report on Internal Control Gsieancial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to expressnims on these financial statements, on the firdustatement schedule, and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our integrated audits. We conducteduditsain accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigtard (United States). Those standards requitevtk plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whighénancial statements are free of material taitsment and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits of tharicial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutieunts and disclosures in the financial statespassessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made agagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting includeldtaining an understanding of internal control duggncial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the asse:!
risk. Our audits also included performing such offvecedures as we considered necessary in thentitances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, in 2012 the Company has changedkeitisad of accounting for pension
and postretirement benefits. All periods have bre¢mactively revised for this accounting change.

. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 100 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wi 53202
T: (414)212- 1600, F: (414) 212- 1880, www.pwc.com/us
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A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclgd@ose policies and procedures that (i) pertatheéanaintenant
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurateti/fairly reflect the transactions and dispositiohthe assets of the company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #oad receipts and expenditures of the company @iregbmade only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of timepany; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancerdaygprevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or aigjon of the company’s assets that could havegenal effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perio@ssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeanaate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance witih policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L
PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
Milwaukee, Wisconsi
November 19, 201
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J ohnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended September 3(C

(in millions, except per share data 2012 2011 2010
Net sales

Products and system $33,566.  $32,42(  $27,20:

Services* 8,39/ 8,41: 7,101

41,95t 40,83 34,30¢

Cost of sale:

Products and system 28,83¢ 27,67¢ 23,26:

Services* 6,89¢ 7,10( 5,821

35,731 34,77¢ 29,08«

Gross profit 6,21¢ 6,05¢ 5,221
Selling, general and administrative exper (4,439 (4,399 (3,796
Restructuring cost (297) — —
Net financing charge (233 (174 (170
Equity income 34C 29¢ 254
Income before income tax 1,59( 1,78¢ 1,50¢
Provision for income taxe 237 257 127
Net income 1,35: 1,532 1,38
Income attributable to noncontrolling intere 127 117 75
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, $ 122 $1418 $ 1,30:
Earnings per shal

Basic $ 18 $ 20¢ $ 1.9/

Diluted $ 17¢ $ 20¢€ $ 1.92

* Products and systems consist of Automotive Exgere and Power Solutions products and systems aitdirig) Efficiency installed
systems. Services are Building Efficiency technarad Global Workplace Solutior

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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J ohnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

September 30
(in millions, except par value and share data 2012 2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 268 $ 257
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbants of $78 and $89, respectiv 7,30¢ 7,151
Inventories 2,221 2,31¢
Other current asse 2,87: 2,291
Current assetl 12,67: 12,01t
Property, plant and equipme- net 6,44( 5,61¢
Goodwill 6,98: 7,01¢
Other intangible asse- net 947 94t
Investments in partial-owned affiliates 94¢ 811
Other noncurrent asse 2,894 3,27:
Total asset $30,88:  $29,67¢
Liabilities and Equity
Shor-term debt $ 32 $ 59¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 424 17
Accounts payabl 6,11 6,15¢
Accrued compensation and bene 1,09( 1,31t
Other current liabilitie: 2,904 2,69t
Current liabilities 10,85¢ 10,78:
Long-term debt 5,321 4,53:
Pension and postretirement bene 1,24¢ 1,10z
Other noncurrent liabilitie 1,504 1,81¢
Long-term liabilities 8,07: 7,45¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Redeemable noncontrolling intere 258 26(
Common Stock, $.01 7/18 par value shares authoriz880,000,000 shares issued: 2012 - 688,483 BV -
682,634,23¢ 1C 9
Capital in excess of par val 2,72¢ 2,62(
Retained earning 8,541 7,83¢
Treasury stock, at cost (20- 6,176,266; 201- 2,470,168 share: a79) (74)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 45¢ 64¢
Shareholder equity attributable to Johnson Controls, | 11,55¢ 11,04:
Noncontrolling interest 14¢ 13¢
Total equity 11,70: 11,18(
Total liabilities and equit' $30,88:  $29,67¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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J ohnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions)

Operating Activities

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Income attributable to noncontrolling intere

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praVicle operating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible:
Pension and postretirement benefit expe
Pension and postretirement contributi
Equity in earnings of partial-owned affiliates, net of dividends receiv
Deferred income taxe
Impairment charge
Gain on divestiture- net
Fair value adjustment of equity investm
Equity-based compensatic
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding adipis and divestiture:
Receivable!
Inventories
Other asset
Restructuring reserve
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Accrued income taxe

Cash provided by operating activiti

Investing Activities

Capital expenditure

Sale of property, plant and equipm:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Business divestiture

Settlement of cro-currency interest rate swa
Changes in lor-term investment

Warrant redemptio

Cash used by investing activiti

Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in st-term debt net
Increase in lon-term debt
Repayment of lor-term debi
Stock repurchase
Payment of cash dividen:
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Settlement of interest rate swe
Cash paid to acquire a noncontrolling inte
Other
Cash provided (used) by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaémts

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Year Ended September 30

2012 2011 2010
$1,22¢  $141F  $1,307
127 117 75
1,35¢ 1,53: 1,38
76¢ 67¢ 64¢
56 53 43
47¢ 41¢ 37¢
(414 @51)  (695)
(13€) (15) 5
(20€) (257 (155
53 — 41
(40) — —
(12) (89 (47)
56 59 49
(11) 2 13
(114) (721)  (60¢)
39 (387) (260
(367) (11€) 274
19¢ (94 (19
(64) 34z 812
(75) 131 (247)
1,55¢ 1,076  143¢
(1,83) (1,329 (777
58 54 47
(30) (1,226 (61)
10¢ — —
(19 — —
(100) (140  (10)
25 — —
(1,799 (2,63) _ (892
(302) 51C (575)
1,26( 1,85¢ 51F
(36) 787  (526)
(102) — —
(477) (419 (339
40 105 52
(11E) (23) —
(62) (29 (229
207 1,23¢ (895)
34 19 14¢
8 (303  (201)
257 56C 761
$ 265 $ 257 $ 56C
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J ohnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity Attbutable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

(in millions, except per share da
At September 30, 2009 (previously reported)
Pension and postretirement policy change (No
At September 30, 2009 (revisec
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat
Unrealized gains on marketable common sf
Employee retirement pla
Other comprehensive lo
Comprehensive incorr
Cash dividend
Common ($0.52 per shar
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redééena
noncontrolling interest
Other, including options exercis
At September 30, 201(
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized and unrealized losses on derivai
Unrealized gains on marketable common sf
Employee retirement plai
Other comprehensive lo
Comprehensive incorr
Cash dividend
Common ($0.64 per shar
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redééena
noncontrolling interest
Other, including options exercis
At September 30, 201:
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat
Unrealized losses on marketable common s
Employee retirement pla
Other comprehensive lo
Comprehensive incorr
Cash dividend
Common ($0.72 per shar
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redéésna
noncontrolling interest
Repurchases of common stc
Other, including options exercis
At September 30, 201!

Capital ir

Accumulated

Treasur
: Other
Commor Excess ¢ Retainel Comprehensiv
Stock,
Total Stock Par Valu Earning: at Cosl Income (Loss
$910C $ 9 $235¢ $661F $ (700 $ 192
— — — (691) — 691
9,10( 9 2,35¢ 5,924 (70) 88:¢
1,307 — — 1,30i — —
(11F — — — — (115)
13 — — — — 13
3 — — — — 3
14 - - - - 14
(85)
1,222
(350) — — (350) — —
9 — — 9 — —
90 - 94 - (4) -
10,07: 9 2,44¢ 6,89( (74) 79¢
1,41¢ — — 1,41¢ — —
(109 - - - - (109)
(47) — — — — (47)
3 — — — — 3
4 — — — — 4
(149
1,26¢
(43%) — — (435) — —
(32 — — 32 — —
172 — 172 — — —
11,04 9 2,62( 7,83¢ (74) 64¢
1,22¢ — — 1,22¢ — —
(221) — — — — (221)
39 — — — — 3¢
(1) — — — — (D)
® - — — — ®
(192
1,03t
(492) — — (492) — —
(35) — — (35) — —
(102) - - - (102) -
107 1 10¢ 4 (3) —
$11,55¢ $ 10 $2,72¢ $8,541 $(179 $ 45¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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J ohnson Controls, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its domestitnon-U.S. subsidiaries that are
consolidated in conformity with accounting prin@glgenerally accepted in the United States of Acadti.S. GAAP). All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminatectsimvents in partially-owned affiliates are accodrite by the equity method when
the Company'’s interest exceeds 20% and the Comgiaeyy not have a controlling interest.

Under certain criteria as provided for in Finandatounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadd Codification (ASC) 810,
“Consolidation,” the Company may consolidate aipfytowned affiliate. To determine whether to colidate a partially-owned
affiliate, the Company first determines if the gnis a variable interest entity (VIE). An entity ¢onsidered to be a VIE if it has one of
the following characteristics: 1) the entity isriyi capitalized; 2) residual equity holders do control the entity; 3) equity holders are
shielded from economic losses or do not particifidltg in the entity’s residual economics; or 4etantity was established with non-
substantive voting. If the entity meets one of ¢helsaracteristics, the Company then determingssifthe primary beneficiary of the
VIE. The party with the power to direct activitiebthe VIE that most significantly impact the VIEBsonomic performance and the
potential to absorb benefits or losses that coaldignificant to the VIE is considered the primbaeneficiary and consolidates the VIE.
If the entity is not considered a VIE, then the @amy applies the voting interest model to determihether or not the Company shall
consolidate the partially-owned affiliate.

Consolidated VIEs

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, tbenfany has determined that it was the primary lieiaef in three VIEs for the
reporting period ended September 30, 2012 and tiks Yor the reporting period ended September 30128s the Company absorbs
significant economics of the entities and has gy to direct the activities that are consideraxssignificant to the entities.

Two of the VIEs manufacture products in North Aroarfor the automotive industry. The Company furgsentities’ short-term
liquidity needs through revolving credit facilitiesd has the power to direct the activities thatcansidered most significant to the
entities through its key customer supply relatigpsh

During the three month period ended December 31128 preexisting VIE accounted for under the equity metiaas reorganized int
three separate investments as a result of the eganty exercising its option to put its interestiie Company. The Company acquired
additional interests in two of the reorganized greatities. The reorganized group entities areidensd to be VIEs as the other owner
party has been provided decision making rightsdoes not have equity at risk. The Company is cemeitithe primary beneficiary of
one of the entities due to the Company’s powergi@rtg to decisions over significant activitiestioé entity. As such, the VIE has been
consolidated within the Company’s consolidatedestesnts of financial position. The impact of the sidation of the entity on the
Company'’s consolidated statements of income foy#&as ended September 30, 2012 was not material VIt is named as a aubligor
under a third party debt agreement of $135 millimaturing in fiscal 2019, in which it could becoswbject to paying more than its
allocated share of the third party debt in the eeéhankruptcy of one or more of the other co-gbts. The other cobligors, all relate
parties in which the Company is an equity investonsist of the remaining group entities involvedtie reorganization. As part of the
overall reorganization transaction, the Companydiss provided financial support to the group @itn the form of loans totaling
$101 million, which are subordinate to the thirdtpalebt agreement. The Company is a significastauer of certain co-obligors,
resulting in a remote possibility of loss. Additally, the Company is subject to a floor guarantyigrg in fiscal 2022; in the event that
the other owner party no longer owns any part efgioup entities due to sale or transfer, the Cappas guaranteed that the proceeds
received from the sale or transfer will not be s $25 million. The Company has partnered withgroup entities to design and
manufacture battery components for the Power SQwistbusiness.
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The carrying amounts and classification of asseiag of which are restricted) and liabilities ird#d in the Company’s consolidated
statements of financial position for the consokdiVIEs are as follows (in millions):

September 3(

2012 2011

Current assel $19¢ $207

Noncurrent asse 144 55

Total asset $34% $262

Current liabilities $172 $144
Noncurrent liabilities 25 —

Total liabilities $197 $144

Nonconsolidated VIEs

During the three month period ended June 30, 20&1Company acquired a 40% interest in an equithateinvestee. The investee
produces and sells lead-acid batteries of whiclCihimpany will both purchase and supply certaindizts to complement each
investment partners’ portfolio. Commencing on thiect anniversary of the closing date, the Compaay dncontractual right to purchase
the remaining 60% equity interest in the investhe {call option”). If the Company does not exeecibe call option on or before the
fifth anniversary of the closing date, for a perafcsix months thereafter the Company is subjeet tontractual obligation at the
counterparty’s option to sell the Company’s equityestment in the investee to the counterparty ‘(thpurchase option”)The purchas
price is fixed under both the call option and tepurchase option. Based upon the criteria set for&6C 810, the Company has
determined that the investee is a VIE as the ednglgers, through their equity investments, maypaoticipate fully in the entity’s
residual economics. The Company is not the prirbaneficiary as the Company does not have the ptoveaake key operating
decisions considered to be most significant towtie Therefore, the investee is accounted for ukderequity method of accounting as
the Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Comgiaey not have a controlling interest. The investrhatance included within
investments in partially-owned affiliates in thensolidated statement of financial position at Seier 30, 2012 and 2011 was $55
million and $49 million, respectively, which repests the Compang’maximum exposure to loss. Current assets anititlegorelated tc
the VIE are immaterial and represent normal coafdmisiness trade receivables and payables fpredlented periods.

As mentioned previously within the “ConsolidatedEgT section above, during the three month periatedrDecember 31, 2011, a pre-
existing VIE was reorganized into three separatestments as a result of the counterparty exergissroption to put its interest to the
Company. The reorganized group entities are coreid® be VIEs as the other owner party has beeviged decision making rights
but does not have equity at risk. The Company iansidered to be the primary beneficiary of tWthe entities as the Company
cannot make key operating decisions consideree todst significant to the VIEs. Therefore, the tiggiare accounted for under the
equity method of accounting as the Company’s istezgceeds 20% and the Company does not have @ltiogtinterest. The
Company’s maximum exposure to loss, which inclutthedpartially-owned affiliate investment balancel annote receivable,
approximated $43 million at September 30, 2011. Chmpany’s maximum exposure to loss at Septemhe2®I2 includes the
partially-owned affiliate investment balance of $&flion as well as the subordinated loan from @@mpany, third party debt
agreement and floor guaranty mentioned previouslyizvthe “Consolidated VIES” section above. Cutrksbilities due to the VIEs are
not material and represent normal course of busitiade payables for all presented periods.

The Company did not have a significant variablerngst in any other unconsolidated VIEs for the gmésd reporting periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managenmentnake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvafmges and expenses during the reporting periohlahresults could differ from
those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaoaceivable, short-term debt and accounts paygiproximate their carrying
values. See Note 9, “Derivative Instruments andditeglActivities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measurents,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for fair valudimdincial instruments, including derivative instrents, hedging activities and long-
term debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less when pasgt to be cash equivalents.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and curreshily from customers and unbilled costs and acquusis related to revenues on
long-term contracts that have been recognizeddeoowanting purposes but not yet billed to custoniene Company extends credit to
customers in the normal course of business andtaiadnan allowance for doubtful accounts resulfiogn the inability or unwillingnes
of customers to make required payments. The alloe&or doubtful accounts is based on historicakeigmce, existing economic
conditions and any specific customer collectioméssthe Company has identified.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or eai®ost is determined using either the last-mst-fbut (LIFO) method or the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Finished goods and worpiocess inventories include material, labor anduifecturing overhead costs.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arangements

The Company'’s policy for engineering, research @eklopment, and other design and development pelated to products that will
be sold under long-term supply arrangements regjsineh costs to be expensed as incurred or capitdlfi reimbursement from the
customer is contractually assured. Income relateddovery of these costs is recorded within sgligeneral and administrative expe
in the consolidated statements of income. At Sepe&r80, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded wiigirconsolidated statements of
financial position approximately $286 million an21% million, respectively, of engineering and reskand development costs for
which customer reimbursement is contractually a$urhe reimbursable costs are recorded in otheemuassets if reimbursement v
occur in less than one year and in other noncuaressts if reimbursement will occur beyond one.year

Costs for molds, dies and other tools used to pas@ucts that will be sold under long-term supphaagements are capitalized within
property, plant and equipment if the Company hiestid the assets or has the reamcelable right to use the assets during the ¢étime
supply arrangement. Capitalized items, if spedifjadesigned for a supply arrangement, are amattmeer the term of the arrangeme
otherwise, amounts are amortized over the estimegefill lives of the assets. The carrying valuesssets capitalized in accordance
with the foregoing policy are periodically reviewk impairment whenever events or changes in pistances indicate that its carry
amount may not be recoverable. At September 3@ 28d 2011, approximately $113 million and $109iami| respectively, of costs
for molds, dies and other tools were capitalizethiwiproperty, plant and equipment which represgatsets to which the Company
title. In addition, at September 30, 2012 and 2@i4 ,Company recorded within the consolidated statgs of financial position in oth
current assets approximately $284 million and $2%4on, respectively, of costs for molds, dies aitler tools for which customer
reimbursement is contractually assured.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Besgireciation is provided over the estimated udafes of the respective assets using
the straight-line method for financial reportingposes and accelerated methods for income tax pespd he estimated useful lives
range from 3 to 40 years for buildings and improeata and from 3 to 15 years for machinery and eqeig.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsmdytine active construction period of major capitajects. Capitalized interest is
added to the cost of the underlying assets anchistezed over the useful lives of the assets.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal auger or more frequently if events or changes iowrnstances indicate the asset might
be impaired. The Company performs impairment regiéw its reporting units, which have been deteedito be the Company’s
reportable segments or one level below the replersdgments in certain instances, using a fairevelethod based on management's
judgments and assumptions or third party valuatidhs fair value of a reporting unit refers to grece that would be received to sell
unit as a whole in an orderly transaction betwearket participants at the measurement date. Imastig the fair value, the Company
uses multiples of earnings based on the averagistofrical, published multiples of earnings of cargble entities with similar
operations and economic characteristics. In centaitances, the Company uses discounted cash fialyses to further support the fair
value estimates. The inputs utilized in the analyse classified as Level 3 inputs within the failue hierarchy as defined in ASC 820,
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.” Tharested fair value is then compared with the carrgngunt of the reporting unit,
including recorded goodwill. The Company is subjedinancial statement risk to the extent thatd¢hgying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value. The impairment testing pernfed by the Company in the fourth quarter of figesr 2012, 2011 and 2010
indicated that the estimated fair value of eaclorépy unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorded
goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at&aper 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. No reporting ua# determined to be at risk of
failing step one of the goodwill impairment testh&é at September 30, 2012 the estimated fair vafueach reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount inclyditorded goodwill, a prolonged significant deelin the European automotive
industry could put the Company at risk of not aeimg future growth assumptions and could resuitripairment of goodwill or other
long-lived assets, or result in additional restuicty actions, within the Automotive Experience & segment, which could be
material to the consolidated financial statements.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldgject to at least annual impairment testing. Othingible assets with definite lives
continue to be amortized over their estimated udiefes and are subject to impairment testing s or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. A carsible amount of management judgment and assursgerrequired in performing
the impairment tests. While the Company believegukdgments and assumptions used in the impairtestst are reasonable and no
impairment existed at September 30, 2012, 20112844, different assumptions could change the egtinfair values and, therefore,
impairment charges could be required, which coeldnaterial to the consolidated financial statements

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, includirapprty, plant and equipment and other intangibéetsswith definite lives, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the assetarrying amount may not be recoverable. The Coy
conducts its long-lived asset impairment analysesctordance with ASC 360-10-15, “Impairment ordosal of Long-Lived Assets.”
ASC 360-10-15 requires the Company to group assetdiabilities at the lowest level for which iddiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdifies and evaluate the asset group againssihe of the undiscounted future cash
flows. If the undiscounted cash flows do not intkctine carrying amount of the asset is recoveralnlénpairment charge is measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of 8sehgroup exceeds its fair value based on disedwash flow analysis or
appraisals. See Note 16, “Impairment of Long-Livesets,” of the notes to consolidated financialesteents for disclosure of the
impairment analyses performed by the Company ddisegl 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Percentage-of-Completion Contracts

The Building Efficiency business records certaimgderm contracts under the percentage-of-compietiethod of accounting. Under
this method, sales and gross profit are recograsadork is performed based on the relationship &éetwactual costs incurred and total
estimated costs at completion. The Company reamsis and earnings in excess of billings on uncetaglcontracts within accounts
receivable - net and billings in excess of costsearnings on uncompleted contracts within otherec liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Amounts includéthin accounts receivable - net related to thes#racts were $548 million and $476
million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respegtivainounts included within other current liabilgievere $365 million and $359
million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respegtivel
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Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsirevenue from certain long-term contracts overctintractual period under the
percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accountiigs method of accounting recognizes sales aoslsgorofit as work is
performed based on the relationship between actst incurred and total estimated costs at coiopleRecognized revenues that will
not be billed under the terms of the contract untdter date are recorded in unbilled accountsivable. Likewise, contracts where
billings to date have exceeded recognized reveargegecorded in other current liabilities. Chanigethe original estimates may be
required during the life of the contract and sustineates are reviewed monthly. Sales and gros# jaref adjusted using the cumulative
catch-up method for revisions in estimated totalti@ct costs and contract values. Estimated leasesecorded when identified. Claims
against customers are recognized as revenue ugitamsnt. The amount of accounts receivable dwer afie year is not significant. T
use of the POC method of accounting involves caraitle use of estimates in determining revenuests @nd profits and in assigning
the amounts to accounting periods. The periodierey have not resulted in adjustments that wengfgignt to the Company’s results
of operations. The Company continually evaluateefahe assumptions, risks and uncertainties iahiewith the application of the PC
method of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into exteshevarranties and long-term service and maintenagmements with certain
customers. For these arrangements, revenue ismeeogon a straight-line basis over the respecordract term.

The Company'’s Building Efficiency business alsdsseértain heating, ventilating and air conditianifiHVAC) and refrigeration
products and services in bundled arrangements,exhaltiple products and/or services are involvedadcordance with ASU No. 2009-
13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliable Revenue Arrangements - A Consensus of AlBBREmMerging Issues Task
Force,” the Company divides bundled arrangememass@parate deliverables and revenue is allocateddh deliverable based on the
relative selling price method. Significant delivieles within these arrangements include equipmemntneissioning, service labor and
extended warranties. In order to estimate relaélténg price, market data and transfer price swidire utilized. Approximately four to
twelve months separate the timing of the firstwikble until the last piece of equipment is detde and there may be extended
warranty arrangements with duration of one to figars commencing upon the end of the standard mgrperiod.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascgsrare performed.

Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research activities relating todurct development and improvement are charged stgaitome as incurred and
included within selling, general and administratixpenses in the consolidated statement of incGueh expenditures for the years
ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $mlizin, $876 million and $723 million, respectiye

A portion of the costs associated with these atdivis reimbursed by customers and, for the figeats ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010 were $516 million, $366 million ai®d$ million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividatigncome by the weighted average number of comshanes outstanding. Diluted
earnings per share are computed by dividing netnrecby diluted weighted average shares outstanBiiged weighted average sha
include the dilutive effect of common stock equarak which would arise from the exercise of stoghoms and any outstanding Equity
Units and convertible senior notes as of the beggaof the period, for the years ended SeptembgeP@02, 2011 and 2010. See Note
12, “Earnings per Share,” of the notes to constiddinancial statements for the calculation ohé@ags per share.

Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Company’s internationakotions use the respective local currency asuhetibnal currency. Assets and
liabilities of international entities have beemskated at period-end exchange rates, and incothexgenses have been translated using
average exchange rates for the period. Monetastsaasd liabilities denominated in non-functionadrencies are adjusted to reflect
period-end exchange rates. The aggregate
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transaction gains (losses), net of the impact &iém currency hedges, included in net incomeHerytears ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010 were $12 million, $(22) million ar&D$nillion, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has written policies and procedurasptiae all financial instruments under the directof corporate treasury and rest
all derivative transactions to those intended fxiding purposes. The use of financial instrumenttseculative purposes is strictly
prohibited. The Company uses financial instrumémtaanage the market risk from changes in foreigihange rates, commodity
prices, stock-based compensation liabilities aber@st rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are recordethi& consolidated statements of financial positidre change in a derivative’s fair value
is recorded each period in current earnings orractated other comprehensive income, depending atheh the derivative is
designated as part of a hedge transaction and tfisdype of hedge transaction. See Note 9, “[dérie Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measuremehts, the notes to consolidated financial statemémtslisclosure of the Company’s
derivative instruments and hedging activities.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compahgrged its accounting policy for recognizing pensiad postretirement benefit
expenses. The Company’s historical accountingrtreat smoothed asset returns and amortized defectedrial gains and losses over
future years. The new mark-to-market approach dedumeasuring the market related value of plartsaaséair value instead of
utilizing a three-year smoothing approach. In addijtthe Company has elected to completely elingitla¢ corridor approach and
recognize actuarial gains and losses in the fayutirter of each fiscal year or at the date of aegsurement event. The Company
believes this new policy is preferable and provigesater transparency to on-going operational testihe change has no impact on
future pension and postretirement funding or bésgfiid to participants. These changes have bgenteel through retrospective
application of the new policy to all periods preseh

This change resulted in a $14 million increasedgnincome attributable to Johnson Controls, In6.q3 per diluted share) in each of the
quarters ended December 31, 2011, March 31, 20d 2ame 30, 2012.
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The impact of all adjustments made to the conswitifinancial statements presented is summarizéueifollowing table (in millions,
except per share data):

2012
Previous Metha As Reporte Effect of Chang
Consolidated Statement of Incom
Cost of sale:
Products and syster $ 28,79 $ 28,83¢ $ 43
Services 6,922 6,89¢ (29
Gross profit 6,237 6,21¢ (19
Selling, general and administrative exper 4,102 4,43¢ 33€
Income before income tax 1,94t 1,59( (355
Provision for income taxe 37¢ 237 (147
Net income 1,567 1,35: (219
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,44( 1,22¢ (219
Earnings per shal
Basic 2.11 1.8C (0.3
Diluted 2.0¢ 1.7¢ (0.3))
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Retained earning $ 9,83¢ $ 8,541 $ (1,29¢)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (840 45¢ 1,29¢
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Cash provided by operating activiti
Net income attributable to Johnson Contrc
Inc. $ 1,44( $ 1,22¢ $ (219
Net income 1,567 1,352 (219
Pension and postretirement benefit expen
Q) — 47¢ 47¢
Pension and postretirement contributions — (419 (419
Deferred income taxe (65) (20€) (247
Other 75 (12) (86)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit (440) (64) 37¢€
Consolidated Statement of Shareholde’ Equity
Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
Retained earnings at September 30, Z $ 8,927 $ 7,83¢ $ (1,089
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,44( 1,22¢ (219
Retained earnings at September 30, Z 9,83¢ 8,541 (1,29¢)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
September 30, 201 (43%) 64¢ 1,08¢
Employee retirement plai (222) (8 214
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
September 30, 201 (840 45¢ 1,29¢
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Consolidated Statement of Incomt
Cost of sale!
Products and syster
Services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Earnings per shal
Basic
Diluted

Consolidated Statement of Financial Positiol
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

Cash provided by operating activiti
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,
Net income
Pension and postretirement benefit expens
Pension and postretirement contributions
Deferred income taxe
Other
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Consolidated Statement of Shareholde’ Equity Attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,

Retained earnings at September 30, 2

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ptedaber 30, 201

Employee retirement pla

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ptedaber 30, 201

65

2011

Previousl
Reportec Revised  Effect of Chang
$27,63. $27,67% $ 44
7,03z 7,10( 68
6,17C  6,05¢ (112)
4,18: 4,39: 21C
2,111 1,78¢ (322)
37C 257 (119)
1,741 1,53: (209)
1,62¢  1,41F (209)
2.4C 2.0¢ (0.31)
2.3€ 2.0€ (0.30
$892: $783 $ (1,08)
(435) 64¢ 1,08¢
$162¢ $141F $ (209)
1,741  1,53: (209)
— 41C 41(
— (451) (451)
(144  (257) (113)
37 2 (35)
(55) 34 39¢
$ 7,765 $6,89C $ (875)
1,62¢  1,41F (209)
8,92:  7,83¢ (1,082
(77) 79¢€ 87t
(205) 4 20¢
(435) 64¢ 1,08¢
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(1)

(2)

2010
Previousl
Reportec Revised Effect of Chang
Consolidated Statement of Incom
Cost of sale:
Products and syster $23,22¢ $23,26: $ 37
Services 5,79( 5,821 31
Gross profit 5,28¢ 5,221 (68)
Selling, general and administrative exper 3,61( 3,79¢ 18¢
Income before income tax 1,76:% 1,50¢ (259
Provision for income taxe 197 127 (7C)
Net income 1,56¢ 1,38: (189
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,491 1,307 (189
Earnings per shal
Basic 2.22 1.94 (0.2¢)
Diluted 2.1¢ 1.92 (0.279)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Cash provided by operating activiti
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, $ 1,491 $ 1,307 $ (189
Net income 1,56¢ 1,38: (189
Pension and postretirement benefit expens — 37¢ 37¢
Pension and postretirement contributions — (695) (695)
Deferred income taxe (85) (15%) (7C)
Other 36 13 (23
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 21¢ 81z 594
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity Attibutable
to Johnson Controls, Inc.
Retained earnings at September 30, Z $ 6,61¢ $ 5,92/ $ (697)
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,491 1,30i (189
Retained earnings at September 30, 2 7,76 6,89( (87%)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
September 30, 20( 192 88: 691
Employee retirement plai (170 14 184
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
September 30, 201 (77) 79¢ 87t

Pension and postretirement benefit expenseoweasously included in different lines on the colicated statement of cash flows. The
amortization of amounts from accumulated other aaimgnsive income was previously included in theolime. The remaining
expense was included in the accounts payable amdextliabilities line

Pension and postretirement contributions were presly included in the accounts payable and acdiabilities line on the consolidat:
statement of cash flow

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standalpdate (ASU) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles - GoodwilidaOther (Topic 350):
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Inipaent.” ASU No. 2012-02 provides companies anapfirst to assess qualitative
factors to determine whether the existence of evand circumstances indicates that it is moreyikehn not that the indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If, as a result efdnalitative assessment, it is determined thatribt more likely than not that the
indefinite-lived intangible assets is impaired,rtttbe Company is not required to take further actAaSU No. 2012-02 will be effective
for the Company for impairment tests of indefiriteed intangible assets performed in the fiscalrygaling September 30, 2013, with
early adoption permitted. The adoption of this gmick will have no impact on the Company’s constdiddinancial condition and
results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about @fsg Assets and
Liabilities.” ASU No. 201111 requires additional quantitative and qualitatiisclosures of gross and net information regardimancia
instruments and derivative instruments that
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are offset or eligible for offset in the consoligditstatement of financial position. ASU No. 2aitLwill be effective for the Company 1
the quarter ending December 31, 2013. The adopfitins guidance will have no impact on the Compsauepnsolidated financial
condition and results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011‘©8mpensation - Retirement Benefits - Multiemploians (Subtopic 715-80):
Disclosures about an Employer’s Participation Muwdtiemployer Plan.” ASU No. 2011-09 requires aduitl quantitative and
gualitative disclosures about an employer’s paéition in multiemployer pension plans, includingadosure of the name and
identifying number of the significant multiemployglians in which the employer participates, the ll@f¢éhe employer’s participation in
the plans, the financial health of the plans ardntéiture of the employer commitments to the plasé) No. 2011-09 was effective for
the Company for the fiscal year ending SeptembeR302. The adoption of this guidance had no impadhe Compang’ consolidate
financial condition and results of operations. RééeNote 14, “Retirement Plans,” of the notesdasolidated financial statements for
disclosures surrounding the Company’s participaitiomultiemployer pension plans.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 201116&ngibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Tiag Goodwill for
Impairment.” ASU No. 2011-08 provides companie®ption to perform a qualitative assessment to detexr whether further goodwill
impairment testing is necessary. If, as a resulhefgualitative assessment, it is determinedittigimore likely than not that a reporting
unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amouhg two-step quantitative impairment test is regpli Otherwise, no further testing is
required. ASU No. 2011-08 will be effective for tBempany for goodwill impairment tests performedha fiscal year ending
September 30, 2013, with early adoption permitfde adoption of this guidance will have no impattioee Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Getmgnsive Income.” ASU
No. 2011-05 eliminates the option to present coreptsof other comprehensive income as part oftdteraent of shareholdersuity.
All non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity iadteust be presented either in a single continataisment of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesn&8U No. 2011-05 will be effective for the Compdar the quarter ending
December 31, 2012. The adoption of this guidandiehaie no impact on the Company’s consolidatedrfoial condition and results of
operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Ré&tue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Aghi@ommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. BAAd IFRSs.” ASU No. 20104 clarifies and changes the application of val
fair value measurement principles and disclosuneirements, and was effective for the Company begin the second quarter of
fiscal 2012 (January 1, 2012). The adoption of ghislance had no impact on the Compargonsolidated financial condition and res
of operations. Refer to Note 10, “Fair Value Measuents, of the notes to consolidated financial statememtslisclosures surroundir
the Company’s fair value measurements.

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeaugitipns for a combined purchase price, net oh@juired, of $38 million, all of
which was paid as of September 30, 2012. The aitiquis in the aggregate were not material to then@any’s consolidated financial
statements. In connection with the acquisitions,Glompany recorded goodwill of $50 million. As auk of two of the acquisitions,

each of which increased the Company’s ownershim famoncontrolling to controlling interest, the Guany recorded an aggregate non-
cash gain of $12 million, of which $9 million wascorded within Power Solutions equity income andrfilBon was recorded in
Automotive Experience Europe equity income, to stdfie Company’s existing equity investments inghsially-owned affiliates to

fair value. The purchase price allocations mayuiessquently adjusted to reflect final valuatiordsts.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeslitures for a combined sales price of $105 mmll&ll of which was received as of
September 30, 2012. The divestitures in the agtgagare not material to the Company’s consolidéteghcial statements. In
connection with the divestitures, the Company rédedra gain, net of transaction costs, of $40 mmildad reduced goodwill by $34
million in the Building Efficiency business.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compacquired an additional 49% of a Power Solutjpasially-owned affiliate. The
acquisition increased the Company’s ownership pgage to 100%. The Company paid approximately $tdi®n (excluding cash
acquired of $11 million) for the additional owneigspercentage and incurred approximately $15 nmlbd acquisition costs and related
purchase accounting adjustments. As a result cdidheisition, the Company recorded a non-cash@fa75 million within Power
Solutions equity income to
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adjust the Company’s existing equity investmerthim partially-owned affiliate to fair value. Goodwaf $100 million was recorded as
part of the transaction, of which $6 million wasaeded in fiscal 2012.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Companmpleted its acquisition of Keiper/Recaro Autdive, a leader in recliner system
technology with engineering and manufacturing etipein metals and mechanisms for automobile sbatgd in Kaiserslautern,
Germany. The total purchase price, net of cashiemtjuvas approximately $442 million, of which $4®@lion was paid as of
September 30, 2011 and $8 million was receivetiértiiree months ended December 31, 2011 as a oésuitue-up to the purchase
price. In connection with the Keiper/Recaro Autoiv@iacquisition, the Company recorded goodwill 828 million primarily in the
Automotive Experience Europe segment, of which #fan was recorded in fiscal 2012.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Campmampleted its acquisition of the C. Rob. HamneénsGroup (Hammerstein), a
leading global supplier of high-quality metal ssttictures, components and mechanisms based img8nliGermany. The total
purchase price, net of cash acquired, was appragiyn®529 million, all of which was paid as of Sepiber 30, 2011. In connection w
the Hammerstein acquisition, the Company recordedigill of $200 million primarily in the AutomotivExperience Europe segment,
of which $7 million was recorded in fiscal 2012.

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company completed fidglitional acquisitions for a combined purchasespmnet of cash acquired, of $]
million, all of which was paid as of September 2011. The acquisitions in the aggregate were n¢éniahto the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. As a resulinaf of these acquisitions, which increased the Coipawnership from a
noncontrolling to controlling interest, the Compaegorded a non-cash gain of $14 million within dmbtive Experience Asia equity
income to adjust the Company’s existing equity stireent in the partially-owned affiliate to fair val In connection with the
acquisitions, the Company recorded goodwill of $irdiBion, of which $14 million was recorded in flc2012.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compacquired an additional 40% of a Power Solutidagean partially-owned affiliate.
The acquisition increased the Company’s ownersaipgntage to 90%. The remaining 10% was acquirdtidiocal management
team. The Company paid approximately $86 millioxcliading cash acquired of $57 million) for the admhial ownership percentage
and incurred approximately $10 million of acquimiticosts and related purchase accounting adjussm&aa result of the acquisition,
the Company recorded a non-cash gain of $47 milliithin Power Solutions equity income to adjust @@mpany’s existing equity
investment in the Korean partially-owned affiliaefair value. Goodwill of $51 million was recorded part of the transaction.

Also during fiscal 2010, the Company completedehaequisitions for a combined purchase price of$8%on, of which $32 million
was paid as of September 30, 2010. The acquisitiotiee aggregate were not material to the Compaognsolidated financial
statements. In connection with the acquisitions,Gompany recorded goodwill of $9 million.

There were no business divestitures for the yaatee September 30, 2011 and 2010.

3. INVENTORIES
Inventories consisted of the following (in milligns

September 3(
2012 2011
Raw materials and suppli $1,11¢ $1,13¢
Work-in-process 417 434
Finished good 80¢€ 867
FIFO inventories 2,341 2,43]
LIFO reserve (1149 (127
Inventories $2,22 $2,31¢

Inventories valued using the LIFO method of accmgnivere approximately 19% and 18% of total inveiletoat September 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consisted of th@¥dhg (in millions):

September 3(
2012 2011
Buildings and improvemen $ 2,71¢ $ 2,48¢
Machinery and equipme 7,82 7,20¢
Construction in progres 1,72z 1,41¢
Land 37¢ 36C
Total property, plant and equipme 12,64( 11,47:
Less accumulated depreciati 6,20( (5,85¢)
Property, plant and equipme- net $ 6,44( $ 5,61¢

Interest costs capitalized during the fiscal yesded September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were 3b&$34 million and $21
million, respectively. Accumulated depreciatiorated to capital leases at September 30, 2012 at\@8s $56 million and $44
million, respectively.

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillanteof the Company’s reporting segments for theafigears ended September 30,
2012 and 2011 were as follows (in millions):

Currency
September 3 Translation an September 3
Business Business
2010 Acquisitions Divestiture: Other 2011
Building Efficiency
North America System $ 522 $ — $ — $ (3 $ 51¢
North America Servic 67€ 33 — 1 71C
Global Workplace Solution 177 — — 7 184
Asia 37¢ — — 12 391
Other 1,08t — — (20 1,06t
Automotive Experienc
North America 1,37¢ 2 — (@D} 1,37¢
Europe 1,14( 371 — (8 1,50z
Asia 23: 1€ — 12 261
Power Solution: 911 96 — ©) 1,004
Total $ 6,50 $ 5l¢ $ — $ 3 $ 7,0L¢
Currency
September 3 Translation an September 3
Business Business
2011 Acquisitions Divestiture: Other 2012
Building Efficiency
North America System $ 51¢ $ — $ — $ 2 $ 521
North America Servic 71C — 2 — 70¢
Global Workplace Solution 184 — — 3 187
Asia 391 — — 5 39¢
Other 1,06t — (32 (39 994
Automotive Experienc
North America 1,37¢ 13 — 27 1,41¢
Europe 1,50z 14 — (70) 1,44
Asia 261 7 — 2 27C
Power Solution: 1,004 45 — 9 1,04(
Total $ 7,01¢ $ 79 $ (34 $ (79 $ 6,98:
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The Companys other intangible assets, primarily from busiresguisitions, are valued based on independent ispfs@nd consisted

(in millions):
September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Gross Gross
Carryinc  Accumulate: Carryinc  Accumulate:
Amount  Amortizatior Net Amount  Amortizatior Net
Amortized intangible asse
Patented technolog $ 18 $ (115 $75 $ 29¢ $ (209 $ 89
Customer relationshir 517 (127  40C 487 (91) 39¢
Miscellaneou: 204 47n 157 184 (38) 14¢€
Total amortized intangible asst 90¢ (277 632 96¢ (33¢) 631
Unamortized intangible asse¢
Trademarks 31t — gl 314 — 314
Total intangible asse $1,22¢  $ (277 $947 $1,28: $  (33F) $94E

Amortization of other intangible assets for thedisyears ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 284 $%6 million, $53 million and
$43 million, respectively. Excluding the impacteaofy future acquisitions, the Company anticipatesréimation for fiscal 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 will be approximately $60 wiilli$58 million, $55 million, $49 million and $43ilfion, respectively.

6. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company offers warranties to its customers aeipg upon the specific product and terms of thr@amer purchase agreement. A
typical warranty program requires that the Compapyace defective products within a specified timeeiod from the date of sale. The
Company records an estimate for future warrantgteel costs based on actual historical return etdther known factors. Based on
analysis of return rates and other factors, the @my's warranty provisions are adjusted as necgs§he Company monitors its
warranty activity and adjusts its reserve estimatiesn it is probable that future warranty costd &l different than those estimates.

The Company’s product warranty liability is recadda the consolidated statements of financial pasiin other current liabilities if the
warranty is less than one year and in other noeatifiabilities if the warranty extends longer tha@re year.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Compatoyéd product warranty liability for the fiscal e ended September 30, 2012 and
2011 were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 3(
2012 2011
Balance at beginning of period $ 301 $ 337
Accruals for warranties issued during the pe 224 217
Accruals from acquisitions and divestitu @ 12
Accruals related to p-existing warranties (including changes in estimge (27) (32
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during théople (221) (2393)
Currency translatio (4) —
Balance at end of peric $ 27¢ $ 301
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7. LEASES

Certain administrative and production facilitieglaaguipment are leased under long-term agreendots.leases contain renewal
options for varying periods, and certain leasekige options to purchase the leased property dunirad the end of the lease term.
Leases generally require the Company to pay faramce, taxes and maintenance of the property eldeeapital assets included in net
property, plant and equipment, primarily buildiragsd improvements, were $96 million and $68 millarSeptember 30, 2012 and 2(
respectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leased undangements that are accounted for as operatingsletstal rental expense for the fis
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010484dsndillion, $424 million and $389 million, resprety.

Future minimum capital and operating lease paymamdsthe related present value of capital leasenpats at September 30, 2012 w
as follows (in millions):

Capita Operatin

Lease Leases
2013 $ 14 $ 31t
2014 16 234
2015 12 16¢
2016 7 10t
2017 7 69
After 2017 43 87
Total minimum lease paymer 98 $ 97¢
Interest (19
Present value of net minimum lease paym $ 80

8. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Short-term debt consisted of the following (in moifis):

September 3(

2012 2011
Bank borrowings and commercial pa| $322 $59€
Weighted average interest rate on s-term debt outstandin 2.5% 2.4%

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Compaplaced its $2.05 billion committed fiyear credit facility, scheduled to mat
in December 2011, with a $2.5 billion committedrfgear credit facility scheduled to mature in Febgu2015. The facility is used to
support the Company’s outstanding commercial pagiegre were no draws on the committed credit féesdiduring the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. Average ouitstpoaimmercial paper for the fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2012 was $1,287
million, and $186 million was outstanding at Septem30, 2012. Average outstanding commercial pfpehe fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011 was $955 million, and $409 enillivas outstanding at September 30, 2011.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following (in malis; due dates by fiscal year):

September 3(
2012 2011

Unsecured note
5.8% due in 2013 ($100 million par valt $ 10C $ 101
4.875% due in 2013 ($300 million par val 31C 321
Floating rate notes due in 2014 ($350 million palue) 35C 35C
1.75% due in 2014 ($450 million par valt 45€ 462
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par val 12t 12t
5.5% due in 2016 ($800 million par valt 80C 80C
7.125% due in 2017 ($150 million par val 162 164
2.6% due in 2017 ($400 million par valt 40C —
2.355% due in 2017 ($46 million par valt 46 —
5.0% due in 2020 ($500 million par valt 49¢ 49¢
4.25% due 2021 ($500 million par valt 497 497
3.75% due in 2022 ($450 million par valt 447 —
6.0% due in 2036 ($400 million par val 39t 39t
5.7% due in 2041 ($300 million par valt 29¢ 29¢
11.5% due in 2042 (760,100 equity units in fisdal P) — 38
11.5% notes due in 2042 ($8 million par val — 8
5.25% due in 2042 ($250 million par valt 25C —
6.95% due in 2046 ($125 million par valt 12t 12t
Capital lease obligatior 80 70
Foreigr-denominated det

Euro 377 28¢€
Other 28 11
Gross lon-term deb 5,74¢ 4,55(
Less: current portio 424 17
Net lon¢-term debt $5,321 $4,53:

At September 30, 2012, the Company’s euro-denomihiaing-term debt was at fixed rates with a weidfaeerage interest rate of
3.6%. At September 30, 2011, the Company’s eur@ihémated long-term debt was at fixed rates withedgivted-average interest rate
of 4.7%.

The installments of long-term debt maturing in ®ent fiscal years are: 2013 - $424 million; 20$837 million; 2015 - $135
million; 2016 - $806 million; 2017 - $839 millio2018 and thereafter - $2,604 million. The Compatyrsy-term debt includes various
financial covenants, none of which are expecte@strict future operations.

Total interest paid on both short and long-termtdebthe fiscal years ended September 30, 20121 20d 2010 was $283 million,
$216 million and $181 million, respectively. Ther@oany uses financial instruments to manage itseateate exposure (see Note 9,
“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”daNote 10, “Fair Value Measurements,” of the natesonsolidated financial
statements). These instruments affect the weightedage interest rate of the Company’s debt arddst expense.

Financing Arrangements

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, twmiBion euro revolving credit facilities and a Hdillion euro revolving credit
facility expired. The Company entered into a newrsllion euro revolving credit facility scheduled éxpire in August 2013. The
Company also entered into a new 37 million euro@anéw 50 million euro revolving credit facility thoscheduled to expire in
September 2013. There were no draws on the fasilduring fiscal 2012.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, ar$iiOn revolving credit facility expired. The Corapy entered into a new $50
million revolving credit facility scheduled to expiin September 2013. There were no draws ondliity during fiscal 2012.
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During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the Compamarketed $46 million aggregate principal amairit1.5% subordinated notes
due in fiscal 2042, on behalf of holders of Corpetdnits and holders of separate notes, by isshdigmillion aggregate principal
amount of 2.355% senior notes due on March 31, 2017

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thepaasnissued $400 million aggregate principal amadfir® 6% senior unsecured
fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2017, $450 milliggeegate principal amount of 3.75% senior unsecfixed rate notes due in fiscal 20
and $250 million aggregate principal amount of $%62&enior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fisBdR2Aggregate net proceeds of
$1.1 billion from the issuances were used for galnesrporate purposes, including the retiremerghafrt-term debt and contributions to
the Company’s pension and postretirement plans.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thegaosnentered into two committed, opear revolving credit facilities totaling $1.
million in aggregate. There were no draws on eitheitity during fiscal 2012.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thegaosnentered into a five-year, 75 million euroafiog rate credit facility
scheduled to mature in fiscal 2017. The Companwdne the credit facility during the quarter endedrh 31, 2012. Proceeds from the
facility were used for general corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, tmep@oy had four euro-denominated revolving creditlifees totaling 223 million
euro with 50 million euro expiring in July 2012,dv87 million euro facilities expiring in Septemi812 and 100 million euro expiring
in August 2014. Additionally, the Company had a $%i0ion revolving credit facility expiring in Sepmber 2012. At September 30,
2011, there were no draws on the revolving crediilifies.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a 150ami#uro revolving credit facility and a 50 millieuro revolving credit facility
matured.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a totAb@f820 equity units, which had a purchase conseitiement date of March 31, 20
were early exercised. As a result, the Companeis3i66,673 shares of Johnson Controls, Inc. constomk and approximately $8
million of 11.5% notes due 2042.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Comp=sued $350 million aggregate principal amourftasting rate senior unsecured
notes due in fiscal 2014, $450 million aggregateqggpal amount of 1.75% senior unsecured fixed naties due in fiscal 2014, $500
million aggregate principal amount of 4.25% seniosecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2021 &@d $nillion aggregate principal
amount of 5.7% senior unsecured fixed rate notestiscal 2041. Aggregate net proceeds of $lll®bifrom the issues were used
general corporate purposes including the retirerashort-term debt.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Compatered into a six-year, 100 million euro, flogtirate loan scheduled to mature
in February 2017. Proceeds from the facility wesedufor general corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Competired $654 million in principal amount, pluscaged interest, of its 5.25% fix
rate notes that matured on January 15, 2011. Thgp@oy used cash to fund the payment.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Competired its $100 million committed revolving féti prior to its scheduled
maturity date of December 2011. There were no dawthe facility.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thepgaagnrepaid debt of $82 million which was acquiasdart of an acquisition in t
same quarter. The Company used cash to repay ltite de

9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumenteduce market risk associated with changesrgign currency, commodities,
stock-based compensation liabilities and interatgts: Under Company policy, the use of derivatisesstricted to those intended for
hedging purposes; the use of any derivative ingtnirfor speculative purposes is strictly prohibitadiescription of each type of
derivative utilized by the Company to manage riskcluded in the following paragraphs. In additicefer to Note 10, “Fair Value
Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated firdratatements for information related to the failue measurements and valuation
methods utilized by the Company for each derivatyyge.
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The Company has global operations and participatéee foreign exchange markets to minimize itk dloss from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company pifynases foreign currency exchange contracts t@aextrtain of its foreign
exchange rate exposures. The Company hedges 79@%4mf the nominal amount of each of its known iigmeexchange transactional
exposures.

The Company has entered into cross-currency irtteassswaps to selectively hedge portions ofétisimvestment in Japan. The
currency effects of the cross-currency interes sataps are reflected in the accumulated other mmepsive income (AOCI) account
within shareholders’ equity attributable to John&amtrols, Inc. where they offset gains and loseesrded on the Company’s net
investment in Japan. At September 30, 2012 and,2B&XCompany had three cross-currency intereststaaps outstanding totaling 20
billion yen.

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firrdmigrivatives market in cases where commaodityeptigk cannot be naturally
offset or hedged through supply base fixed priggtregts. Commodity risks are systematically manggeduant to policy guidelines.
As cash flow hedges, the effective portion of tedde gains or losses due to changes in fair vatimigially recorded as a component
of AOCI and are subsequently reclassified into iegswhen the hedged transactions, typically salepsts related to sales, occur and
affect earnings. Any ineffective portion of the eds reflected in the consolidated statementadrime. The maturities of the
commodity contracts coincide with the expected pase of the commodities. The Company had the fatigwutstanding commodity
hedge contracts that hedge forecasted purchases:

Volume Outstanding as

Commodity Units September 30, 20 September 30, 20
Copper Pounds 13,135,00 18,760,00
Lead Metric Tons 21,20( 25,60(
Aluminum Metric Tons 2,86¢ 5,39¢
Tin Metric Tons 1,34« 26C

The Company selectively uses equity swaps to rethasket risk associated with certain of its stoelsdd compensation plans, such as
its deferred compensation plans. These equity casgimn liabilities increase as the Company'’s sfmade increases and decrease as
the Company’s stock price decreases. In conttastydlue of the swap agreement moves in the ogpdiséction of these liabilities,
allowing the Company to fix a portion of the liabds at a stated amount. As of September 30, 20822011, the Company had hedged
approximately 4.5 million and 4.3 million sharesitsfcommon stock, respectively.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiaece market risk associated with changes imasteates for its fixed-rate notes.
As fair value hedges, the interest rate swaps elatied debt balances are valued under a markebagpusing publicized swap curves.
Changes in the fair value of the swap and hedgeiibpaof the debt are recorded in the consolidatatement of income. In the second
quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company entered irfizead to floating interest rate swap totaling $¥8llion to hedge the coupon of its
5.8% bond maturing November 15, 2012, two fixefldating interest rate swaps totaling $300 milltorhedge the coupon of its
4.875% bond maturing September 15, 2013 and frelfto floating interest rate swaps totaling $45lion to hedge the coupon of its
1.75% bond maturing March 1, 2014. These eightésteate swaps were outstanding as of Septemb&03@ and 2011.

In September 2005, the Company entered into ttmeeafd treasury lock agreements to reduce the rasgkeassociated with changes
in interest rates associated with the Company’gipated fixed-rate note issuance to finance tlgusition of York International Corp.
(cash flow hedge). The three forward treasury lagieements, which had a combined notional amoud1 & billion, fixed a portion of
the future interest cost for 5-year, 10-year angy&&r notes. The fair value of each treasury lage@ment, or the difference between
the treasury lock reference rate and the fixedaatene of note issuance, is amortized to inteegpense over the life of the respective
note issuance. In January 2006, in connection th#hCompany’s debt refinancing, the three forwaedgury lock agreements were
terminated.
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The following table presents the location and ¥ailues of derivative instruments and hedging atiwincluded in the Company’s

consolidated statements of financial position (illioms):

Derivatives and Hedging Activities
Designated as Hedging Instruments

Derivatives and Hedging Activities Not
Designated as Hedging Instruments

under ASC 81! under ASC 81!
September 3 September 3
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 14 $ 28 $ 8 $ 18
Commodity derivative 11 — — —
Interest rate sway 2 — — —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 1 — — —
Other noncurrent asse
Interest rate sway 6 15 — —
Equity swar — — 122 112
Foreign currency exchange derivati — 11 — 16
Total asset $ 34 $ 54 $ 131 $ 14¢€
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 17 $ 49 $ 9 $ 21
Commodity derivative — 32 — —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa — 2C — —
Current portion of lon-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 401 — — —
Long-term debi
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 45€ 86& — —
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Foreign currency exchange derivati — 19 — 11
Total liabilities $ 874 $ 98t $ 9 $ 32

The following tables present the location and amafithe effective portion of gains and losses graistax on derivative instruments
and related hedge items reclassified from AOCI theoCompany’s consolidated statements of incomehéofiscal years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 and amounts recorde@@ net of tax in the consolidated statement8nafncial position (in millions):

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging Relatidps

Foreign currency exchange derivati
Commaodity derivative
Forward treasury lock

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging Relatiops

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified
from AOCI into Income

Location of Gain (Loss)

Year Ended September &

Foreign currency exchange derivati
Commaodity derivative
Forward treasury lock

Total

Reclassified from AOCI into Incorr 2012
Cost of sale: $ 19
Cost of sale: (25)
Net financing charge 2

$ (42

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized
in AOCI on Derivative
September 3 September 3

2012 2011
$ @) $ (16
7 (20)
8 9
$ 12 $ (27

2011
$ 3
28
1
$ 32



Derivatives in ASC 815 Fair Value Hedging Relatioips

Interest rate swa
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati

Total

Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income on Derivati

Net financing charge
Net financing charge

75

Amount of Gain (Loss)

Recognized

in Income on Derivativi

Year Ended September &

2012
$ (8
_9
$ 1

2011

$ 15
!15}
$ —
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Amount of Gain (Loss)

Recognized
in Income on Derivativt

Location of Gain (Loss) Year Ended September &
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instrumenteu ASC 81! Recognized in Income on Derivati 2012 2011
Foreign currency exchange derivati Cost of sale: $ 23 $ 5
Foreign currency exchange derivati Net financing charge (19 3
Foreign currency exchange derivati Provision for income taxe 1 —
Equity swar Selling, general and administrati 6 (23
Total $ 11 $ (15

10.

The amount of gains (losses) recognized in cunuddtanslation adjustment (CTA) within AOCI on th#ective portion of outstanding
net investment hedges was $1 million and $(12)ionilat September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectivelythHe years ended Septembet
2012 and 2011, no gains or losses were reclasgified CTA into income for the Company'’s outstandireg investment hedges, and no
gains or losses were recognized in income forrnb#ective portion of cash flow hedges.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuréstihes fair value as the price that would be ikexxkto sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants at the measurement dat€.9%B also establishes a three-level
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes informatiosad in developing assumptions when pricing an asdetbility as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actaskers;
Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbts,are observable either directly or indirecigg

Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or nokatdata, which requires the reporting entity teedep its own
assumptions.

ASC 820 requires the use of observable market déian available, in making fair value measuremeftisen inputs used to measure
fair value fall within different levels of the harchy, the level within which the fair value measuent is categorized is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the faalue measurement.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present the Companfair value hierarchy for those assets and ligdxdlimeasured at fair value as of Septembe
2012 and 2011 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
Observabl Unobservabl
in Active
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 22 $ — $ 22 $ —
Commaodity derivative 11 — 11 —
Interest rate sway 2 — 2 —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 1 — 1 —
Other noncurrent asse
Interest rate sway 6 — 6 —
Investments in marketable common st 32 32 — —
Equity swar. 12: 12: — —
Total asset $ 197 $  15E $ 42 $ =
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 26 $ — $ 26 $ —
Current portion of lon-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 401 — 401 —
Long-term debi
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 45€ — 45€ —
Total liabilities $ 882 $ — $ 88 $ —
Fair Value Measurements Usir
Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
Observabl Unobservabl
in Active
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 20 _(Levell) (Level 2) _(Level3)
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 46 $ — $ 46 $ —
Other noncurrent asse
Interest rate sway 15 — 15 —
Investments in marketable common st 34 34 — —
Equity swar 112 112 — —
Foreign currency exchange derivati 27 — 27 —
Total asset $ 234 $ 14€ $ 88 $ —
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 70 $ — $ 7C $ —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 20 — 20 —
Commaodity derivative 32 — 32 —
Long-term debi
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 86¢ — 86% —
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Foreign currency exchange derivati 30 — 30 —
Total liabilities $ 1,017 $ — $ 1,017 $ —
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Valuation Methods

Foreign currency exchange derivatives - The Compaisctively hedges anticipated transactions tieasabject to foreign exchange
rate risk primarily using foreign currency exchamgelge contracts. The foreign currency exchangealt®es are valued under a mal
approach using publicized spot and forward priéesscash flow hedges under ASC 815, the effectivéigooof the hedge gains or los
due to changes in fair value are initially recordsda component of accumulated other compreheimsivene and are subsequently
reclassified into earnings when the hedged traisacbccur and affect earnings. Any ineffectivetipor of the hedge is reflected in the
consolidated statement of income. These contraets highly effective in hedging the variabilityfiunture cash flows attributable to
changes in currency exchange rates at Septemb2032,and 2011. The fair value of foreign curreegghange derivatives that are
designated as fair value hedges under ASC 815ehasvthose not designated as hedging instrunuentsr ASC 815, are recorded in
the consolidated statement of income.

Commodity derivatives - The Company selectivelydedanticipated transactions that are subjectriovoadity price risk, primarily
using commodity hedge contracts, to minimize ovgnate risk associated with the Company’s purchagdead, copper, tin and
aluminum. The commodity derivatives are valued ursdmarket approach using publicized prices, whsgdlable, or dealer quotes. As
cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the leegagins or losses due to changes in fair valuedialy recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income and aregueéstly reclassified into earnings when the hedgetsactions, typically sales
cost related to sales, occur and affect earningg.ideffective portion of the hedge is reflectedhie consolidated statement of income.
These contracts are highly effective in hedgingviéability in future cash flows attributable tbanges in commodity price changes at
September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Interest rate swaps and related debt - The Comsgealegtively uses interest rate swaps to reduceehasgk associated with changes in
interest rates for its fixed-rate bonds. As failueahedges, the interest rate swaps and relataéddkinces are valued under a market
approach using publicized swap curves. Changdwiffair value of the swap and hedged portion ofiiblgt are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income. In the secondeyueaf fiscal 2011, the Company entered into adixo floating interest rate swap
totaling $100 million to hedge the coupons of i808%6 notes maturing November 15, 2012, two fixefldating interest rate swaps
totaling $300 million to hedge the coupon of it876% notes maturing September 15, 2013 and fivelftr floating interest rate swaps
totaling $450 million to hedge the coupon of it836 bond maturing March 1, 2014. These eight ista@e swaps were outstanding
of September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Cross-currency interest rate swaps - The Compadergtaeely uses cross-currency interest rate swapetige the foreign currency rate
risk associated with certain of its investmentdapan. The cross-currency interest rate swapsadwed/using observable market data.
Changes in the market value of the swaps are teflen the foreign currency translation adjustmeot®ponent of accumulated other
comprehensive income where they offset gains asekbrecorded on the Company’s net investmenpignlat September 30, 2012
and 2011, the Company had three cross-currenciestteate swaps outstanding totaling 20 billion.yen

Investments in marketable common stock - The Comparests in certain marketable common stock, wigclhalued under a market
approach using publicized share prices. As of $eipée 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded uredajains of $5 million and ¢
million, respectively, in accumulated other comenetive income. The Company also recorded unredimsses of $3 million in
accumulated other comprehensive income on thesstiments as of September 30, 2011, and no unreddigses as of September 30,
2012. In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the gamy recorded an impairment charge related to\astment in marketable common
stock due to the investeebankruptcy announcement in March 2012. As a gl Company recorded a $14 million impairmerargk
within selling, general, and administrative expearisethe Power Solutions segment. The impairmeatiaed the investment to zero and
was measured under a market approach using thieigeldi share price. The inputs utilized in the gsial are classified as Level 1 inp
within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASZ08

Equity swaps - The Company selectively uses equitgps to reduce market risk associated with ceofaits stock-based compensation
plans, such as its deferred compensation plansedbity swaps are valued under a market approatttedair value of the swaps is
equal to the Company’s stock price at the repomieigod date. Changes in fair value on the equityps are reflected in the
consolidated statement of income within sellingyeggal and administrative expenses.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaaceivable, short-term debt and accounts payaiproximate their carrying
values. The fair value of long-term debt, which \88&s3 billion and $4.9 billion at September 30, 2@hd 2011, respectively, was
determined using market quotes classified as Leugbuts within the ASC 820 fair value hierarchy.
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11. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has three share-based compensatic) plaich are described below. The compensationat@sed against income for
those plans was approximately $55 million, $47 iorilland $52 million for the fiscal years ended $egier 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The total income tax benefit recogdim the consolidated statements of income foreshased compensation
arrangements was approximately $22 million, $19iomiland $21 million for the fiscal years ended teefber 30, 2012, 2011 and 20
respectively. The Company applies a non-substamggting period approach whereby expense is aatetkfor those employees that
receive awards and are eligible to retire priatheaward vesting.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan, as amendhedRlan), which is shareholder-approved, perméggtiant of stock options to its
employees for up to approximately 40 million shaveaew common stock as of September 30, 2012 oB@tivards are granted with an
exercise price equal to the market price of the @amy’s stock at the date of grant; those option awaeds lvetween two and three ye
after the grant date and expire ten years frongthat date (approximately 16 million shares of canmtock remained available to be
granted at September 30, 2012).

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes optionatidn model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. Expeateldtilities are based on the historical volatilitiithe Company’s stock and other
factors. The Company uses historical data to ettimption exercises and employee terminations witté valuation model. The
expected term of options represents the periodraf that options granted are expected to be outistgnThe risk-free rate for periods
during the contractual life of the option is basedthe U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at iheetof grant.

Year Ended September 30

2012 2011 2010
Expected life of option (years) 4.8-6.4 45-6.0 4.3-5.0
Risk-free interest rat 0.54%- 1.61% 1.10%- 1.58%  1.91%- 2.20%
Expected volatility of the Compa’s stock 40.00% 38.00% 40.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Comp’s stock 1.81% 1.74% 1.73%

A summary of stock option activity at September W 2, and changes for the year then ended, ismes below:

Weighted
Average
Remaining Aggregate
Weighted Shares Contractuz Intrinsic
Average Subject to Value
Option Pric Option Life (years (in_millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 25.8i 34,224,01
Grantec 28.5¢ 5,017,871
Exercisec 21.0C (1,933,06)
Forfeited or expirel 30.2¢ (840,310
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 26.3¢ 36,468,50 52 $ 101
Exercisable, September 30, 2( $ 25.3% 24,885,92 3.6 $ 9k

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of oystigranted during the fiscal years ended SepteBthe2012, 2011 and 2010 was
$8.92, $9.09 and $7.70, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 20d 2010 was approximately $19
million, $101 million and $33 million, respectively
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In conjunction with the exercise of stock optiomarged, the Company received cash payments fdisited years ended September 30,
2012, 2011 and 2010 of approximately $40 milliobQ% million and $52 million, respectively.

The Company has elected to utilize the alterndtimesition method for calculating the tax effectstock-based compensation. The
alternative transition method includes computatiguédance to establish the beginning balance efiiditional paid-in capital pool
(APIC Pool) related to the tax effects of emplogazk-based compensation, and a simplified metbatkttermine the subsequent
impact on the APIC Pool for employee stdzdsed compensation awards that are vested andmudits) upon adoption of ASC 718. 1
tax benefit from the exercise of stock options,ahhis recorded in capital in excess of par valugs $3 million, $30 million and $7
million for the fiscal years ended September 30,2@011 and 2010, respectively. The Company dogsettle equity instruments
granted under share-based payment arrangemertasior

At September 30, 2012, the Company had approxign&g2 million of total unrecognized compensatiostaelated to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted undelatiheTlRat cost is expected to be recognized ovegighted-average period of 0.8
years.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS)

The Plan also permits SARSs to be separately grdotedrtain employees. SARs vest under the samestand conditions as option
awards; however, they are settled in cash for iffierdnce between the market price on the dateefatse and the exercise price. As a
result, SARs are recorded in the Company’s conatditistatements of financial position as a ligbilitil the date of exercise.

The fair value of each SAR award is estimated uaisgnilar method described for option awards. fHirevalue of each SAR award is
recalculated at the end of each reporting periatithe liability and expense adjusted based on ¢wefair value.

The assumptions used to determine the fair valilbeoSAR awards at September 30, 2012 were asvllo

Expected life of SAR (year: 0.05-4.0
Risk-free interest rat 0.07%- 47%
Expected volatility of the Compa’s stock 40.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Comp’s stock 1.81%
A summary of SAR activity at September 30, 2012] elmanges for the year then ended, is presentedbel
Weighted Aggregat
Average
Remaining Intrinsic
Weightec Shares Contractue Value
Average Subject to (in
SAR Price SAR Life (years millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 26.2¢ 3,463,97!
Grantec 28.5¢ 669,82:
Exercisec 19.2¢ (218,60
Forfeited or expirel 29.47 (139,319
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 26.9¢ 3,775,87! 5.E $ 8
Exercisable, September 30, 2( $ 25.9] 2,311,82 4.2 $ 8

In conjunction with the exercise of SARs grantdéeé, Company made payments of $2 million, $4 milkord $3 million during the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 201 @ctasgty.
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12.

Restricted (Nonvested) Stock

The Company has a restricted stock plan that pesvidr the award of restricted shares of commocksto restricted share units to
certain key employees. Awards under the restristedk plan typically vest 50% after two years frthra grant date and 50% after four
years from the grant date. The plan allows foredéht vesting terms on specific grants with apprbyehe board of directors.

A summary of the status of the Company’s nonveststiicted stock awards at September 30, 2012¢laadges for the fiscal year then
ended, is presented below:

Weightec

Shares/Units

Average Subject to

Price Restriction

Nonvested, September 30, 2( $32.8¢ 1,064,40!
Grantec 27.6¢ 409,45¢
Vested 33.4¢ (474,20)
Forfeited 28.5¢ (2,600
Nonvested, September 30, 2( $30.4¢ 997,05¢

At September 30, 2012, the Company had approximn&t million of total unrecognized compensatiostaelated to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted understnieted stock plan. That cost is expected taebegnized over a weightederage
period of 1.3 years.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluted eaagshare (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcligtdd/iding net income
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. by the widdhaverage number of common shares outstandimggdine reporting period. Dilute
EPS is calculated by dividing net income attriblggb Johnson Controls, Inc. by the weighted averagmber of common shares and
common equivalent shares outstanding during thertiely period that are calculated using the treastock method for stock options.
The treasury stock method assumes that the Comysssythe proceeds from the exercise of awardptogiease common stock at the
average market price during the period. The assymmabeds under the treasury stock method inchel@trchase price that the grau
will pay in the future, compensation cost for fi@tservice that the Company has not yet recogniaddaay windfall tax benefits that
would be credited to capital in excess of par valhen the award generates a tax deduction. If thhetdd be a shortfall resulting in a
charge to capital in excess of par value, suchmawuat would be a reduction of the proceeds.

The Companys outstanding Equity Units due 2042 and 6.5% cdiblersenior notes due 2012 are reflected in didwarnings per sha
using the “if-converted” method. Under this methibdijlutive, the common stock is assumed issuedfdbe beginning of the reporting
period and included in calculating diluted earnipgs share. In addition, if dilutive, interest erpe, net of tax, related to the outstan
Equity Units and convertible senior notes is adolack to the numerator in calculating diluted eagriper share.
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The following table reconciles the numerators aadaininators used to calculate basic and dilutediregs per share (in millions):

Year Ended September @

2012 2011 2010
Income Available to Common Shareholder:
Basic income available to common sharehol $1,22¢ $1,41¢ $1,307%
Interest expense, net of t 1 3 5
Diluted income available to common shareholc $1,227 $1,41¢ $1,31:
Weighted Average Shares Outstandini
Basic weighted average shares outstan 681.t 677.1 672.(
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 5.2 8.1 5.¢
Equity units 1.8 4.1 4.t
Convertible senior note — — 0.1
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 688.¢ 689.¢ 682.t

Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase common she 2.2 0.4 0.€

During the three months ended September 30, 20d2@h1, the Company declared a dividend of $0.1B%h16, respectively, per
common share. During the twelve months ended SdyeB80, 2012 and 2011, the Company declared foanteply dividends totaling
$0.72 and $0.64, respectively, per common share Gdmpany paid all dividends in the month subseqteethe end of each fiscal
quarter.
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13. EQUITY AND NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
The following schedules present changes in consi@ilequity attributable to Johnson Controls, #me noncontrolling interests (in

millions):
Equity Attributable t Equity Attributable
to
Johnson Controls, Noncontrolling
Inc. Interests Total Equity
At September 30, 20C $ 9,10C $ 84 $ 9,18¢
Total comprehensive incom
Net income 1,307 43 1,35(
Foreign currency translation adjustme (115) — (11%)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 13 — 13
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — 3
Employee retirement pla 14 — 14
Other comprehensive lo (85) — (85)
Comprehensive incorr 1,22 43 1,26t
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend- common stock ($0.52 per sha (350 — (350)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (22 (22
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redéden:
noncontrolling interest 9 — 9
Other, including options exercis a0 1 91
At September 30, 201 10,07: 10€ 10,177
Total comprehensive incom
Net income 1,41¢ 53 1,46¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme (109 (@D} (110
Realized and unrealized losses on derivai (47 — 47
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — 3
Employee retirement pla 4 — 4
Other comprehensive lo (149 (1) (150
Comprehensive incorr 1,26¢€ 52 1,31¢
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend- common stock ($0.64 per sha (43%) — (435)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (32 (32
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redédan:
noncontrolling interest (32 — (32
Increase in noncontrolling interest sh — 12 12
Other, including options exercis 172 — 172
At September 30, 201 11,04: 13¢ 11,18(
Total comprehensive incom
Net income 1,22¢ 58 1,28¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme (221) — (221)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 39 — 39
Unrealized losses on marketable common s (D) — @
Employee retirement plai (8) — (8)
Other comprehensive lo (191) — (197)
Comprehensive incorr 1,03t 58 1,09:
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend- common stock ($0.72 per sha (492) — (492)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (48 (48)
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redééena
noncontrolling interest (35) — (35)
Repurchases of common stc (102) — (102)
Other, including options exercis 107 — 107
At September 30, 201 $ 11558 $ 14€ $ 11,708
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14.

The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie were as follows (in millions, net of tax):

September 3(

2012 2011
Foreign currency translation adjustments $415 $634
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on deres 12 (27
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 5 6
Employee retirement pla _ 28 36
Accumulated other comprehensive incc $45¢ $64¢

The Company consolidates certain subsidiaries iglwtihe noncontrolling interest party has withieithcontrol the right to require the
Company to redeem all or a portion of its intereghe subsidiary. The redeemable noncontrollingrests are reported at their
estimated redemption value. Any adjustment to #uemption value impacts retained earnings but doesnpact net income.
Redeemable noncontrolling interests which are n@@édée only upon future events, the occurrence aflvis not currently probable,
are recorded at carrying value.

The following schedules present changes in thearadble noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

September 30, 20  September 30,20  September 30, 20
Beginning balance, September $ 26C $ 19¢ $ 15&
Net income 69 64 32
Foreign currency translation adjustme D — 1
Change in noncontrolling interest sh (95) (22) 17

Dividends (15) (12) —
Redemption value adjustme 3E 32 (9)
Ending balance, September $ 25 % 26C $ 19€

RETIREMENT PLANS

As discussed in Note 1, “Summary of Significant daoting Policies,'the Company elected to change its policy for recogg pensiol
and postretirement benefit expenses. The histaaimadunting treatment smoothed asset returns andiaed deferred actuarial gains
and losses over future years. The new mark-to-madaunting method recognizes those gains anddasghe fourth quarter of each
fiscal year or at the date of a remeasurement eVert Company believes this new policy will provigieater transparency to on-going
operational results. The change has no impact nsipe and postretirement funding or benefits paigdrticipants. This change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectivelyising all periods presented. See Note 1, “SumragSignificant Accounting
Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financtatsments for further information on the changadoounting policy and the impact of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Pension Benefits

The Company has non-contributory defined benefitspm plans covering certain U.S. and non-U.S. eggas. The benefits provided
are primarily based on years of service and avetaggensation or a monthly retirement benefit anhdaffiective January 1, 2006,
certain of the Company’s U.S. pension plans wererated to prohibit new participants from entering phans. Effective September 30,
2009, active participants will continue to accreméfits under the amended plans until Decembe2@14. Funding for U.S. pension
plans equals or exceeds the minimum requiremertteedEmployee Retirement Income Security Act ofAL%unding for non-U.S.
plans observes the local legal and regulatory $infitso, the Company makes contributions to uniosteed pension funds for
construction and service personnel.

For pension plans with accumulated benefit oblageti(ABO) that exceed plan assets, the projectedfib@bligation (PBO), ABO and
fair value of plan assets of those plans were $4milion, $4,242 million and $3,279 million, resgively, as of September 30, 2012
and $4,339 million, $4,185 million and $3,346 naitli respectively, as of September 30, 2011.
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In fiscal 2012, total employer and employee conitidns to the defined benefit pension plans we@$8illion, of which $266 million
were voluntary contributions made by the Compare Tompany expects to contribute approximately $adidon in cash to its
defined benefit pension plans in fiscal year 20Ar@jected benefit payments from the plans as ofeBaper 30, 2012 are estimated as
follows (in millions):

2013 $ 281
2014 287
2015 28¢
2016 28¢
2017 29z
201¢-2022 1,55¢

Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides certain health care andrigerance benefits for eligible retirees and thepahdents primarily in the U.S. Most
non-U.S. employees are covered by government spathgoograms, and the cost to the Company is gotfiant.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meeting certgéars of service and retirement age qualificatidimese benefits may be subject to
deductibles, co-payment provisions and other litivitess, and the Company has reserved the right wifsnthese benefits. Effective
January 31, 1994, the Company modified certairrigalglans to place a limit on the Company’s cdstiture annual retiree medical
benefits at no more than 150% of the 1993 cost.

The September 30, 2012 postretirement PBO for pak65 and post-65 years of age employees waswiaet using assumed medical
care cost trend rates of 7.5% for U.S. plans, @esimg one half percent each year to an ultimageeagb% and 7.5% for non-U.S. plans,
decreasing three twentieths of one percent eaaghtgea ultimate rate of 4.5%. The prescriptiongdimend rates used were 7.5% for
U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent each gear tiltimate rate of 5% and 8.5% for non-U.S. plalecreasing one fifth of one
percent each year to an ultimate rate of 4.5%.Sdm@ember 30, 2011 PBO for both pre-65 and poseés of age employees was
determined using medical care cost trend ratess@b Tor U.S. plans, decreasing one half percerti gaar to an ultimate rate of 5% ¢

a flat 5% for non-U.S. plans. The prescription dingnd rates used were 7.5% for U.S. plans andth&nplans, decreasing one half
percent each year to an ultimate rate of 5%. Tladtlheare cost trend assumption does not havendisant effect on the amounts
reported.

In fiscal 2012, total employer and employee conitidns to the postretirement plans were $63 mijlmfrwhich $60 million were
voluntary contributions made by the Company. Then@any does not expect to make any significant dmutions to its postretirement
plans in fiscal year 2013. Projected benefit payié&om the plans as of September 30, 2012 ammatgd as follows (in millions):

2013 $22
2014 22
2015 23
2016 23
2017 23
201¢&-2022 91

In December 2003, the U.S. Congress enacted théchtedPrescription Drug, Improvement and ModermraAct of 2003 (Act) for
employers sponsoring postretirement care plangtioaide prescription drug benefits. The Act intnods a prescription drug benefit
under Medicare as well as a federal subsidy to spsrof retiree health care benefit plans providirfmgenefit that is at least actuarially
equivalent to Medicare Part D.1. Under the Act,Medlicare subsidy amount is received directly ®/pglan sponsor and not the related
plan. Further, the plan sponsor is not requireastthe subsidy amount to fund postretirement litsreeid may use the subsidy for any
valid business purpose. Projected subsidy receiptestimated to be approximately $3 million pearyaver the next ten years.

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors various defined contributaaingis plans primarily in the U.S. that allow emya@es to contribute a portion of
their pre-tax and/or after-tax income in accordanith plan specified guidelines. Under
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specified conditions, the Company will contributecertain savings plans based on the employeeggbldipay and/or will match a
percentage of the employee contributions up taoelimits. Matching contributions charged to expemmounted to $65 million, $67
million and $42 million for the fiscal years end2@12, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans

The Company contributes to multiemployer benefingl based on obligations arising from collectiveghiming agreements related to
certain of its hourly employees in the U.S. Thelsmp provide retirement benefits to participantseabon their service to contributing
employers. The benefits are paid from assets hdidist for that purpose. The trustees typically sponsible for determining the level
of benefits to be provided to participants as wslfor such matters as the investment of the agmdtthe administration of the plans.

The risks of participating in these multiemployenbfit plans are different from single-employer éfgrplans in the following aspects:

» Assets contributed to the multiemployer benefindig one employer may be used to provide benefisriployees of other
participating employer:

« If a participating employer stops contributing @ tmultiemployer benefit plan, the unfunded oblyz of the plan may be borne
by the remaining participating employe

« If the Company stops participating in some of itdtiemployer benefit plans, the Company may be ireguo pay those plans an
amount based on its allocable share of the undaefistatus of the plan, referred to as a withdréiadaility.

The Company participates in over 300 multiempldyamefit plans, primarily related to its Buildingfiefency business in the U.S., na
of which are individually significant to the ComparThe number of employees covered by the Companylsiemployer benefit plans
has remained consistent over the past three yeraiighere have been no significant changes thadttafie comparability of fiscal 2012,
2011 and 2010 contributions. The Company recogréxpense for the contractually-required contritufior each period. The
Company contributed $47 million, $51 million ands$4illion to multiemployer benefit plans in fisc2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Based on the most recent information available dbmpany believes that the present value of aetuaccrued liabilities in certain of
these multiemployer benefit plans may exceed theevaf the assets held in trust to pay benefitsréhtly, the Company is not aware
any significant multiemployer benefits plans forighhit is probable or reasonably possible thatGbenpany will be obligated to make
up any shortfall in funds. Moreover, if the Compamgre to exit certain markets or otherwise ceadd@ngacontributions to these funds,
the Company could trigger a withdrawal liabilityui@ently, the Company is not aware of any signiftcaultiemployer benefit plans for
which it is probable or reasonably possible that@ompany will withdraw from the plan. Any accréed a shortfall or withdrawal
liability will be recorded when it is probable thatiability exists and it can be reasonably esteda

Plan Assets

The Company’s investment policies employ an apgragitereby a mix of equities, fixed income and alédive investments are used to
maximize the longerm return of plan assets for a prudent levelsif. The investment portfolio primarily containsliaersified blend o
equity and fixed income investments. Equity invesstits are diversified across domestic and non-daengsicks, as well as growth,
value and small to large capitalizations. Fixedime investments include corporate and governmeuéss with short-, mid- and long-
term maturities, with a focus on investment grattermvpurchased and a target duration close to fhheglan liability. Investment and
market risks are measured and monitored on an ngdusis through regular investment portfolio rexeannual liability
measurements and periodic asset/liability studies.majority of the real estate component of thefplio is invested in a diversified
portfolio of high-quality, operating properties tvitash yields greater than the targeted appregidtivestments in other alternative
asset classes, including hedge funds and commeditie made via mutual funds to diversify the etgeinvestment returns relative to
the equity and fixed income investments. As a tesubur diversification strategies, there are igmiicant concentrations of risk with
the portfolio of investments.

The Company’s actual asset allocations are iniitle target allocations. The Company rebalancestadibcations as appropriate, in
order to stay within a range of allocation for easket category.
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The expected return on plan assets is based dbaimpany’s expectation of the lotgrm average rate of return of the capital marke
which the plans invest. The average market retaresdjusted, where appropriate, for active asaetigement returns. The expected
return reflects the investment policy target assi&tand considers the historical returns earneeémh asset category.
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The Company’s plan assets at September 30, 20120¢4r1d by asset category, are as follows (in nm#jo

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
Observabl Unobservabl
in Active
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
Asset Categor September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 781 781 — —
Smal-Cap 324 324 — —
Internationa- Developec 617 617 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 68t 68t — —
Corporate/Othe 21¢ 21¢ — —
Hedge Funds 94 — — 94
Real Estate 24C — — 24C
Total $ 2,98t $ 2,651 $ — $ 334
Non-U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 61 $ 61 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 134 134 — —
Internationa- Developec 382 382 — —
Internationa- Emerging 46 46 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 334 334 — —
Corporate/Othe 54C 54C — —
Commodities 12 12 — —
Hedge Fund 56 — — 56
Real Estate 91 83 — 8
Total $ 165 $ 1,5% $ — $ 64
Postretirement
Cash $ 6 $ 6 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 35 35 — —
Smal-Cap 11 11 — —
Internationa- Developec 25 25 — —
Internationa- Emerging 14 14 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 26 26 — —
Corporate/Othe 74 74 — —
Commodities 20 20 — —
Real Estate 12 12 — —
Total $ 22% $ 22% $ — $ —
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Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
Observabl Unobservabl
in Active
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
Asset Categor September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 734 734 — —
Smal-Cap 23C 23C — —
Internationa- Developec 42¢ 42¢ — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 162 162 — —
Corporate/Othe 494 494 — —
Hedge Funds 94 — — 94
Real Estate 204 — — 204
Total $ 2,372 $ 2,07/ $ — $ 29¢€
Non-U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 57 $ 57 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 141 141 — —
Internationa- Developec 347 347 — —
Internationa- Emerging 47 47 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 27¢€ 27¢€ — —
Corporate/Othe 49¢ 49¢ — —
Commodities 11 11 — —
Real Estate 93 86 — 7
Total $ 1,471 $ 1,46/ $ — $ 7
Postretirement
Equity Securities
Large-Cap $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ —
Smal-Cap 8 8 — —
Internationa- Developec 19 19 — —
Internationa- Emerging 9 9 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 19 19 — —
Corporate/Othe 53 53 — —
Commodities 14 14 — —
Real Estate 9 9 — —
Total $ 15€ $ 15€ $ — $ —
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Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for assets measured at fair value.
Cash: The fair value of cash is valued at cost.

Equity Securities: The fair value of equity securities is determingdiivect or indirect quoted market prices. If iredit quoted market
prices are utilized, the value of assets held pas#e accounts is not published, but the investmanagers report daily the underlying
holdings. The underlying holdings are direct quateatket prices on regulated financial exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: The fair value of fixed income securities is detigred by direct or indirect quoted market pricesnéfirect
guoted market prices are utilized, the value oétskeld in separate accounts is not publishedhlkutvestment managers report daily
the underlying holdings. The underlying holdings direct quoted market prices on regulated findmsiehanges.

Commodities: The fair value of the commodities is determinedjbgted market prices of the underlying holdingsegulated financial
exchanges.

Hedge Funds: The fair value of hedge funds is accounted for bbystodian. The custodian obtains valuations frocteulying managers
based on market quotes for the most liquid assetalernative methods for assets that do not kaffecient trading activity to derive
prices. The Company and custodian review the matbedd by the underlying managers to value thesas&me Company believes this
is an appropriate methodology to obtain the falueaf these assets.

Real Estate: The fair value of Real Estate Investment TrustsI{REis recorded as Level 1 as these securitiefraded on an open
exchange. The fair value measurement of other imeggs in real estate is deemed Level 3 sincedahe\of these investments is
provided by fund managers. The fund managers \thkieeal estate investments via independent tharty @mppraisals on a periodic
basis. Assumptions used to revalue the propenteegadated every quarter. The Company believesshais appropriate methodology
obtain the fair value of these assets. For the corapt of the real estate portfolio under developitée investments are carried at cost
until they are completed and valued by a thirdypappraiser.

The methods described above may produce a faieallculation that may not be indicative of netizadle value or reflective of
future fair values. Furthermore, while the Compégijeves its valuation methods are appropriatecangdistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologieassumptions to determine the fair value of ceffiagncial instruments could result in
a different fair value measurement at the reportiatg.
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The following sets forth a summary of changes anftiir value of assets measured using significanbservable inputs (Level 3) (in

millions):

Total Hedge Func Real Estat
U.S. Pension
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $23z $ 91 $ 141
Additions net of redemptior 41 — 41
Realized gait 10 — 10
Unrealized gait 15 3 12
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $29¢ $ 9 $ 204
Additions net of redemptior 11 — 11
Unrealized gait 25 — 25
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $334 $ 91 $ 24C
Non-U.S. Pensior
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $ 6 $ — $ 6
Unrealized gait 1 —
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $ 7 $ — $ 7
Additions net of redemptior 48 48 —
Unrealized gait 9 8 1
Asset value as of September 30, 2 $ 64 $ 56 $ 8
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Funded Status
The table that follows contains the ABO and recligtdons of the changes in the PBO, the chang@dan assets and the funded status

(in millions):
Pension Benefit Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefits

September 3¢ 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $3,58¢ $2,85( $1,904 $1,77¢ $— $—
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y 2,95 2,71 1,852 1,72t 25¢ 25€
Service cos 69 66 41 34 5 5
Interest cos 15C 14E 73 7C 13 13
Plan participant contributior — — 6 6 7 6
Acquisitions — — 6 7€ — —
Divestitures — — (2 — — —
Actuarial loss 722 177 10¢ 9 7 5
Amendments made during the yi — — (6) (32 — —
Benefits paic (15¢) (150 (74) (67) (32) (27)
Estimated subsidy receiv — — — — 2 1
Curtailment gair — — 2 (30) — —
Settlemen — @) (19 (12) — —
Other — — 41 4C 2 —
Currency translation adjustme — — — 33 2 —
Projected benefit obligation at end of y $3,73¢ $2,95: $2,02¢ $1,85:2 $ 26€ $ 25¢
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $2,37: $2,471 $1,471 $1,21¢ $ 15€ $—
Actual return on plan asse 504 44 15¢E 29 35 —
Acquisitions — — — 12 — —
Divestitures — — (1) — — —
Employer and employee contributic 267 9 97 271 63 18z
Benefits paic (15§) (150 (74) (67) (32) 27
Settlement paymen — 2 (29 (12 — —
Other — — 16 1 — —
Currency translation adjustme — — 12 21 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $2,98¢ $2,37: $1,657 $1,471 $22¢ $ 15€
Funded statu $(75) $(58) $(368f $(38) $(43 $(10%
Amounts recognized in the statement of financialifian consist of

Prepaid benefit co: $ 3 $ — $ 61 $ 4C $ 39 $ 15

Accrued benefit liability (754) (587) (429 (421) (82) (11€)
Net amount recognize $(75) $(58) $((36f $(38) $(43 $(10%
Weighted Average Assumptions (1
Discount rate (2 4.15% 5.25% 3.4(% 40(% 4.1% 5.258%
Rate of compensation incree 3.25% 3.3(% 2.4(% 2.5(% NA NA
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W Plan assets and obligations are determined basadeptember 30 measurement date at Septembed130afd 2011

@ The Company considers the expected benefit paynoandsplan-by-plan basis when setting assumed uligcates. As a result, the
Company uses different discount rates for each ggeending on the plan jurisdiction, the demogrepbf participants and the expec
timing of benefit payments. For the U.S. pensiod postretirement plans, the Company uses a discatsmprovided by an independent
third party calculated based on an appropriateohhigh quality bonds. For the non-U.S. pension postretirement plans, the
Company consistently uses the relevant countryifipéenchmark indices for determining the varialiscount rates

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriaamn the consolidated statement of financial mosiexclusive of tax impacts,
that have not yet been recognized as componemest gferiodic benefit cost at September 30, 201sufellows (in millions):

Pensiol
Benefit: Postretirement Benef
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (inco
Net transition obligatiol $ 2 $ —
Net prior service cred (1€) (26)
Total $ (19 $ (26)

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveria@xpected to be recognized as components oenietd benefit cost over the
next fiscal year are shown below (in millions):
Pensiol

Benefit: Postretirement Benef

Amortization of:
Net transition obligatiol $ — $ —

Net prior service cred (1) 17
Total $ (O $ 17)

93



Table of Contents
Net Periodic Benefit Cost
The table that follows contains the componentsabfperiodic benefit cost (in millions):

Pension Benefit
U.S. Plans Nor-U.S. Plans Postretirement Benefi

Year ended September 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cos $ 68 $66E $67 $41 $34 $338 $ 5 $ 5 % 4
Interest cos 15C 14~ 152 73 70 68 13 13 14
Expected return on plan ass (214) (203) (15€) (75) (75) (63) (12) — —
Net actuarial (gain) los 432 33¢€ 111 30 43 134 (15) 5 24
Amortization of prior service cost (cred 1 1 1 Q) 2 — (@))] ()] ()]
Curtailment gair — — — () (29 (@0} — — —
Settlement los — — — — 4 2 — — —
Net periodic benefit co: $43€ $34E $17E $ 66 $ 59 $17E $(25 $ 6 $ 25
Expense Assumptions

Discount rate 528% 55% 6.25% 4.0% 4.0% 4.7%% 52F% 5.5(% 6.25%
Expected return on plan ass 85(% 85(% 85(% 51% 55(% 6.0% 6.3(% NA NA
Rate of compensation incree 33(% 32(% 42(% 2.452% 3.0% 3.2(% NA NA NA

15. SIGNIFICANT RESTRUCTURING COSTS

To better align its resources with its growth stigiés and reduce the cost structure of its glopafations to address the softness in
certain underlying markets, the Company committed significant restructuring plan (2012 Plan)ha third and fourth quarters of
fiscal 2012 and recorded a $297 million restrucigicharge, $52 million in the third quarter and $24illion in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2012. The restructuring charge related &t ceduction initiatives in the Company’s Autometizxperience, Building Efficiency
and Power Solutions businesses and included wardkfieaductions and plant closures. The restructaatigns are expected to be
substantially complete by the end of fiscal 2014.

The following table summarizes the changes in tom@any’s 2012 Plan reserve, included within otherent liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position (itlioms):

Employee
Severance ai
Fixed Asse
Termination
Benefits Impairmen Othel Total
Original reserve $ 237 $ 39 $21 $297
Utilized - cash (16) — (6) (22)
Utilized - noncast — (39 (8 (47
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 221 $ — $ 7 $22¢

The 2012 Plan included workforce reductions of agjpnately 7,500 employees (5,100 for the Automofxperience business, 1,700
for the Building Efficiency business and 700 foe fhower Solutions business). Restructuring chaagesciated with employee
severance and termination benefits are paid owesefierance period granted to each employee otwompasum basis in accordance
with individual severance agreements. As of Septerb, 2012, approximately 800 of the employeeslmaen separated from the
Company pursuant to the 2012 Plan. In addition22 Plan included nine plant closures (six fotokuotive Experience, two for
Power Solutions and one for Building Efficiencys &f September 30, 2012, two of the nine plant& lieen closed. The restructuring
charge for the impairment of long-lived assets magsured, depending on the asset, either undecamé approach utilizing
forecasted discounted cash flows or a market approtlizing an appraisal to determine

94



Table of Contents

16.

fair values of the impairment assets. Refer to NGt Impairment of Long-Lived Assets,” of the nsti® consolidated financial
statements for further information regarding the&inment of long-lived assets.

Company management closely monitors its overall sipacture and continually analyzes each of itsin®rsses for opportunities to
consolidate current operations, improve operatffigiencies and locate facilities in low cost coti@s in close proximity to customers.
This ongoing analysis includes a review of its nfanturing, engineering and purchasing operationsyell as the overall global
footprint for all its businesses. Because of thpantance of new vehicle sales by major automotie@ufacturers to operations, the
Company is affected by the general business comditin this industry. Future adverse developmentle automotive industry could
impact the Company’s liquidity position, lead topairment charges and/or require additional reatrirg of its operations.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG -LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairmdmenever events or changes in circumstancesateltbat the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The Company conitadting-lived asset impairment analyses in acaocé with ASC 360-10-15,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” AS60-10-15 requires the Company to group assetéiaritities at the lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows are largely in@gplent of the cash flows of other assets and iligisiland evaluate the asset group
against the sum of the undiscounted future castsfltf the undiscounted cash flows do not indi¢htecarrying amount of the asset
group is recoverable, an impairment charge is nredsas the amount by which the carrying amountefasset group exceeds its fair
value based on discounted cash flow analysis ata#gais.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 tbompany concluded it had a triggering event raggassessment of impairment for
certain of its long-lived assets in conjunctionhwits 2012 restructuring plan. In addition, in tbarth quarter of fiscal 2012, the
Company concluded it had a triggering event reggiassessment of impairment for certain of its {ived assets due to volume
declines in the European automotive markets. Assalt, the Company reviewed the loinged assets for impairment and recorded a
million impairment charge within restructuring cosin the consolidated statement of income, of wligmillion was recorded in the
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quarbéffiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $idillion related to the Power
Solutions segment, $11 million related to the Aubtiire Experience Europe segment, $4 million relatethe Building Efficiency Othe
segment and $10 million related to corporate asRetfer to Note 15, “Significant Restructuring Gosbf the notes to consolidated
financial statements for further information regagidthe 2012 Plan. The impairment was measuredsraipg on the asset, either under
an income approach utilizing forecasted discountesh flows or a market approach utilizing an afgadato determine fair values of the
impairment assets. These methods are consistdnthveitmethods the Company employed in prior periodslue other long-lived
assets. The inputs utilized in the analyses assifiad as Level 3 inputs within the fair valueraiehy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compaaprded an impairment charge related to an equigstment. Refer to Note 1GFdir
Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidatezhtial statements for additional information.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company coedlitdlid not have any other triggering events g assessment of impairment
of its long-lived assets. Refer to Note 1, “SummairBignificant Accounting Policies,” of the notisconsolidated financial statements
for discussion of the Company’s goodwill impairmesdting.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compangauded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of a pladapan in the Automotive Experience Asia segment Fesult, the Company reviewed
its long-lived assets for impairment and recorde&s1 million impairment charge within cost of gale the fourth quarter of fiscal
2010 related to the Automotive Experience Asia sagnirhe impairment was measured under a markebagip utilizing an appraisal.
The inputs utilized in the analysis are classifisd_evel 3 inputs within the fair value hierarclsydefined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compangaaded it had a triggering event requiring assesgraf impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of its heatirgauilding in Japan in the Automotive Experiedsia segment. As a result, the
Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impamtrend recorded an $11 million impairment chargéiwiselling, general and
administrative expenses in the third quarter afdi010 related to the Automotive Experience Agigment. The impairment was
measured under a market approach utilizing an &ggbrahe inputs utilized in the analysis are dfset as Level 3 inputs within the fe
value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Valleasurements and Disclosures.”
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In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamcluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-
lived assets due to planned plant closures foAtitemotive Experience North America segment. Thedgsures are a result of the
Company'’s revised restructuring actions to the 2@8&ucturing plan. As a result, the Company neei¢its long-lived assets for
impairment and recorded a $19 million impairmerdrge in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 reladettieé Automotive Experience
North America segment. This impairment charge wisebby a decrease in the Company’s restructuesgrve related to the 2008
restructuring plan due to lower employee severamcktermination benefit cash payments than preljiaigpected. The impairment
was measured under an income approach utilizirecésted discounted cash flows to determine thevdduie of the impaired assets.
This method is consistent with the method the Camieas employed in prior periods to value othegived assets. The inputs
utilized in the discounted cash flow analysis dassified as Level 3 inputs within the fair valuerarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

INCOME TAXES

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compahgrged its accounting policy for recognizing pensiad postretirement benefit
expenses. Certain amounts have been revised ¢ztréile retrospective application of this accounpolicy change. The $691 million
adjustment to the opening balance of retained egsras of September 30, 2009 was net of a taxiben@411 million. Refer to Note
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” ofetmotes to consolidated financial statements fdhéu details surrounding this
accounting policy change.

The more significant components of the Companysine tax provision from continuing operations adaflows (in millions):

Year Ended September &

2012 2011 2010

Tax expense at federal statutory rate $ 557 $ 62¢ $ 52¢
State income taxes, net of federal ber 20 (10 28
Foreign income tax expense at different rates arelgn losses without tax

benefits (300 (357) (317
U.S. tax on foreign incorr (20 28 ©)]
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustm 13 (30 (13¢)
Medicare Part [ — — 1€
U.S. credits and incentive (13 @) (©)]
Other (20 1 1C
Provision for income taxe $ 237 $ 257 $ 127

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory @imarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives and income in certain non-
U.S. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower thae td.S. statutory tax rate.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax asset valuation allowances on a quartesdishbar whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that a review is requihedietermining the requirement for a valuatidimowabnce, the historical and projected
financial results of the legal entity or consolethgroup recording the net deferred tax assetarsidered, along with any other posit
or negative evidence. Since future financial resuiay differ from previous estimates, periodic atiiients to the Company’s valuation
allowances may be necessary.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overalldase to its valuation allowances of $47 milliomyarily due to a discrete period
income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. Inftheth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company perfednan analysis related to the
evidence, the Company determined that it was nikeéy/lthan not that deferred tax assets within Rd@autions in China would not be
utilized. Therefore, the Company recorded a $3%onilvaluation allowance in the three month perwodied September 30, 2012.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decreais t@luation allowances primarily due to a $30limil discrete period income tax
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourthreraof fiscal 2011, the Company performed an asialselated to the realizability of its
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, aret afinsidering tax
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planning initiatives and other positive and negatvidence, the Company determined that it was tilaaly than not that the deferred
tax assets primarily within Denmark, Italy, Autorivet Experience in Korea and Automotive Experientéhie United Kingdom would
be utilized. Therefore, the Company released &a@tmillion of valuation allowances in the threentioperiod ended September 30,
2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overaltekese to its valuation allowances of $87 milliomyarily due to a $111 million
discrete period income tax adjustment. In the foqrtarter of fiscal 2010, the Company performedmailysis related to the realizability
of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a resuit] after considering tax planning initiatives atider positive and negative evidence,
the Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets primarily witiiexico would be utilized.
Therefore, the Company released $39 million of &t allowances in the three month period endgde®aber 30, 2010. Further, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets would not be utilinesklected entities in Europe.
Therefore, the Company recorded $14 million of a#ibn allowances in the three month period endgdeBgber 30, 2010. To the ext
the Company improves its underlying operating tssul these entities, these valuation allowancea,mrtion thereof, could be
reversed in future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atioo of the deferred tax assets wit
the Slovakia automotive entity would be utilizedhefefore, the Company released $13 million of iueallowances in the three
month period ended June 30, 2010.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyjedeined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within
the Brazil Automotive Experience entity would bdizgéd. Therefore, the Company released $69 milbbmaluation allowances. This
was comprised of a $93 million decrease in incoamxeekpense offset by a $24 million reduction in olative translation adjustments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgréased the valuation allowances by $20 milliomictv was substantially offset by a
decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax postiora similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax return filing
positions taken in these jurisdictions and theldistaed reserves.

Given the current economic uncertainty, it is remddy possible that over the next twelve monthijatéion allowances against deferred
tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result metincrease to tax expense of up to $400 million.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the &Bh8.numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isiiregl in determining its
worldwide provision for income taxes and recordihg related assets and liabilities. In the ordiranyrse of the Company’s business,
there are many transactions and calculations wtherealtimate tax determination is uncertain. Thenpany is regularly under audit by
tax authorities.

At September 30, 2012, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 millkérvhich $1,274 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalaet accrued interest at September 30, 201 2appoximately $72 million (net of
tax benefit).

At September 30, 2011, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,357 millkérvhich $1,164 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal oet accrued interest at September 30, 201 lapoximately $77 million (net of
tax benefit).

At September 30, 2010, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,262 mildnvhich $1,063 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal aet accrued interest at September 30, 201Gapoximately $68 million (net of
tax benefit).
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 20 September 30, 20 September 30, 20
(in millions)
Beginning balance, September $ 1,357 $ 1,26 $ 1,04¢
Additions for tax positions related
to the current yee 143 15C 252
Additions for tax positions of prio
years 36 2C 257
Reductions for tax positions of
prior years (58 (62 (15¢%)
Settlement: — 5) (209
Statute closing (13 (8 (30)
Ending balance, September $ 1,46¢ $ 1,351 $ 1,262

In the U.S., the fiscal years 2007 through 2009careesntly under exam by the Internal Revenue $er(iRS) and fiscal years 2004
through 2006 are currently under IRS Appeals. Adddlly, the Company is currently under exam infihiowing major foreign

jurisdictions:
Tax Jurisdictior Tax Years Covere
Brazil 2004- 2008
Canadse 2007- 2010
Czech Republi 2007- 2009
France 2002- 2010
Germany 2001- 2010
Italy 2005- 2009
Mexico 2003- 2004
Poland 2008- 2009
Slovakia 2009- 2010

The Company expects that certain tax examinatieymsellate proceedings and/or tax litigation wilhctude within the next twelve
months, the impact of which could be up to a $200an benefit to tax expense.

As a result of certain recent events related torpeix planning initiatives, during the third quaarof fiscal 2012, the Company reduced
the reserve for uncertain tax positions by $22iamllincluding $13 million of interest and penadtie

Based on published case law in a foreign jurisgiciind the settlement of a tax audit during thelthuarter of fiscal 2010, the
Company released net $38 million of reserves faetain tax positions, including interest and ptesl

As a result of certain events related to tax plagmitiatives during the first quarter of fiscdZD, the Company increased the reserve
for uncertain tax positions by $31 million, incladi $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compapgréased its reserves for uncertain tax positigri20 million, which was
substantially offset by an increase in its valuatidlowances in a similar amount. These adjustmeate based on a review of tax filing
positions taken in jurisdictions with valuationallances as indicated above.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

The look-through rule, under subpart F of the Un&rnal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyepiesnber 30, 2012. The look-
through rule had provided an exception to the tasgation of certain income generated by foreigrssiiaries. It is generally thought
that this rule will be extended with the possililif retroactive application.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20¥2etgislation was adopted in Japan which redueestittutory income tax rate by 5%.
Also, tax legislation was adopted in various juidsidns to limit the annual utilization of tax lessthat are carried forward. None of
these changes had a material impact on the Conpangsolidated financial condition, results of @piens or cash flows.
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On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed amodomprehensive health care reform legislatioreutite Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (HR3590). Included among thgangrovisions of the law is a change in the taatment of a portion of Medicare
Part D medical payments. The Company recorded eastrntax charge of approximately $18 million in seeond quarter of fiscal year
2010 to reflect the impact of this change. In tharth quarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decredyeB? million resulting in an overall
impact of $16 million.

Continuing Operations
Components of the provision for income taxes ortinamg operations were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September &

2012 2011 2010
Current
Federa $11€ $ 56 $11z
State 12 — 29
Foreign 313 45¢ 141
443 514 282
Deferred
Federa 11¢ 94 55
State 21 (9 2
Foreign (34€) (342 (212)
(20€) (257) (155)
Provision for income taxe $ 237 $ 257 $ 127

Consolidated domestic income from continuing openatbefore income taxes and noncontrolling intsrés the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was income d8$nillion, $1,012 million and $538 million, respizely. Consolidated foreign
income from continuing operations before incomesaand noncontrolling interests for the fiscal gearded September 30, 2012, 2011
and 2010 was income of $459 million, $777 milliord&971 million, respectively.

Income taxes paid for the fiscal years ended Sdped0, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $496 million, $884on and $535 million,
respectively.

The Company has not provided additional U.S. inctames on approximately $6.4 billion of undistriéditearnings of consolidated
foreign subsidiaries included in shareholders’ ggaitributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Such iegsicould become taxable upon the
sale or liquidation of these foreign subsidiariesipon dividend repatriation. The Company’s intisrfor such earnings to be reinvested
by the subsidiaries or to be repatriated only wiherould be tax effective through the utilizatiohforeign tax credits. It is not
practicable to estimate the amount of unrecogniziéitholding taxes and deferred tax liability on Buearnings. Refer to
“Capitalization” within the “Liquidity and CapitdResources” section of Iltem 7 for discussion of dstmeand foreign cash projections.

Deferred taxes were classified in the consolidatatements of financial position as follows (inlioils):

September 3(
2012 2011
Other current assets $ 564 $ 55¢
Other noncurrent asse 1,78: 1,85t
Other current liabilitie: (20 4
Other noncurrent liabilitie (95) (56)
Net deferred tax ass $2,24: $2,35¢
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which géseto deferred tax assets and liabilities inctu@ie millions):

September 3(

2012 2011
Deferred tax asse
Accrued expenses and reser $ 534 $ 79:
Employee and retiree benef 444 39C
Net operating loss and other credit carryforwe 2,582 2,31¢
Research and developmt 79 10z

3,63¢ 3,60(
Valuation allowance (76€) (719

2,87 2,881
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme 11¢ 13C
Intangible asset 34¢ 34t
Other 168 53

631 52¢

Net deferred tax ass $2,24:% $2,35:

At September 30, 2012, the Company had availalileperating loss carryforwards of approximatelyl$dillion, of which $1.6 billion
will expire at various dates between 2013 and 268d,the remainder has an indefinite carryforwamdgol. The Company had availa
U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards at Septen8r2012 of $1.1 billion, which will expire at vats dates between 2016 and 2022.
The valuation allowance, generally, is for lossyfmrwards for which utilization is uncertain besauit is unlikely that the losses will
utilized given the lack of sustained profitabilapd/or limited carryforward periods in certain ctrigs.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

ASC 280, “Segment Reporting,” establishes the stadwdfor reporting information about segmentsmaficial statements. In applying
the criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company thetermined that it has nine reportable segmentirfancial reporting purposes. The
Company’s nine reportable segments are presentbe icontext of its three primary businesses -ddung Efficiency, Automotive
Experience and Power Solutions.

Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency designs, produces, markets arsdalls heating, ventilating and air conditionifh)/AC) and control systems that
monitor, automate and integrate critical buildieg®ent equipment and conditions including HVAGsfafety and security in
commercial buildings and in various industrial aggtions.

* North America Systems designs, produces, market$rstalls mechanical equipment that provides hgaand cooling in Nort|
American non-residential buildings and industrigplécations as well as control systems that inteegtlae operation of this
equipment with other critical building syster

* North America Service provides technical servieesduding inspection, scheduled maintenance, regradrreplacement
mechanical and control systems in North Americayels as the retrofit and service components ofgrarance contracts and
other solutions

» Global Workplace Solutions provides on-site staffdomplete real estate services, facility operaiod management to improve
the comfort, productivity, energy efficiency andsteffectiveness of building systems around théejl

» Asia provides HVAC and refrigeration systems arahtécal services to the Asian marketple

« Other provides HVAC and refrigeration systems auhhical services to markets in Europe, the Midst and Latin America.
Other also designs and produces heating and ailitcmming solutions for residential and light conmmial applications and
markets products to the replacement and new canistnumarkets
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Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesiamteystems and products for passenger cars ghttfucks, including vans, pick-
up trucks and sport utility/crossover vehicles iorth America, Europe and Asia. Automotive Experegesgstems and products include
complete seating systems and components; coclgigsg, including instrument panels and clustefgrrimation displays and body
controllers; overhead systems, including headliaaelectronic convenience features; floor corssa@ad door systems.

Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive origimgiiement manufacturers and the battery aftermdnkgiroviding advanced battery
technology, coupled with systems engineering, ntargeand service expertise.

Management evaluates the performance of the segrhaséd primarily on segment income, which reptesanome from continuing
operations before income taxes and noncontrolhibgrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring costs and net mark-
to-market adjustments on pension and postretireplans. General corporate and other overhead egpeame allocated to business
segments in determining segment income. Finantiairnation relating to the Company’s reportablenseqgts is as follows (in

millions):
Year Ended September &
2012 2011 2010

Net Sales

Building Efficiency
North America System $ 2,38¢ $ 2,34: $ 2,14
North America Servic 2,14¢ 2,30¢ 2,127
Global Workplace Solution 4,29¢ 4,15: 3,28¢
Asia 1,981 1,84( 1,42
Other 3,90( 4,25: 3,82¢

14,71t 14,89¢ 12,80:

Automotive Experienc

North America 8,721 7,431 6,76¢
Europe 9,97: 10,26° 8,01¢
Asia 2,64( 2,36 1,82¢
21,33 20,06¢ 16,61(

Power Solution: 5,90¢ 5,87¢ 4,89:
Total net sale $41,95¢ $40,83: $34,30¢
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Year Ended September &

2012 2011 2010
Segment Income (Los
Building Efficiency
North America Systems (. $ 28¢ $ 247 $ 20¢€
North America Service (2 164 121 117
Global Workplace Solutions ( 52 22 4C
Asia (4) 267 251 18C
Other (5) 141 10t 13€
91C 74€ 67¢
Automotive Experienc
North America (6 487 41¢ 38C
Europe (7, (52 11€ 10¢
Asia (8) 36¢ 24E 10¢
802 78C 597
Power Solutions (€ 854 821 672
Total segment incomr $2,561 $2,34% $1,94¢
Net financing charge (239) (174 (270
Restructuring cosl (297) — —
Net marl-to-market adjustments on pension and postretiremants (447) (384) (269)
Income before income tax $1,59( $1,78¢ $1,50¢
September 3(
2012 2011 2010
Assets
Building Efficiency
North America System $ 1,32¢ $ 1,30( $ 1,35¢
North America Servic 1,52: 1,581 1,511
Global Workplace Solution 1,23¢ 1,22¢ 1,01z
Asia 1,31¢€ 1,247 1,23¢
Other 3,941 4,11t 3,92t
9,34¢ 9,471 9,03¢
Automotive Experienc
North America 4,25¢ 3,86: 3,39:
Europe 6,742 7,34¢ 5,39(
Asia 1,757 1,581 1,34t
12,75 12,79¢ 10,12
Power Solution: 7,24z 6,63¢ 5,47¢
Unallocatec 1,54: 76¢ 1,10(
Total $30,88:¢ $29,67¢ $25,74:
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Year Ended September &

2012 2011 2010
Depreciation/Amortizatiol
Building Efficiency
North America System $ 12 $ 1C $ 11
North America Servici 25 25 23
Global Workplace Solution 24 18 16
Asia 19 15 15
Other 66 69 73
14€ 137 13¢
Automotive Experienc
North America 141 13¢€ 147
Europe 284 254 21%
Asia 39 27 31
464 41¢ 391
Power Solution: 214 17t 162
Total $ 82 $ 731 $691
Year Ended September &
2012 2011 2010
Capital Expenditure
Building Efficiency
North America System $ 6 $ 6 $ 14
North America Servic 25 17 32
Global Workplace Solution 7 32 17
Asia 38 22 13
Other 108 91 43
17¢ 16¢ 11¢
Automotive Experienc
North America 232 21C 122
Europe 463 38:< 22k
Asia 82 45 38
77 63¢ 38¢€
Power Solution: 87& 51¢ 272
Total $1,831 $1,32¢ $777

(1) Building Efficiency - North America Systems segnt income for the year ended September 30, 2dd@des $2 million of
restructuring costt

(2) Building Efficiency -North America Service segment income for the wrated September 30, 2012 excludes $6 million afuesiring
costs. For the years ended September 30, 20120d4ridNborth America Service segment income includesflion and $2 million,
respectively, of equity incom

(3) Building Efficiency - Global Workplace Solutisrsegment income for the year ended Septembe03@,&cludes $16 million of
restructuring costt

(4) Building Efficiency - Asia segment income ftietyear ended September 30, 2012 excludes $1 mdficestructuring costs. For the
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010ségiment income includes $3 million, $3 million &&million, respectively, ¢
equity income

(5) Building Efficiency - Other segment income fbe year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $6émmif restructuring costs. For the
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, §¢pment income includes $23 million, $17 milleamd $2 million, respectivel
of equity income

(6) Automotive Experience - North America segmerbme for the year ended September 30, 2012 exscitie million of restructuring
costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012,a8@112010, North America segment income includésrilion, $20 million and
$14 million, respectively, of equity incom
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(7) Automotive Experience - Europe segment incoonétfe year ended September 30, 2012 excludesiildén of restructuring costs.
For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 dfY EQrope segment income includes $5 million, $ian and $7 million,
respectively, of equity incom

(8) Automotive Experience - Asia segment incometlieryear ended September 30, 2012 excludes $&milf restructuring costs. For the
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010ségiaent income includes $185 million, $187 millaord $132 million
respectively, of equity incom

(9) Power Solutions segment income for the yeaedrgkptember 30, 2012 excludes $37 million of wesdring costs. For the years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Power Solusiegqiment income includes $100 million, $62 milliod &97 million, respectively,
of equity income

The Company has significant sales to the automatitestry. In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010¢customer exceeded 10% of
consolidated net sales.

Geographic Segments

Financial information relating to the Company’s @i®ns by geographic area is as follows (in mil&i

Year Ended September ¢

2012 2011 2010
Net Sales

United State: $15,48:¢ $14,36° $12,89:
Germany 4,79( 4,59( 3,54
Mexico 2,18¢ 1,86¢ 1,42¢
Other European countri 10,66 10,21: 8,33¢
Other foreigr 8,82¢ 9,79¢ 8,10¢
Total $41,95¢ $40,83: $34,30¢
Long-Lived Assets (Yeeend)

United State: $ 2,521 $ 2,11¢ $ 1,57:
Germany 87¢ 864 38¢
Mexico 58¢ 54C 464
Other European countri 1,55 1,35¢ 1,071
Other foreigr 89t 74C 60C
Total $ 6,44( $ 5,61¢ $ 4,09¢

Net sales attributed to geographic locations ased@n the location of the assets producing thesshbng-lived assets by geographic
location consist of net property, plant and equiptme

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganitedutomotive Experience reportable segmentsigmakith its new management

reporting structure and business activities. Assallt of this change, Automotive Experience willdenprised of three new reportable
segments for financial reporting purposes: Seatibegctronics and Interiors. This change will bdeetied in the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecerdbeP012, with comparable periods revised to conftr the new presentation.

19. NONCONSOLIDATED PARTIALLY -OWNED AFFILIATES

Investments in the net assets of nonconsolidatdhiygowned affiliates are stated in the “Investnts in partially-owned affiliatedine
in the consolidated statements of financial positie of September 30, 2012 and 2011. Equity iméténcome of nonconsolidated
partially-owned affiliates are stated in the “Eguitcome” line in the consolidated statements abme for the years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The following table presents summarized financ&hdor the Company’s nonconsolidated partially-edaffiliates. The amounts
included in the table below represent 100% of &seiits of operations of such nonconsolidated plgridavned affiliates accounted for
under the equity method.
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20.

Summarized balance sheet data as of Septembea8Gadows (in millions):

2012 2011
Current assel $3,33¢ $3,00(
Noncurrent asse’ 1,64¢ 1,12(
Total asset 4,98 4,12(
Current liabilities $2,501 $2,18¢
Noncurrent liabilities 558 37¢
Shareholder equity 1,93: 1,55¢
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 4,98 4,12(
Summarized income statement data for the yearsde®elptember 30 is as follows (in millions):
2012 2011 2010
Net sales $9,261 $8,46¢ $7,37¢
Gross profit 1,42z 1,15¢ 1,08¢
Net income attributable to the ent 664 52€ 477

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company accrues for potential environmentéllliiges in a manner consistent with accountingipiples generally accepted in the
United States; that is, when it is probable a ligbhas been incurred and the amount of the lighis reasonably estimable. Reserves
environmental liabilities totaled $25 million an@8®million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respelgti The Company reviews the
status of its environmental sites on a quarterkidand adjusts its reserves accordingly. Suchpatdiabilities accrued by the
Company do not take into consideration possibleveies of future insurance proceeds. They do, lewédake into account the likely
share other parties will bear at remediation sitas.difficult to estimate the Company’s ultimdéyel of liability at many remediation
sites due to the large number of other partiesrttat be involved, the complexity of determining th&ative liability among those
parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and sebthe investigations and remediation to be cotetliche uncertainty in the application
of law and risk assessment, the various choicesasid associated with diverse technologies thgtheaused in corrective actions at
the sites, and the often quite lengthy periods extéch eventual remediation may occur. NevertheldgesCompany does not currently
believe that any claims, penalties or costs in eotion with known environmental matters will haveaterial adverse effect on the
Companys financial position, results of operations or cigWs. In addition, the Company has identifiededsstirement obligations f
environmental matters that are expected to be asgddeat the retirement, disposal, removal or abandat of existing owned facilities,
primarily in the Power Solutions business. At Segier 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded d¢onditasset retirement
obligations of $76 million and $91 million, respieety.

The Company is involved in a number of productilighband various other casualty lawsuits incidemthe operation of its businesses.
The Company maintains insurance coverages andd®estimated costs for claims and suits of thigneait is management’s opinion
that none of these will have a material adversecefin the Company’s financial position, result®pérations or cash flows. Costs
related to such matters were not material to thi®g@e presented.
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J OHNSON CONTROLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Year Ended September & 2012 2011 2010
Accounts Receivabl- Allowance for Doubtful Account
Balance at beginning of peric $ 89 $ 9€ $ 9¢
Provision charged to costs and expel 47 37 42
Reserve adjustmen (15) (23 (29
Accounts charged o (42 (24) (25)
Acquisition of businesse — 4 4
Currency translatio (1) (D —
Balance at end of peric $ 78 $ 8¢ $ 9€
Deferred Tax Asset- Valuation Allowance
Balance at beginning of peric $71¢ $ 73¢ $ 81¢
Allowance established for new operating and othss lcarryforward 11¢ 95 7C
Acquisition of businesse — 18 —
Allowance reversed for loss carryforwards utilized other adjustmen (72 (139) (1479)
Balance at end of peric $76€ $ 71¢ $ 73¢

ITEM9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompanys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offichas evaluati
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure odsaind procedures (as such term is defined in R3del5(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchang®)fed of the end of the period covered by thisoreBased on such evaluations,
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have concluded that, as of the englioh period, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effectivednrding, processing, summarizing, and reportmga timely basis, information
required to be disclosed by the Company in therntsgbat it files or submits under the Exchange, Aod that information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s neaneit, including the Company’s Chief Executive €dfiand Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisiorgarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal control éimancial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Tmnpany’s management, with the participation ef@ompany’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluatkd effectiveness of the Company’s internal condxadr financial reporting based on
the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framewissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaiuratof the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, the compamgsagement has concluded that, as of Septemb20388, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was etiee.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perio@ssabject to risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfaiblic accounting firm, has audited the Compaieghsolidated financial
statements and the effectiveness of internal ctsnéneer financial reporting as of September 30,284 stated in its report which is
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and is incorgied by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as noted below, there have been no chandle Company’s internal control over financialogmng during the quarter ended
September 30, 2012, that have materially affeciedre reasonably likely to materially affect, tbempany’s internal control over
financial reporting.

The Company is undertaking the implementation @f paterprise resource planning (ERP) systems taicglbusinesses, which will
occur over a period of several years. As the phesedut of the new ERP systems occurs, the Comppaaly experience changes in its
internal control over financial reporting. No sificant changes were made to the Company'’s currgatrial control over financial
reporting as a result of the implementation ofribev ERP systems during the fiscal year ended Sdéyetiedd, 2012.

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il

The information required by Part I, Items 10, 18,and 14, and certain of the information requlvgdtem 12, is incorporated herein
by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement$a2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (fiscal 2Pt@xy Statement), dated and to
be filed with the SEC on or about December 10, 2@%Zollows:

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Incorporated by reference to the sections entffizd/Nhere can | find Corporate Governance matefiaslohnson Controls?,”
“Proposal One: Election of Directors,” “Board Infiation,” “Audit Committee Report” and “Section 1H@eneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliancedf the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement. Required infation on executive officers of the Company appeaamart |,
Item 4 of this report.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the sections entifBmhrd Information,” “Compensation Committee Repbf€ompensation Discussion
and Analysis,” “Director Compensation during Fis¥alar 2012,” “Potential Payments and Benefits Upermination or Change of
Control,” “Johnson Controls Share Ownership” anddfholder Information Summary” of the fiscal 20Ardxy Statement.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to section entitled “$i¢ies Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compeiosn Plans” under “Proposal
Four: Approve the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omsilmcentive Plan” and the section entitled “Jolnn€ontrols Share Ownershipf
the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to sections entitled ‘fBdaformation - Board Independence” and “Boardiniation - Related Person
Transactions” of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the section entitRdlationship with Independent Auditors” under “Au@ommittee Report” of the fiscal
2012 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page in
Form 1(-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ fform 1¢-K:
(1) Financial Statemen
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 52
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse@®e@ptember 30, 2012, 2011 and 2 54
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position ateSeber 30, 2012 and 20 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yemadled September 30, 2012, 2011 and : 56
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquitsitAttable to Johnson Controls, Inc. for the yeadesl
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2! 57
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 58
(2) Financial Statement Sched:
For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 drtd
Schedule |- Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 10€

(3) Exhibits
Reference is made to the separate exhibit indetacwd on pages 110 through 113 filed herev

All other schedules are omitted because they arapplicable, or the required information is shawithe financial statements or notes
thereto.

Financial statements of 50% or less-owned compdraies been omitted because the proportionate sfisineir profit before income
taxes and total assets are less than 20% of theatdge consolidated amounts, and investmentsdh sampanies are less than 20% of
consolidated total assets.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the amendmemnthé rules governing Form S-8 under the Secuki@f 1933, the undersigned
registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which ta#ting shall be incorporated by reference intdstegnt’s Registration Statements
Form S-8 Nos. 33-30309, 33-31271, 333-10707, 33B/86333-41564, 333-141578, 333-117898 and 3332433

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisimgnder the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitteditectors, officers and controlling
persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregpmgisions, or otherwise, the registrant has msbnsed that in the opinion of the SEC
such indemnification is against public policy apmssed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, fheegunenforceable. In the event that
a claim for indemnification against such liabilgtiéother than the payment by the registrant of eseg incurred or paid by a director,
officer or controlling person of the registranttire successful defense of any action, suit or maiog) is asserted by such director,
officer or controlling person in connection witheteecurities being registered, the registrant willess in the opinion of its counsel the
matter has been settled by controlling precedeiing to a court of appropriate jurisdiction theegtion whether such indemnification
by it is against public policy as expressed inAlseand will be governed by the final adjudicatiminsuch issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC
By /s/ R. Bruce McDonald

R. Bruce McDonal¢
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Date: November 19, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bakaf November 19, 2012, by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated:

/sl Stephen A. Roell /s/ R. Bruce McDonald
Stephen A. Roell R. Bruce McDonald
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
/sl Brian J. Stief /s/ Dennis W. Archer
Brian J. Stief Dennis W. Archer
Vice President and Corporate Controller (Princkatounting Director

Officer)

/sl David Abney /sl Robert L. Barnett
David Abney Robert L. Barnett
Director Director

/s/ Natalie A. Black /s/ Robert A. Cornog
Natalie A. Black Robert A. Cornog
Director Director

/s/ Richard Goodman /sl Jeffrey A. Joerres
Richard Goodman Jeffrey A. Joerres
Director Director

/s/ William H. Lacy /s/ Mark P. Verghano
William H. Lacy Mark P. Vergnano
Director Director

/s/ Eugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana
Eugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana
Director

Julie L. Bushman
Director
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Exhibit

3.()
3.(ii)
4.A

4.B

4.C

4.D

4.E
4.F

4.G

4H

4.

4.3

4K
4L

4.M

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

Restated Articles of Incorporation of Johnson Calstrinc., as amended through January 26, 201 brficated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, I's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 1, 2011) (Commission File N-5097).

Johnson Controls, Inc. By-Laws, as amended andtessthrough January 26, 2011 (incorporated byeate to Exhibit 3.2 to
Johnson Controls, Ir's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 1, 2011 ) (Commission File N-5097).

Miscellaneous lor-term debt agreements and financing leases withsbanét other creditors and debenture indentu
Miscellaneous industrial development bond -term debt issues and related loan agreements aseislé

Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 betda®mson Controls, Inc., LaSalle National Trust, NaAd Fidelity
Management Trust Company which replaces LaSall@NatTrust, N.A. as Trustee of the Johnson Costroic. Employee
Stock Ownership Plan Trust with Fidelity Managementst Company as Successor Trustee, effectiveaipriy 1991
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.F to Jolm€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhetyear ended
September 30, 1991) (Commission File N-5097).

Indenture for debt securities dated January 176 2@@ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and US Bank NsAugacessor trustee to JP
Morgan Chase (incorporated by reference to ExHiliito Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Registration Statenon Form S-3ASR
[Reg. No. 33-130714]).

[RESERVED].

Supplemental Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, l&twiehnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank NationabA&gtion, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Joim&antrols, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/AellMarch 20, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Subordinated Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, letwehnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nationab8wtion, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Joim&antrols, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/AellMarch 20, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 16, 2b868yeen Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank NatiAssociation, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3dhnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Fork/8 filed March 20, 200¢
(Commission File No.-5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 1, 2B&Byeen Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nalidssociation, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.Idhnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Forkafded March 1, 2012)
(Commission File No.-5097).

Officers’ Certificate, dated December 2, 2011, lglighing the 2.600% Senior Notes due 2016, 3.75@¥d Notes due 2021
and 5.250% Senior Notes due 2041 (incorporatectgyence to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, In€isrent Report on Form
8-K filed December 2, 2011) (Commission File N-5097).

Form of Corporate Unit (incorporated by refererm&xhibit 4.6 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrerpRrt on Form 8-K/A filed
March 20, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).

Form of Treasury Unit (incorporated by referenc&xibit 4.7 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrenpBi on Form 8-K/A filed
March 20, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).

Form of Subordinated Note (incorporated by refeeeiocExhibit 4.8 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Cutieeport on Form 8-K/A
filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).
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Exhibit
4.\

4.C

4.p

10.B

10.C

10.C

10.E
10.F
10.C

10.F

10.1

10.J

10.K

10.L

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

Officers’ Certificate, dated March 9, 2010 creatt1i§00% Senior Notes due 2020 (incorporated byeafse to Exhibit 4.1 to
Johnson Controals, Ir's Current Report on Forn-K filed March 10, 2010) (Commission File Nc-5907).

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 17, 201bngndohnson Controls, Inc. and the financial instins parties thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to JolnGontrols, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedbruary 18, 2011)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Officers’ Certificate, dated February 4, 2011, bbshing the Floating Rate Notes due 2014, 1.75%id@éNotes due 2014, 4.25%
Senior Notes due 2021 and 5.70% Senior Notes ddie @@corporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 tonkan Controls, Inc.’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed February 7, 2011

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase BlaExXecutives as amended November 17, 2004 anctiefeDecember 1,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Babnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 1fbkthe year ended
September 30, 2004) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Rla€értain Directors, as amended and restatedtiéeldovember 18, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.C to Jam&€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K floe year ended
September 30, 2009) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Bend®iisn, as amended and restated effective Septer6pb20Q9 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.D to Johnson Controls, tn&nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endegdt&aber 30, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

[RESERVED].
[RESERVED].

Form of indemnity agreement effective October 1& between Johnson Controls, Inc. and each dafitbetors and elected
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@LJohnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on FaO¥K for the year ended
September 30, 2007) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Director Share Unit Plargragnded and restated effective September 20, @@ddrporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.H to Johnson Controls, Inc.’'s AnnBaport on Form 16 for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Comnrissile
No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan nasraled and restated effective January 1, 2009rfincated by reference to
Exhibit 10.I to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Remn Form 10-K for the year ended September 8092 (Commission File
No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option award agreement for JohnsamtiGts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendeabiin October 1, 2001, as
in use through March 20, 2006 (incorporated byreafee to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Incisrént Report on Form 8-K
filed November 15, 2005) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Rlaramended and restated effective September 20,(R@brporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.K to Johnson Controls,'sdnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endegdt&aber 30, 2011)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

Form of restricted stock award agreement for Jalmi@&antrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, a imended March 21, 2006
with effectiveness of August 1, 2006, and as culyeamended effective September 20, 2011 (incotpdrhy reference to Exhibit
10.L to Johnson Control
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

Inc.’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commidsie No. -5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Compémsé&tlan, as amended and restated effective Ma&8cB®@L0 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Contrais,’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qudytperiod ended March 31,
2010) (Commission File No-5097) .**

Johnson Controals, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for OutBitectors, as amended September 1, 2009 (incogmbiat reference to
Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Bamn Form 10-K for the year ended September B092(Commission File
No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performaples, as amended and restated effective Janu2608, (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls,' $n€urrent Report Form 8-K filed February 1, 20{@pmmission File No. 1-
5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Retirement Restoration Rlargmended and restated effective November 1B, @@€orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.P to Johnson Controls, $n&dnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endegdt&mber 30, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Compensation Summary for-Employee Directors as amended and restated eftegtinuary 1, 2012,
filed herewith.**

Form of stock option award agreement for JohnsomiGts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendede®gper 16, 2006, as in
effect since October 2, 2006 (incorporated by e¥fee to Exhibit 10.CC to Johnson Controls, Inc/fs#al Report on Form 1K-
for the year ended September 30, 2006) (CommidslerNo. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controals, Inc. Long Term Incentive PerfaroeaPlan, as amended and restated effective Jahu2@@8 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Contrais,’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Februar@11) (Commission File
No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controals, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan, atedras of September 20, 2011 (incorporated byeaeferto Exhibit 10.U to
Johnson Controls, Ir's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commidsie No. -5097).**

Form of stock option award agreement for JohnsomiGts, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan effective Seyger 20, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.V to Ja@mgontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fioe year ended
September 30, 2011) (Commission File N-5097).**

Supplemental Agreement to the Employment Contrantiéen the Company and Dr. Beda Bolzenius datedigtizp, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.EE to JmmControls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K thee year ended
September 30, 2008) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Compensation lieiRecoupment Policy effective September 15, 268%amended through
September 25, 2012, filed herewith

Form of employment agreement between Johnson Gsplinc. and all elected officers and named exgesthired after July 28,
2010, as amended and restated July 28, 2010 (imcdgul by reference to Exhibit 10.Y to Johnson &gsitInc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010)r(@dssion File No. -5097).**

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed chargasthe years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, 2009,and 2008, filed
herewith.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
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Title
Preferability Letter on Change in Accounting Prpiej filed herewith
Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herew
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking dated November 19, 2012, filed herew
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt

Certification of Periodic Financial Report by thli€f Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiqeursuant to Section 906 of t
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt

The following materials from Johnson Controls, iménnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endedt&mber 30, 2012,
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingnggaage): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Firsdmusition, (ii) the
Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) the Codsbéd Statements of Cash Flow, (iv) the Consddid&tatements of
Shareholder Equity Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. amyiotes to Consolidated Financial Statementsd filerewith.

*  These instruments are not being filed as exhitéewith because none of the long-term debt imgnis authorizes the issuance of debt
in excess of 10% of the total assets of Johnsorir@eninc. and its subsidiaries on a consolid&iasis. Johnson Controls, Inc. agrees to
furnish a copy of each agreement to the SecuatiesExchange Commission upon requ

**  Denotes a management contract or compensatory
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Exhibit 10.C
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
COMPENSATION SUMMARY FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Compensation for non-employee members of the BoaRirectors (the “Board”) of Johnson Controls, Iihe “Company”),
effective January 1, 2012, consists of the payrfa@rthe Company’s fiscal year of:

(i) a retainer at the annual rate of $240,000 the®wnemployee director in the form of $110,000 in cast $130,000 in commc
stock of the Company (the “Retainer”),

(i) a Committee Chair fee at the annual rate &&,820 in cash to each non-employee chair and sswocekair for the Audit,
Corporate Governance, Nominating and Compensationnittees of the Board (the “Committee Chair Feafid

(iii) a Lead Director fee at the annual rate of $2® in cash to a non-employee lead director andessor lead director providing
that the non-employee director is not subject @oenmittee Chair Fee as described above.

Payment of Common Stock Portion of the Retairidte Company will pay the common stock portionhaf Retainer on the date
of the annual shareholders meeting to each diréogor in office, subject to the following:

. If a director is retiring from the Board as of tih@te of such annual shareholders meeting, theditbetor will be entitled to receive
common stock with an aggregate value equal tohenumber of days that have elapsed from Octoloétte fiscal year in question to
the date of the annual shareholders meeting divigdg) 365, multiplied by $130,00

. If a director is newly elected at the annual shelddrs meeting, or was appointed as a directorr @iter the October 1 of the fiscal y¢
in question, then the director will be entitledéaeive common stock with an aggregate value gqual) the number of days in the
period from the effective date of the director’pamtment or election to the Board through Septar8beof the fiscal year in question
divided by (y) 365, multiplied by $130,00

If a director is newly appointed or elected to Beard after the annual shareholders meeting ifisbal year in question, then the
director will be entitled to receive upon the effee date of his or her appointment or election own stock with an aggregate value equal to
(x) the number of days in the period from the dffexdate of the director’'s appointment or electiorough September 30 of the fiscal year in
question divided by (y) 365, multiplied by $130,000

If a director retires from the Board either on ol or after October 1 of the fiscal year in dgeasbut prior to the annual
shareholders meeting in such fiscal year, thenlitteetor will be entitled to receive upon the effee date of his or her date of retirement
common stock with an aggregate value of (x) the lmemof days that have elapsed from October 1 ofisieal year in question to the date of
the director’s retirement divided by (y) 365, mpliied by $130,000.

Payment of the Cash Portion of the Retainer andr@itter Chair or Lead Director Fe@he Company will pay the cash portior
the Retainer and the Committee Chair or Lead Darefeee in the form of a quarterly payment ($27,p60quarter for the cash portion of the
Retainer and $6,250 per quarter for the Committe&ir®r Lead Director Fee) in advance on the brdiness day of each quar




to each director then in office. If a director ither elected or appointed to the Board or is apigoi as a Committee Chair (or successor to a
Committee Chair) or Lead Director (or successa taead Director) at any time during the fiscal yafier the first business day of a quarter,
then such director will receive upon the effectilae of such election or appointment, for the garant which such election or appointment is
effective, a prorated amount of the cash portiothefRetainer and/or any Committee Chair or Leadddr Fee with such amount to be
determined in the manner set forth below:

. Cash portion of RetainefThe director shall receive a cash amount equ@)tthe number of days from the effective dat¢hef
appointment or election to the first day of thetrgxarter divided by (y) 90, multiplied by $27,5@01d

. Committee Chair or Lead Director Fe€he director shall receive a cash amount equ@)tthe number of days from the effective date
of the appointment or election to the first dayta next quarter divided by (y) 90, multiplied b§,350.

The Company will not pay any fees for attendanaeexdtings of the Board or any committee.
All shares of stock to be issued to directors ageraplated above will be issued pursuant to the Zifector Stock Plan.

Non-employee directors are permitted to defer iy part of their Retainer and Committee ChaasRender the Johnson
Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Geifarectors.

The Company will also reimburse non-employee diextor any expenses related to their service erBitard.
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Exhibit 10.x

Executive Compensation Incentive Recoupment Policy

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION INCENTIVE RECOUPMENT POLICY

I. Scope of this Policy. This policy applies to pdirformance incentives awarded on or after Seperth, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) to all
persons (“Covered Recipients”) who, at the timswath award, are Section 16(b) officers of Johnsomti@ls, Inc. (the “Company”) elected
by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “BfarPerformance incentives awarded prior to thieéifve Date are not subject to this
policy, but remain subject to the Company'’s abildyrecover amounts pursuant to applicable legaboitable remedies under state and
federal law.

For purposes of this policy, “performance inceritimeans any compensation payable in cash tiedrforpeance metrics that is intended to
serve as incentive for performance to occur oyegrénd of a year or more and any performance gnésted under the Company’s 2012
Omnibus Incentive Plan, whether settled in cashreshof the Company’s common stock (“Shares”) @orabination thereof. A performance
incentive is “awarded” on the date the Company igréime award, not on the date the award amourtiisately determined or paid.

While in effect, this policy overrides any contrgmovisions of any compensation plans or arrangésitbiat the Company adopted or
implemented before the Effective Date and any glahs or arrangements subsequently adopted or ingpited, as well as any contrary
provisions in any award agreements under such plaagangements.

The Company may recoup incentive compensation uthilepolicy regardless of whether the Covered pient who received the
compensation that is subject to recoupment isestilbloyed by the Company or an affiliate on thedatmbursement or other payment is
required.

II. Recoupment of Incentive Compensation. All periance incentives awarded after the Effective Batesubject to recoupment under this
policy. The Compensation Committee of the Board (thommittee”) will, unless prohibited by applicadaw, require reimbursement from
any Covered Recipient of (a) an amount equal tatheunt of any overpayment of any such incentivé fmasuch Covered Recipient or

(b) any excess number of Shares delivered to sovkr€d Recipient (or the fair market value of sexbess number of Shares), with respect
to a performance period if the following conditicar® met:

. The payment or the delivery of Shares was predicap®n the achievement of certain financial reswith respect to the applicable
performance period that were subsequently the subfea material restatement other than a restatechee to changes in accounting
policy;

. In the Committe’s view the Covered Recipient engaged in conduttcduased or partially caused the need for the teratent; anc
. A lower payment would have been made, or fewer &hdelivered, to the Covered Recipient based upmnestated financial resul



The amount required to be reimbursed shall béhaércase of a performance incentive payable in ¢hstexcess of the gross incentive
payment made over the gross payment that would heee made if the original payment had been deteranbased on the restated financial
results or, in the case of a performance unit playiabShares, the excess number of Shares deliwtthe number of Shares that would
have been delivered if the original number had litarmined based on the restated financial reguli@ cash amount equal to the fair
market value of such excess number of Shares @intleeof the reimbursement).

Unless prohibited by applicable law, the Companly ai$o be entitled to, and the Committee will sggkyment by the Covered Recipient of
(i) a reasonable rate of interest on any incerttie¢ becomes subject to reimbursement under thisypend (i) the costs of collection.

Following any accounting restatement that the Caomps required to prepare due to its material namuliance, as a result of misconduct,
with any financial reporting requirement under fieeurities laws, the Company will also seek to vecany compensation received by its
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offidhiat is required to be reimbursed under SectighdQhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The Company will determine, in its sole discretitire method for obtaining reimbursement and otlgngent from the Covered Recipient,
which may include, but is not limited to: (i) byfeétting the amount from any compensation owechbyGompany to the Covered Recipient
(including without limitation amounts payable un@edeferred compensation plan at such time asisifted by Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended), (ii) by redumirdiminating future salary increases, cash itieerawards or equity awards, or (iii) by
requiring the Covered Recipient to pay the amoumtetiver an amount of Shares to the Company ufsowritten demand for such payment
or delivery of Shares.

[ll. Administration of this Policy. The Committeeilixhave sole discretion in making all determinasaunder this policy, including whether
the conduct of a Covered Recipient has or hasautded or partially caused the need for a restatemen

IV. Binding on Successors. The terms of this po$ibgll be binding upon and enforceable againsCihwered Recipients and their heirs,
executors, administrators and legal representatives

V. Amendment of this Policy. The Committee and Buard, in their discretion, may modify or amendwinole or in part, any or all of the
provisions of this policy, and may suspend thiggyoirom time to time.

VI. Governing Law. This policy and all rights anblligations hereunder shall be governed by and coedtin accordance with the internal
laws of the State of Wisconsin, excluding any cha€law rules that may direct the applicationtaf taws of another jurisdiction.

* * *



EXHIBIT 12
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table shows our ratio of earningdixed charges for the fiscal years ended Septer@®e2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and
2008. Certain amounts have been revised to rdfieatetrospective application of the Company’s aatiag policy change for
recognizing pension and postretirement benefit espe

Year Ended September 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in millions)
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contiols, $1,22¢ $1,41f $1,307 $(681) $ 801
Provision for income taxe 237 257 127 (175) 21t
Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling in&& 127 117 75 (12 24
(Income) loss from equity affiliate (340 (29¢) (2549) 77 (11€)
Distributed income of equity affiliate 19C 194 212 15¢ 101
Amortization of previously capitalized intere 9 10 11 11 1C
Fixed charges less capitalized intel 40¢ 331 30z 492 40¢
Earnings $1,85¢  $2,02¢  $1,78( $(13C) $1,44«

Fixed charges
Interest incurred and amortization of debt expe $ 313 $ 224 ¢ 19 $37E $ 291
Estimated portion of interest in rent expe 151 141 13C 134 13z
Fixed charge $ 464 $ 36t $ 322 $50¢ $ 424
Less: Interest capitalized during the per (55) (34 (22) (17) (15)
Fixed charges less capitalized intel $ 40 $ 331 $ 30z $49z $ 40¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 4.C 5.€ 52 * 3.4

* The ratio coverage for the year ended SeptemBge2@09 was less than 1:1. The Company must genadalitional earnings of $639

million to achieve a coverage ratio of 1

For the purposes of computing this ratio, “earnirggmsist of net income attributable to Johnsont@ss, Inc. from continuing
operations before income taxes, income attributebiencontrolling interests and income from eqaitiliates plus (a) amortization of
previously capitalized interest, (b) distributeddme from equity affiliates and (c) fixed chargaénus interest capitalized during the
period. “Fixed charges” consist of (i) interestined and amortization of debt expense plus (&)gbrtion of rent expense

representative of the interest factor.



EXHIBIT 18

November 19, 201

Board of Directors of Johnson Controls, Inc.
5757 N. Green Bay Avenue
Milwaukee, WI 53209

Dear Directors:
We are providing this letter to you for inclusioman exhibit to your Form 10-K filing pursuant terh 601 of Regulation S-K.

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnianluded in the Company’s Annual Report on F&G¥K for the year ended
September 30, 2012 and issued our report thereged dovember 19, 2012. Note 1 to the financialkestents describes a change in
accounting principle for pension and other postetent benefits. It should be understood that teéepability of one acceptable method of
accounting over another for pension and other ptistment benefits has not been addressed in dahgréative accounting literature, and in
expressing our concurrence below we have reliech@magement’s determination that this change inwatawg principle is preferable. Based
on our reading of management’s stated reasonsuatitigation for this change in accounting prineifph the Form 10-K, and our discussions
with management as to their judgment about thevasliebusiness planning factors relating to the ghawe concur with management that
such change represents, in the Company’s circuresathe adoption of a preferable accounting geladh conformity with Accounting
Standards Codification 258¢counting Changes and Error Corrections.

Very truly yours,
/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L

PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
Milwaukee, Wisconsil



EXHIBIT 21

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Following is a list of significant subsidiaries thle Company, as defined by section 1.02(w) of Ratgr S-X.

Jurisdiction
Where
Subsidiary is

Name Incorporated
Delaware

York International Corporation
Johnson Controls Battery Group, |i Wisconsir




EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-3 anchF48 listed below of Johnson
Controls, Inc. of our report dated November 19,2fHlating to the financial statements, financtateament schedule and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, whichpagars in this Form 10-K.

1. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. :-30309)

2. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. -31271)
3. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. -64703)
4. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-10707)
5. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-13525)
6. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-130714)
7. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-66073)
8. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-41564)
9. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-59594)
10. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-117898)
11. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-178148)
12. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-111192)
13. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-141578)
14. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. :-57685)
15. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-155802)
16. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 33-157502)
17. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 33-173326)
)

18. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 33179613

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L
PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
Milwaukee, Wisconsit
November 19, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Stephen A. Roell, Chairman and Chief Executifo®r of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finaha@orting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 19, 2012 /s/ Stephen A. Roell

Stephen A. Roe
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of Johnson Controls, Ineertify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finaha@orting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 19, 2012 /s/ R. Bruce McDonald

R. Bruce McDonal¢
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS

We, Stephen A. Roell, Chairman and Chief Execufificer, and R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Vice Ridest and Chief Financial Officer,
of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify, pursuant tot®&c906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yearemh&eptember 30, 2012 (the “Periodic Report”) tactvithis statement is an

exhibit fully complies with the requirements of 8en 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange #ct934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)) anc

(2) information contained in the Periodic Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finarealdition and results of operatic
of Johnson Controls, In

Dated: November 19, 2012
/s/ Stephen A. Roell

Stephen A. Roe
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ R. Bruce McDonald
R. Bruce McDonal¢
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




